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CORPORATE MILESTONES
NG

February

=

Onewo consolidated Dantian Property into its financial statements,

officially entering the hospital and campus property management ﬁ 4% \I II
sectors.

EYVEHRABRYE  ERAEEBRDELRREVEERS - —— HRMALRR R

? Vanke Service and China Index Academy

jointly released the industry’s first White
J y y # oy & ‘}’

Paper on the Development of Property
Housekeepers. Centered around the

comprehensive management service
design of full housing lifecycle of KELEL L
customers, the White Paper reimagines

community life through diversified service

ISR
MIERRREARSH

linkages and presents a new service model 2024528

for building happy communities, serving
as an industry benchmark.

EMYER  PHEMERBSEMITE
EN(MEERERANE) (B
EEREFER AT ERSREER
PR EREt - WE UL RIS AR R
ERMERMEE  ITEERLERGE FTORBHER - AFTETHES -

2 EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH




CORPORATE MILESTONES
G

Onewo’s Innovation Case of Energy
Management in Chinese Residential
Communities received the 2024 Climate . — —
Lighthouse Community Annual Pioneer /@“’*f b
Award at Shanghai Climate Week. The 4 ;Z;;T;:,m;gg’;
case proposed an innovative integrated = *xxn

) ‘FHAEES&IXI&:’EQEmﬁ
solution of “hardware upgrades
tsappy

+ algorithmic models + intelligent
platforms” to enable smart energy

transformation in managed communities.

It has been applied to over 1,000
residential communities nationwide, saving 72.45 million kWh of electricity annually and engaging
approximately 1.87 million households in energy conservation and carbon reduction practices.
EMETFEARFTEMHRERERAFRO I E2024F [ LBRBEARIREEM R FEEM
o ZRVIBIFT MM RE [REHRE+ B EZER+ B TR IGEaMRITE  NEREERERN
RRRERCEL  EHEEEZEN 000 EEEHE - BRFHNEET, 2458kWh » 5849187
EFPEREZHEGRRBEERE

Vanke Service, together with Shenzhen Property Management Association
and CRIC, released the industry’s first Community Property Service Manual HE)LEMVRESER
for Children. Centered on children’s safety and development, the Manual
presents, for the first time, a comprehensive framework for community
children’s services characterized by “full coverage, full touchpoints, and
micro-services”.

ERMEBES RN mmBEGTEEN(EREZEDEREF
M) AFMIARELE2MERA/ZL  BEREHBERERBETT
[2BE 2%  WURKIHTEZ2ER -
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August
NA

Vanke Service and Meituan jointly
launched a delivery rider access solution ‘ iy (N , |
to address the last-100-meters challenge G 7 = i “‘;ﬁﬁﬁeﬁgﬂ

in delivery. Backed by technology A8 ‘
coordination of both companies, the
solution, based on “minimal necessary”
data collection and “maximum possible”
mutual support, balances efficient rider

access with orderly visitor registration in
residential communities, transforming an industry pain point into a service highlight.
ERYEIEELARBMRFBTRAFTR e NBREEAFKE—BREE - E—WRAAIRS
& REFRARRMOES  EXR/NBEINBERKE  RET&ZAFRINERZE - B
RTRFBINOME  wRETIERITELOKT  BITERHERRGEE

September

LA

? Onewo’s community commercial brand
Oneshine launched its flagship product
module “Oneshine Food Market” at
Fuzhou Aoti Sunshine Paradise under the
“Onewo Town + Business Community”
strategy, becoming the “living room” of
the Jianxin South Onewo Town.

BENELREEMEEFEERMNEE
B5 e R HE S [ SR YK+ 44 7 | BASRE iR
WMIBFRE] KAENEEN eFE] -

The Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange issued an announcement that, due

to constituent adjustments to the Hang Seng Composite LargeCap, MidCap, and SmallCap Indexes,
Onewo was included in the Southbound Stock Connect list. The inclusion took effect on the next
Southbound Stock Connect trading day, allowing mainland investors to purchase the Company’s shares
via Southbound Stock Connect, significantly enhancing liquidity.

R RRFBEMAE - RELGERERIEE - PERREE - NEREBREHEROKRAE
EVERAABREBRNEE - WE N —BRERXZBEEN - RMREARERERABEEAQR]
BT REMSINEERT -
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November

+— 5

?  Onewo’'s case titled “Shanghai Jinse

Liuxiang Garden: Building a Low-Carbon, _ ‘ .| CHINA PAVILION

BAESEZUARSTER “'

Green Smart Community with ‘Lingshi’
Edge Servers and Intelligent Microgrid
Algorithms” was selected as a corporate
climate action case under the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment's “2024
Beautiful China, I'm a Contributor”

initiative. It was also recognized by the
Shanghai Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau as a Low-Carbon Demonstration Community and
was presented at the 29th United Nations Climate Change Conference (COP29) as a representative case
from Chinese enterprises.
EVEILEceBBEERN BA' BERBBNELEMEAEXITERR  KEenNEEtR R
PINEBIRERRRFI2024FBTE - ETHE | CEREITHRY - BE LEHERERIER
BERREER  WEATPEHCEAREF29/EH S HEHRIZE{LAS(COP29) LEF -
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December

T =4

? Onewo hosted the “Looking Ahead”
Brand Conference, where it released the
“Flexible Pricing System” and the “Vanke
Service Select” brand for residential space
services to expand service price range;
launched the professional campus and
hospital property management brand
“Dantian Property” for education and

healthcare space services; and introduced
the “Lingshi” edge server for real estate
management, positioned as the Al brain for real estate operations, fundamentally transforming property
service operations and reshaping space service efficiency.

ENERRTER I mEAS  EBRETZHEEMGIELEERR] [BMNYETE iR 11X
RIS EAR =M ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ : EQF“F?%WEB?I BRVEEEREIAAYER] ARABEE
B BB RGeS ERTHEEENAIKNE  BENEMERBIEXTE 2%
K -

Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service
hosted its 5th anniversary event themed
"Give Me Five”, where it launched B Y 2 TS558 E KBS

5m ANN!VERSARY LAUNCH EVENT OF L\\/\/b

A |

smart and low-carbon solutions for real s® 3,; ;
) Sa 2 & he /4
estate operations. Empowered by the Al '-\\;ﬁ %%‘ W‘M‘ %‘W‘Q ﬂ,g ﬁ@! f? S AR
i o ) ) -

brain Onewo “Lingshi”, these solutions

help asset holders carry out assets
management, corporate services, energy

management, and property oversight
more efficiently and transparently.
EYRITRRKT ABEFEEES Give Me Five] » BMHTHEBBLNEE+EMBRTE @ K
RABEARE —8DEIBELQ] EPEERBEISN  SHAMFEREEER DERK - &
REBNMYREES -

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551
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WUTRHEHF, #EFA%E
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= BESERCTEN 9, % &

Awarding Institutions

mERR

Onewo was awarded the 2024 IDC China Ecological Innovation Award — Market

IbC China Value Leadership Award

IDCHE ENETR2024 DCHREILRRIF A - MHEEENE

China Management Model 50+ Onewo received the “Outstanding Award for Chinese Management Model”
B EIER 50+ ENZE[PEEREALLE]

GDIRI Onewo was recognized for 2024 Outstanding ESG Governance Performance
BM SR EMER2024ESGREEMER

Fortune Magazine Onewo was included in the 2024 China ESG Influence List

(BIE )M ENER2024HEESCHENE

e IE e e ;):s(\)/\f was selected as an Excellent Case in the 21st Century “Vitality e ESG" Practice
PAR R GECY E S EMENBE(QIL ENESGIEEREVESFEN

Mercer Onewo received the ESG Best Practice Award

Et EYNERESGREERE

2024 Zero-Carbon Mission
International Climate Summit

2024 ThrfE R RIRES ENEREESCFRETH R EE | £

Onewo received the "ESG Annual Action Breakthrough Pioneer Award”

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024 7
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Awarding Institutions

mERR

The 29th Conference of the Parties
(COP29) to the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate
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CERTIFICATE
OF HONOR.

FAESL

THIS CERTIFICATE (S AWARED TO.

; N ABRSANERERATRAR
| pmz mERE .
2024 ETertL | © : O TR e ]
P RUERAHLZU b7

The case “Shanghai Jinse Liuxiang Garden: A Benchmark for Smart and Low-Carbon
Residential Community through Property Renovation” was included in the 2024
“Beautiful China, I'm a Contributor” Corporate Climate Action Case Collection

Change
(e BRIRZ(CERRDL) tESEREE - MESEEEERETHERRAE
EVEPNTNPN 20241 XEHE . HETTHE | CERBRITHEIIE)
2024 Pragmatic Entrepreneurs Summit ~ Vanke Service received the 2024 China Digitalization Pioneer Enterprise Award
204BTEEKIES BRMEE2024FETEAF L ABEER
CAICT Onewo received the 2024 “Star-Shining” Case in Edge Computing
=@k ENZR2024FEEGHEER]ED

The 3rd "Dingxin Cup” hosted by
CAICT

ERERE=EEHN

Onewo won the First Prize and Second Prize in Digital Transformation Application

ENZEBFBURR-—SRN_F&

The 9th Zhitong Finance Listed
Company Awards

FNEERME LT RRNE

Most Valuable Real Estate and Property Company
REAEBEMERYERF

JuDongMi
REW

Annual Best Investor Relations Company Award

FERERBEHERLAE

The 8th China IR Excellence Awards
ENEFB LR

Best Digital Investor Relations Award

RERFEREERERE

Capital Market Crystal Ball Awards by
Weekly on Stocks

(FHTSAT) AADHKERE

Best Investor Relations Management Listed Company of 2024

2045 EREREBEMREELTAF

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B R E

The Price of Al Al E

Mr. Zhu Baoquan KRE2RE

Chairman, executive Director and general BEER HITESTHRAKLE
manager
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B RE

Letter to Shareholders: The Price of Al

Is Deepseek seamlessly connected? Is the large language model
(LLM) hosted on-premises? China’s Al boom has all of a sudden
surpassed the initial wave sparked by ChatGPT two years ago.
As | explore and experiment, | have been thinking about what Al
means for our industry and Onewo.

Al has democratized access to general professional
expertise. In general professions such as law, accounting, and
branding, larger companies typically have greater ability to hire
higher-paid, more experienced professionals. However, with
Al, even small firms can access expert-level opinions or outputs
at a lower cost, which is definitely beneficial in terms of costs
for the property services industry, where profit margins are not
high. Yet, expertise remains essential, as large models require
professional prompts to deliver professional answers.

It is difficult to fine-tune an industry-specific large model.
After more than six months of testing by locally deploying
multiple large models, we have not been able to fine-tune a
satisfactory professional large model. Instead, we have shifted
to the Retrieval-Augmented Generation (RAG) approach —
embedding professional knowledge into a vector database and
retrieving different large models based on needs. The resulting
“Intelligent Property Manager,” “Intelligent IT Manager,” and
“Intelligent HR Manager” have already been deployed in practice.

Al as a tool for labor substitution — or being replaced by
Party As instead. Al can bring obvious labor substitution,
but one must be cautious. Over the past two decades, due to
professional specialization, many companies have outsourced
non-principal businesses, such as coding work by technology
companies. However, when attempting to use Al for labor
substitution as an outsourcing provider, never forget that Party
As can also use Al to complete the task, eliminating the need to
outsource to you. In such cases, collaboration with Party As could
quickly shift into competition, where speed and cost-effectiveness
become decisive factors.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551

BBRR : AINKRE

¥ ADeepSeek T ? R BB REKEA T
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Robotics can significantly improve efficiency without
changing contractual subjects. Although hands-on tasks will
still take time before robots can fully handle them, just like how
drones are now used for exterior wall cleaning, an increasing
number of machines are being applied to frontline property
operations, significantly improving service efficiency. For routine
management and emergency services in shared spaces owned
by property owners, there is no going back to the 1980s" self-
service model of “Three Guarantees for the Area in Front of
One's Door"”. The demand for property companies as third-party
service providers remains fundamental.

Al Agents may become the greatest threat to property
services companies. The core of property services lies in
reaching consensus with property owners and leveraging
professional knowledge to direct the “Four Ensures” personnel
for efficient operations, in order to create a safe and secure
environment and help preserve and enhance asset value. Then,
is it possible to create an Al Agent for a property project based
on data? For example, if three first-floor property owners
consecutively report backflow issues in their floor drains, the Al
Agent could determine the issue and generate a work order to
inspect all sewage pipes to check if there are systemic problems.
The abilities to follow up on routine tasks, oversee temporary
assignments, manage work order scheduling and quality control,
and conduct preventive analysis — these responsibilities of a
property manager are all capabilities that we can anticipate an Al
Agent will possess.

We look forward to making Onewo’s “Lingshi Edge Server” even
smarter. Soon, the Company will have three categories of
positions: H-type (human employees), R-type (robots), and A-type
(Al Agents). As a corporation, we must strive to take action now.
On the one hand, we must build a corporate knowledge base to
support R-type and A-type employees in taking up their roles. On
the other hand, we must quickly identify which positions must
remain H-type roles and prepare job transfer training in advance,
avoiding the unemployment of employees after R-type and A-type
employees assume their roles.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B RE

This era leaves no time for rest. Just as the industry emerged
from the crisis brought by the connected transactions with
developers, we are now facing a race to adopt large models.
Over the past three years, from the certainty of high growth
of developers to the volatility of connected transactions of
developers — if revenue is pursued, there is no cash; if revenue
is forgone, profits decline — the uncertainty in various business
aspects has left listed property companies with no choice but
to set their shareholders’ minds at rest with high dividends.
However, as we pointed out in the past letter to shareholders, if
listed property companies are well-prepared for independence,
the growth rate of their core (non-developer) businesses in
2025 will be greater than the decline rate of their related-party
businesses, presenting a scissors gap. 2025 will be a milestone
year for lifting the clouds. At the same time, the market share
of leading enterprises will be further concentrated: in the trend
of residential property replacement, leading enterprises have
significant opportunities, while in non-residential bidding, more
and more Party As propose B2B exchange conditions, but it's
most likely that only leading enterprises have the opportunity to
accept the bid. With the replacement of asset owners in recent
years due to liquidity challenges, debt-to-asset swaps, and other
asset transactions, new property owners’ focus on “intelligence
and green” for operational improvements has further opened
opportunities for property enterprises with “technological
capabilities” to replace services.

Growth alone is not the compass of tomorrow, nurturing
capabilities through transition charts the course. ” Asset
management capabilities, Al application capabilities, and green
and low-carbon capabilities” will be Onewo’s key capacity-
building directions. In the past challenging year, groundless
speculation was not distressing. Truth grows as a seed in
darkness: wordless, but bound to reach the light. As we witness
the support from state-owned capital for our parent company,
we finally see hope reflected in our eyes — moist with tears.

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
HIRE

People are at the heart of every company — from beginning to  1PEIERA ~ BKRA ~ BETEBAST — IR
end. No matter how the world changes, our purpose remains the — #f% /= « #/2# ST -
same. to serve our customers well and to take good care of our

employees.
“Life is inevitably a bitter struggle, ANES# P EFREFH
you have to learn to grow up on your own." ANBEBZHDRK ©
“Remember the dreams of your youth, B FDREN?
like a flower that never withers! " GIKBERTAZTHE |
Presented by Zhu Baoquan, Chairman of the Board of Onewo BEMEEER KREE =2
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Annual General Meeting”

[ERBFE ]

"Articles of Association”
[RE]ER]

"Audit Committee”

[BETEREE]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[EEE

“Board of Supervisors”

[EEEE]

“China” or “the PRC" or the
“People’s Republic of China”
[FRET st [ AR EE ARFFIE |

“China Vanke”

[BReE]

“China Vanke Group”
[BFREHE ]

“Company”, “our Company”,

noou

“the Company”, "Onewo”

[ARBRTEME]

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
May 16, 2025
#5p020254E5 A 16 HEITH AR 7 EfERERIBF

8

the articles of association of Onewo Inc.

(BYEZRABBERBROARARER)

the audit committee of the Board

EEQEITRES

the board of directors of the Company

RABEEE

the board of supervisors of the Company

AATBES

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report
for geographical reference only

REARKME - SIAFHRM 5 EHHBERE

China Vanke Co., Ltd. (BRIOERMARAE]), a joint stock limited
company incorporated in the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 2202) and Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000002), respectively, and a Controlling
Shareholder of our Company

ENEERODAERAR  —KRPBEFMRZORODERAF - HHR KR
AR D BIRBE BB AT (BRHDAIE - 2202) REIIBHR ST (FBHARE -
000002) £+ RAR AR

China Vanke and its subsidiaries
ERERENB AT

Onewo Inc. (BMEZEERHERBRMNBRRAE), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on February 20, 2001 and converted into a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the PRC on March 20, 2018
EVEERRERBROBERAF - —KKR200142 520 BEFBIFMA L
MAERAQR - R2018F3 520 B A —REFHBEEMKIZWRN GRAF




“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ 1A% AR R

“Corporate Governance Code”
or "CG Code”

KBRS

"Director(s)” or “our Directors”

[E%]

“Global Offering”

[2IREE]

noou noou

“Group”, "our Group”, “the

noou noon

Group”, "we”, "us” or “our”

[ E ] T 3

"H Shares”

[HR% ]

"HK$", "Hong Kong dollars”,
"HK dollars” or “cents”

[T

DEFINITIONS

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEACLEMRAD AR THRE

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules

(EMRBDHERC1 PrE M B EE AT

the director(s) of our Company

RRREF

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering (including
the Preferential Offering to Qualifying China Vanke H Shareholders) of the
Offer Shares, details of which are set out in the Prospectus
BERMOBTELAFHEEREREE (BERNEMHRE EBRRRNE L E
B HFBENERER

our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time or, where the context
so requires, in respect of the period prior to our Company becoming the
holding company of its present subsidiaries, the business operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRBRETHHMBLAR - s (BXEME) MARRKASEBAINEARF
WIZERARZAINEREME - EAREWMBRARHENF AR (RERME)
I Sl E

overseas listed shares in the share capital of our Company with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for in Hong Kong dollars and
traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

RRARBRATEREBEARKE.00TTHEIN ETRG - AETRERREE

BXMEE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEREEERET

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024
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DEFINITIONS

“Hong Kong” or “HK"
(&8

“Independent Third Party” or

U

“Independent Third Parties”

“International Financial Reporting
Standards”
[ BRI B 75 = 22 R1) ) |

“Latest Practicable Date”

[ R ERAITTHH

“Listing Date”

[EmAE]

“Listing Rules”

[KEMRAD]

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2ZB g

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBRFRIITEH R

individual(s) or company(ies) or their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s),
who/which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not connected with our
Company, its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates within the
meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

KIEE - BARBBRESEMAM  RBRERE  BARAE - HEAA
FHEZENERBEA (B EMARDAME TARE) SAEERBEENEA
FRAHEZENREERREGA

International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board from time to time

BER et EREE S TR EMN(BERMBEREER)

April 12, 2025, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of
ascertaining certain information in this annual report prior to its printing
2025F4 128 - BIRFRNSEDATHET HP FrEE TERNKEERAITH
5

the date on which the dealing in the Shares first commences on the Stock
Exchange, being September 29, 2022
202249 A29R - AR REE R E R EER A H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

(BAEBMEXRZMBERRBESF EMRAD) - ETEHER] - RIAEMITRN
E0

the nomination committee of the Board

EEgRA%RES




“Over-allotment Option”

[ FB R AC A #E |

“Prospectus”

[HBRER

“Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee”

[FEnZEe

“Reporting Period”
[ 5

“Retained China Vanke Group”
(SR TEREE]

"RMB” or “"Renminbi”
[ AR ]

“SFO" or "Securities and Futures
Ordinance”
[(FEH MBS HH1)]

“Share(s)”

[ Bt ]

DEFINITIONS

the option granted by our Company under the International Underwriting
Agreement to the International Underwriters, exercisable by the
Joint Representatives (on behalf of themselves and the international
underwriters), pursuant to which our Company may be required to allot
and issue up to an aggregate of 11,334,700 additional H Shares at the
Offer Price, to facilitate the delivery of H Shares to cornerstone investors
who have agreed to defer delivery of the relevant H Shares subscribed for
under their respective cornerstone investment agreements
MARRIRIEEEAE G ER TR AERINERE  ABERR (REEE
B RBEAERE) (T BURARRAREEEREREITEH11,334,700
IREESMER - AERERBEEXNBRELEBEAREHZZRBNEBHKR
EARE & RZ T HRA D

the prospectus of the Company dated September 19, 2022 in connection
with the Global Offering
ANRBHA2022F9 198 BERPHBEEFHHBRER

the remuneration and evaluation committee of the Board

ExeVMERZES

the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31HIEFE

China Vanke and its subsidiaries, excluding the Group

BHEERENMBAR (REEKI)

the lawful currency of the PRC
A TE B

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BEEOIESTIECE S KRG

share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each
AKRREAFEFREEARE1.007TH KD
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DEFINITIONS

"Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of our Share(s)

[R%ER ] B ROBEA

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Exchange”

[ B 22 B | 2k [ BB HE R P ) B BEBMERSBRA

“Supervisor(s)” supervisor(s) of our Company

[EE% | B ARAIES

%" percentage

[% | B Bt

]
H‘r}
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. He Shuhua

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wenijin (resigned with effect from March 31, 2025)
Mr. Zhang Xu (resigned with effect from March 31, 2025)
Mr. Sun Jia

Mr. Zhou Qi

Mr. Yao Jinbo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth
Mr. Chen Yuyu

Mr. Shen Haipeng
Mr. Song Yunfeng

Supervisors

Ms. Xiang Yun (Chairperson)

Ms. Han Huihua

Mr. Wu Jianxia (resigned as an employee representative
Supervisor with effect from March 22, 2024)

Mr. Zou Ming (appointed as an employee representative
Supervisor with effect from March 22, 2024)

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Ms. Law Elizabeth (Chairperson)

Mr. Wang Wenjin (resigned with effect from March 31, 2025)
Mr. Chen Yuyu

KRERE(EFER)
BB EE ST A

FHITES

FX &% (B2025E3 531 HEFHE)
SRIBAEA (B202593 431 HEET)
BReEisE

AaEtE

1k SRk e A&

BAFHTES

BEXLL
REFRE
Wit P

Ex

mELZL (EE)

BREEL L

REMERELE (F2024F3F22 T
BTAXERE)

BRI A (H2024F3 22 HEEZ(TA
BTAXESE)

EXEZRY
BHEEY

BEZLL (TE)
FXX &4 (20253 H31 AEEHF)
BREFHE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARER

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
Mr. Shen Haipeng (Chairperson)

Mr. Zhu Baoquan

Mr. Song Yunfeng

Nomination Committee

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Chairperson)

Mr. Song Yunfeng

Mr. Chen Yuyu
Mr. Shen Haipeng (appointed with effect from March 31, 2025)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Huang Min
Ms. Ng Wai Kam (ACG, HKACG)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhu Baoquan
Mr. Huang Min

ALTERNATE AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Ng Wai Kam (ACG, HKACG)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

27/F, One Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRER

LEGAL ADVISERS EEEER

As to Hong Kong laws: RSB EE
Gl B2 B

22/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong 5 1 05 v 4R 2248
As to PRC laws: BB RELEE

Junite LLP EARMEI

Suite 2803-04
28th Floor, Tower Three, Kerry Plaza
No. 1-1, Zhongxinsi Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC

R EDFEIYITE B R A O EEE1-15%
EEERESE =FE28E2803-04F

3 >

H SHARE REGISTRAR HE B F B R

Tricor Investor Services Limited BERBFELERAT

17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong BEBEREICRERSRPLITE

REGISTERED OFFICE, PRINCIPAL PLACEOF =R  THETEZ %
BUSINESS AND HEADQUARTER IN THE PRC  ith B &% 48 &R
2201, Building B, Chuangzhiyun Center, No. 1 Guangxia Road, FEBIEREZRIITEEREMNEEE=/E

Meiting Community, Meilin Street, Futian District, Shenzhen, EE15%8IE ZH/\B1E2201
Guangdong, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ERFTEEEME
IN HONG KONG

Unit 1607, NEO BAENEEBESEBE 1235
123 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong F=NEOKE1607E
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARER

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China Meilin Sub-branch
No. 67 Meilin Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Shenzhen Luohu Sub-branch
No. 2087 Shennan East Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Shenzhen Luohu
Sub-branch

1/F, Zhaoxin Huijin Plaza, No. 3058 Shennan East Road, Luohu
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation Business Division of
Shenzhen Branch

No.8 Pengcheng 1st Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong,
PRC

China Merchants Bank Shenzhen Dongmen Branch

1-2/F Waimao Qinggong Tower, No. 1002 Aiguo Road, Luohu
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

China Citic Bank Shenzhen Chengshiguangchang Flagship
Sub-branch

1/F, CITIC Building, No. 1093 Shennan Middle Road, Futian
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

WEBSITE

https://www.onewo.com/

STOCK CODE

2602

LISTING DATE

September 29, 2022
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AR

A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ANEEBERFEABKEENEH
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group for the HEIFEARR KM BRSO T -
last five financial years is set out below:

B
Bk
i
Pal
o

Consolidated statement of profit or loss 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
AtEER 20245 2023%F 2022 2021% 2020%

UM RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Naagdl ARETT ARRTT  ARBTR  ARETR

Revenue LON 36,223,828 33,183,458 30,105,803 23,704,539 18,145,464
Profit before tax MR 1,696,036 2,657,821 2,020,773 2,320,009 2,108,873
Income tax expense FrgRHEY (440,008) (621,992) (433,521) (606,353) (590,018)
Profit for the year FRFIHE 1,256,028 2,035,829 1,587,252 1,713,656 1,518,855
Attributable to: WTFEF LG -
Shareholders of the Company NG 1,149,578 1,954,696 1,511,649 1,666,970 1,464,039
Non-controlling interests R 106,450 81,133 75,603 46,686 54,816

1,256,028 2,035,829 1,587,252 1,713,656 1,518,855

Consolidated statement of financial position 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
AHMBRRAR 20245 2023% 20224 202145 2020F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IS \EETTt ARETT AR%®Tn AR®TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(K E5) (& &351)

Non-current assets FRBDEE 15,751,304 14,498,070 15,174,197 15,073,437 6,796,065
Current assets MBEE 22,856,921 24,885,047 21,788,788 13,708,383 12,207,692
Current liabilities mEBE 19,093,121 18,682,559 17,713,544 16,281,888 11,512,169
Net current assets/(liabilities) TBEAE /(BR)FE 3,763,800 6,202,488 4,075,244  (2,573,505) 695,523
Total assets less current liabilities BELBERRBDAR 19,515,104 20,700,558 19,249,441 12,499,932 7,491,588
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 2,355,353 2,480,317 2,247,937 2,187,989 926,998
Net assets EEFE 17,159,751 18,220,241 17,001,504 10,311,943 6,564,590
Equity attributable to shareholders — ARFIRE

of the Company FEfh iR 16,422,604 17,605,426 16,460,196 9,892,773 6,255,014
Non-controlling interests FrEiER 737,147 614,815 541,308 419,170 309,576
Total equity EnBE 17,159,751 18,220,241 17,001,504 10,311,943 6,564,590
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

INDUSTRY REVIEW

First Industry Change: From Certainty to
Uncertainty, Hunting Certainty

A loosening cornerstone is no longer giving us confidence
in certainty

From 2018 to 2021, the property management service providers
have experienced a surge in valuation for three years, driven
by ultra-high growth rates from mergers and acquisitions and
value-added services, coupled with the stable project inputs
from affiliated real estate companies. The industry was on a
rapid expansion trajectory in the capital market. At that time,
the property management service industry took advantage of
the high certainty provided by affiliated real estate companies.
However, 2022 marked a turning point for the real estate
development industry, leading to a year-on-year decline in the
construction area and the completed area of the real estate
development enterprises. Water can carry a boat or overturn
it. When affiliated real estate developers struggled, the growth
foundation for property management service providers began
to waver. The overall revenue growth of the top property
management service providers listed in Hong Kong has been
declining in each performance period since mid-2021. In the first
half of 2024, the overall revenue growth of the top listed real
estate companies was less than 8% year-on-year, significantly
lower than the growth rate of over 50% in mid-2021. Even
though leading enterprises can still maintain their fundamentals,
the performance expectations of the industry leaders often prove
to be inaccurate, and the growth momentum is showing signs of
structural slowdown.

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH

TR EIE

TEE8tz— RBEED T#
E - BHEE

ELRE  BELE

2018 F E2021 FEVMBHERKN=4F -
3 BE 70 32 B PR 765 75 K A R 1= 3 3R B 0 B it 3
EARBENHEEBA @ TEEEATS L
BESTBRENBRARE - HEMNYET
¥ RHREWEBHEARRENSETERE
B RM2022%F » MERBITEDKRE
e Bt 2R EHERECEEERTIE
BMETEBEERF TR - KAHAIRAIE
A BB EREEESERNEBLT Y
PIEMEALRRE - BREITWEDLE
BB A IEE 2021 FR A REEES
HIHIR TBE © 2024 F L FHEB ETYLE
BIWARLLIBERTE8% @ RIEMN2021F
HAFBS50% MG iR o BNFEEER D M aE s &
AN BITEREEEERNERE  HEE
BB ABMERA -



'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Certainty is delivered through high dividends

In this transitional and chaotic period, property management
service providers are generally focusing on bringing back to their
core business while enhancing shareholder returns to counter
the uncertainty brought by the real estate downturn. In the first
half of 2024, a total of 16 listed property management service
providers declared dividend payouts, doubling the number of
dividend-paying enterprises compared to the same period of
last year. Among them, the dividend rate of two enterprises
exceeded 100%. This high, stable, and predictable dividend
policy has effectively enhanced the investment value of property
management service providers. However, what the industry needs
more are strong customer demands, a broad market space, and
innovative products integrated with Al. The right path forward
lies in continuously demonstrating the quality of performance
and the sustainability of growth.

Technology leads the qualitative change of process

The Al wave represented by DeepSeek is roaring in. This
traditional industry, which was once regarded as labor-intensive,
is being reconstructed by algorithms to optimize the service
dynamic and data to reshape the management paradigm. Al is
not out of reach, but a daily part of our work and life. Al Agent
will be a member of companies, meaning that people have equal
access to expertise without high costs under the help of an
Agent. Therefore, Al application capability will become a crucial
breakthrough point for the property management industry.

LA ALAG [ R |

BRFETE BPERIAERTRZ - Wi
LTRBBRIFARE - FIRFRAR R E HRIRE
SR E TITRI A RO TEE M - 2024F
FF . HEBI6RLETYEEMREDA -
DHTEHEREAFRPERPELER - &
FO2RBESAXRBBTIOON - EES
Ll - BEARER SN DAKRR YT
BTYTMIREBE - A TEEFTEN
EERNEFPER - BEMTISZEHEIAKE
AIEERBIFER  HESHEEMNEEM
BEMAFEES BIEE -

BECIERRER

ADeepSeek BREXA AR BIFRE M E ——
EESHEGEASIEENNERTE IR
BrERRGEHE  WEBEBEREHEN -
AITMBERESEL  MKATIEHEAEFFHA
Al AgentZROEN—8 EFEEN
ERFEALNERSXETE  AIEAREIKBK
EMETERBOE B -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

Second Industry Change: Pronounced
Advantages for Top Enterprises, Accelerating
in Market Share Growth

In 2024, leading property management service providers further
increased their market share by leveraging on the competitive
advantages brought about by service quality, brand influence
and regional density. According to CRIC (32m¥s), in 2024,
the average newly contracted area of the TOP 10 property
management service providers was 2.4 times that of the TOP 11-
30 property management service providers, further widening the
gap between the top property management service providers and
other tiers.

On one hand, the expansion strategy of property management
service providers has shifted from scale-first to efficiency-first,
with regional focus and deep city-level cultivation becoming
industry consensus. More enterprises are developing clear city-
level deep cultivation plans, targeting specific numbers or scales
of managed projects within individual cities or smaller areas, so
as to concentrate resources on improving project quality and
operational efficiency.

On the other hand, property management service providers are
actively expanding their service boundaries to cover new space
projects such as hospitals, schools and municipal facilities. Large-
scale projects with ultra-large area under management and high
contract value are highly sought after by property management
service providers. However, the key to successful expansion lies
in building differentiated service capabilities and competitive
advantage to secure reasonable profits.

Thirdly, more and more customers from Party A will require B2B
cooperation in property bidding, such as procuring the cloud
services from technology companies and increasing deposits in
financial enterprises, which only large-scale enterprises can cope
with these demands.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Only industry leaders with a solid foundation and long-term
investment in research and development possess the capability
to resolve contradictions in the industry. The long-standing and
irreconcilable conflict between security guards and delivery riders
reached a tipping point in 2024. However, instead of further
escalation of conflicts, property management service providers
with digital capabilities quickly established data connections with
delivery platform companies to jointly build the “Rider-Friendly
Communities”, facilitating riders access to the community while
ensuring the safety management of the communities. By January
2025, the “Rider-Friendly Communities” access solution has
expanded to more than 16,000 communities nationwide, serving
more than 1.7 million riders in total. “Rider-friendly” is a label
of intelligent projects, and more labels will be created in the
future to support the transformation towards intelligent projects.
It requires high standards on the comprehensive capabilities of
digital back-end, intelligent front-end and technology software
and hardware for property management service providers.
Possessing real scientific and technological capabilities and
intelligent transformation abilities will be the key indicators
for property management service providers to become the top
players in the future.

Third Industry Change: Asset Renewal
Breathes New Life

Changes of holders brings new demand

In recent years, with the continuous development of block
transactions in real estate, more and more property holders
have shifted from real estate companies to insurance funds,
enterprises and even individuals. The service demand for property
management service providers has extended from basic property
management services to green, intelligent and smart services
and other fields. While putting forward higher requirements for
the comprehensive service capabilities of property management
service providers, it also represents a surge in the opportunities
of property management service flowing into the market from
the pockets of original real estate enterprise-affiliated service
providers.

HEERAREEE R RBHBEEANITER
5E - FEERIRITETBERRE S o (REEIN
ERFLFHEUAMOTEE2024F MR
BE BB mARMNT T EERME—FH
B MRBHFE TN RREINE
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B o BE2025F 1R [BRF AR BT
AT RE R REBI70B%F - H1RE
2E16B8E R - [RFRIFIREENL
HEM—EFER KK E2EEZHER
HEBHEBEERASE(LEEER S8R
MEBF(LEE « BRELAT & A LB
ZHRERNIBETREMNENXK - AFAEIEN
RHZ e A B b BuERE N & B AR IKREEER
YR RARIE S o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDN

In the past, property management service providers extended
from traditional property management (PM) to facility
management (FM), offering basic property services covering
all aspects to customers using the properties. Today, with
the changes in the market environment and the increasingly
diversified and refined requirements of owners and tenants,
service boundaries are further extending into the full life cycle
management of assets such as commercial office buildings and
commercial complexes. Property management service providers
are required to develop a variety of operating and service
capabilities dedicated to the buildings under management,
building users and building owners. In addition to the traditional
property management services, ESG consulting and construction,
energy management, commercial leasing, asset management
and other services are also provided. Therefore, being able to
meet the needs of different target groups by building diversified
service capabilities forms a solid competitive advantage in the
market.

Expansion from developers’ Pre-sale Property Service
Contract to Property Service Contract, unlocking new
opportunities from existing market

The proportion of owners’ committees and property management
committees continues to rise. Take Beijing as an example, since
the Regulation for Property Management of Beijing (it T4
EEIREH)) came into effect in May 2020, more than 5,100
property management committees have been successfully
established in Beijing in the past four years. The establishment
rate of owners’ committees and property management
committees soared from 64% to 97% compared to four years
ago. Meanwhile, many provinces and cities are actively learning
from Beijing’s advanced experience and revising the Regulations
on Property Management K ¥13E 12 4%1)) based on their actual
situations. The extensive establishment of owners’ committees is
a clear reflection of social governance extending to the grassroots
level, stimulating the vitality of grassroots social governance and
improving the overall effectiveness of urban governance. The
establishment of the owners’ committees marked the change
from pre property service contracts to property service contracts.
During the process, leading companies have gained a broader
market space.
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

In the past, the operation of some owners’ committees was once
criticized as “organizations ruled by the few”, with governance
irregularities drawing social attention. In 2024, benefiting from
the improvement of the regulatory system and the strengthening
of supervision, the quality and effectiveness of the governance
of the owner committee have been significantly improved.
Implementation rules have been promulgated in many provinces
and cities, expressly requiring owners’ committees to regularly
disclose the details of the public revenues and expenses of
the communities, rebuilding public trust through transparent
information disclosure and unlocking more rooms from the
existing residential property market.

STRATEGIES REVIEW

The period from 2022 to 2024 marked the first three-year
business plan implementation for the Group since its listing (IPO).
Facing the impact of the downward trend of developers and
the overall decline in revenue and profit of related parties, the
Group resolutely implemented three major strategies to navigate
against the adverse trend through structural adjustment and
technological innovation. The customer diversification strategy
has built a solid risk barrier and drove external revenue growth
by 14.2%, ensuring overall stable development. The proportion
of the continuing connected transactions dropped from 19.2%
in 2021 to 9.5% in 2024. The Onewo Town strategy shattered
the curse of “diseconomies of scale”, and the street-level
deep cultivation powered by technology has propelled a rise in
operational capabilities.

BE HHEFZELERS —EEERA
[DEBABBR o #E ] - JRIEKEHRRES it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD T

Onewo Town strategy, building an
ecological paradigm for spatial efficiency

Leveraging the long-established basic advantages of Onewo
Town strategy, the Group transformed its passive position by
taking initiative amidst the challenges of the in-depth adjustment
of the real estate industry and high levels of receivables
from related parties in 2024, achieving a dual breakthrough
in strategic transformation and risk mitigation. In response
to the pressure of historical high levels of receivables from
related parties, the Company proactively promoted the debt
resolving model of “offsetting receivables with assets”. The
Group had collected trade receivables from related parties of
more than RMB3.0 billion in the second half of 2024, of which
approximately RMB1.2 billion was repaid in cash through special
acquisition of physical assets or recovered through acquisition of
physical assets to directly offset trade receivables from related
parties, including relatively liquid mortgaged-to-developer assets,
as well as equity interests in high quality community commercial
assets within Onewo Town. These community commercial assets,
deeply embedded in the core areas of Onewo Town (Tangjiadun
in Wuhan, Huamu in Shanghai, Changbai in Shenyang), are
by no means simple tools for restoring balance sheet. Their
essence is the organic extension of Onewo Town's ecology:
relying on a base of over 60,000 highly sticky users and building
a three-dimensional commercial ecosystem of “Onewo Town +
Community Commerce”. This strategic move marks the business

elevation of Group from property services to asset management.
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Continuous expansion of the foundation

Since the release of the strategic blueprint for 100 cities in
December 2021, the Group has cooperated in depth with the
School of Urban Planning of Peking University to precisely target
3,402 high-value streets to build a strategic foundation. Against
the backdrop of the continuous contraction of the developer
incremental market, over 60% of the newly signed projects were
precisely implemented in 20 core cities during the Reporting
Period, with market share reaching “the Best or Second” in 50
cities, fully validating the Group's core competitiveness in precise
expansion existing market. In the first strategic implementation
period, the number of the Group’s Onewo Town bases increased
steadily from 459 in the first quarter of 2022 to 666 by the
end of 2024, with a CAGR of 13.2%, laying a solid foundation
for the subsequent efficiency improvement and ecological
superposition.

Significant transformation effects

The “scissors difference” formed by the irreversible upward trend
in labor costs and the inability to continuously increase property
management fee has long been a challenge for the industry. It is
the Group's approach to dismantling this issue to achieve intra-
regional scale effect after increasing regional density. Starting
from the transformation of 38 Onewo Towns in 2022, “human +

|n

machine” and “reuse of personnel” have become the two major

"weapons” of the Group to improve space efficiency.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group has transformed a total
of 250 Onewo Towns, involving 1,555 projects, accounting for
36.5% of the total residential projects under management of the
Group. Compared with 2021, when the efficiency improvement
and transformation of Onewo Town has not yet started, the
gross profit margin of the Group’s residential property services
increased by 1.3 percentage points.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDN

Ecological strategy upgrade L REE AR

How to conduct reasonable business within Onewo Towns is a  f0{AJfE W AMEEBENES  2AEBEEB
question that the Group has been thinking about and putting X3FHIFEBEEZNREEAOMBE - RENE
into practice for the past three years. Ultimately, the Group EREEEEERBELERER RAHTRE
focused on the construction of housing assets service ecosystem, EHE - BB - BENEEER -

and took the lead in anchoring the housing leasing, trading,
decoration, repair and maintenance businesses.

o Real estate brokerage: Precise optimization to stimulate e
resilient growth

As a professional brand that has been deeply rooted in
the communities for 15 years, Pulin has demonstrated
strategic resilience against the trend amidst an industry-
wide GTV contraction of 17.1% in 2024. Through a dual
driver of “improving quality and increasing efficiency”,
the Group strategically optimized 130 low-efficiency
stores and implemented a mechanism to eliminate
underperforming brokers, achieving a 16.2% year-on-
year increase in single-store efficiency. On the other
hand, the Group focused on high-value businesses, with
second-hand housing GTV exceeding RMB21.0 billion in
2024, a contrary growth of 18.9% from 2022, with the
commission rate increasing by 6 basis points to 1.7%.

o Renovation and furnishing services: Setting a benchmark e
for partial decoration with acquaintance-based economy

Supported by Onewo Yanxuan Home (B##ER),
a brand built on the Onewo Town ecosystem, the
Group achieved a three-level leap from “0” to “1” and
subsequently to “10” within three years. Through the
contacts of front-line personnel in Onewo Town and the
business model of acquaintances, the lead conversion
rate was 25.2%. In 2024, 5,358 partial transformation
contracts were signed, an increase of 106.6% from
2022. Customer satisfaction has exceeded 95% for three
consecutive years. With the standardized product system
of “one price for one household” (“—F —f{&") and the
promise of zero additional items, the Group successfully
resolved the trust pain points in the home decoration
industry, and became the preferred partner for partial
quality upgrades of existing housing units.
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Diversifying Customers: A Resilient Growth
Paradigm that Transcends Cycles

In the past three years, the Group has successfully built a more
stable and dynamic business presence in the complex and
volatile market environment through the implementation of
the customer diversification strategy. Against the backdrop of
the real estate market being under pressure and the developer-
related businesses facing downward pressure, the Group
effectively mitigated its risks by leveraging its diversified customer
structure. During the Reporting Period, the proportion of the
Group’s revenue from non-developer customers continued to
increase, from 83.2% in 2023 to 88.2% in the Reporting Period,
fully demonstrating the excellent effectiveness of the customer
diversification strategy in stabilizing performance.

From developer customer to industrial customer

“PM+FM"”
by Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service, the Group has formed a

Leveraging on the integrated service capability built
strong customer matrix covering 74 Fortune Global 500 and 111
Fortune China 500 companies with benchmark projects. Through
the positive cycle of “industrial momentum — service demand
the Group precisely targeted
the leading enterprises in policy-supported or capital-inflow

— business growth” model,
segments, achieving a saturated revenue from commercial office
space of RMB18,588 million. This strategy deeply embedded the
Group's service network into the economic development of the
real economy, forming anti-cyclical capabilities.

BB WD

SZRNEF FHBHNIAMEER
g3

BE=F  AEBEBEBRFPZ LB
TEI  EEMEZENTISRERNINER
REABRASEINNERRE - FHE
MGAR  RERNEEESEE NTEI®
EET  AEBRREZTIENEFER B
R m 7 EBe o IEHR - AEE KB IEH
EEEPHMAGLLEERA - £2023F
H83.2% IR EMREHAMNEE.2% * THE
RTREPEZIICEBEREEETANEY

RABRBEEFIEXEF

KEEMRITEENPM+FM ] 424 BRTS BE
N AEEEFEKEZ74RKE2K5009% -
TTMMRPHES00EWIFRIEERARAE B
b o B[ EXBE—RERER—EHILE]
WERBREN BEHTHREFHIER
MABEHEE X  BEREEEMEBMIK
AANRM18,588 B &L ° KB ANE B/
IRBBBARTRAEBLEZRIKAE - K
T)‘Li@/ﬁﬂﬁuﬂ

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

33




34

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

From traditional commercial projects to more spaces

The Group strategically acquired Dantian Property to build up
its service capabilities in special settings such as universities and
hospitals. In such spaces, based on the experience of Dantian
Property over the past 27 years, the Group has developed a
service model of “human + machine + remote Al management”
to address the pain points such as crowd management and
operation and maintenance of multi-functional building clusters.
This model significantly enhanced the accuracy, efficiency
and quality of on-site services for special projects, as well as
more young energy injected to the work team, ensuring fiscal
expenditure on large public spaces deliver cost effective results.
In view of the strong flows of people in colleges and universities,
the high standard of requirements for prevention and control
of infection in hospitals, as well as for equipment operation
and maintenance, by intelligent inspection, energy consumption
monitoring and other systems, the Group has achieved a 40%
faster response to facility failures, and a 30% reduction in
manpower with cleaning lines optimization.

In response to the national dual carbon strategy, the Group
has developed a full-cycle energy management solution for
office building projects. During the Reporting Period, 19 pilot
commercial office renovation projects achieved an average
energy saving of 15% in the first month. Such capability will be
transformed into a cost optimization tool for B-end customers
to develop another core capability of the Group in market
expansion.
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

From incremental mode to unlocking existing space

Against structural adjustment of the existing residential service
market, the Group adopted a forward-looking strategy to
address challenges in the industry. In view of the current industry
domination by the property projects below RMB2/m* per month
in the core market, the Group achieved a strategic breakthrough
with the flexible pricing service system of its brand, precisely
targeting the previously underserved market segment, which is
the blue ocean market with of the price range below RMB2.5/
m’ per month. Leveraging the grid service network built on
the foundation of 666 Onewo Towns nationwide, the Group
innovatively launched the dual-track service module of “basic
guarantee + personalized value-added” (EHE{RIE +{EME(E).
The Group systematically deconstructed the residential service
value chain, building a full-cycle management map covering 95
physical spaces and 1,530 service objects, creating a standardized
operation list of 508 items, identifying 158 basic services as
quality bottom lines, and simultaneously developing 350 optional
services module, pioneering the flexible pricing model of
“mandatory minimum guarantee + on-demand customization”
(MBRIE+IZFEHI). This system breaks through the extensive
model of “headcount pricing” (ABEE(E) of traditional
properties, achieving “optimal price/performance ratio” in
residential space through flexible adjustment of service items and
frequencies.

Technology: building the digital nervous
system for space services

With “Lingshi” as the Al decision-making hub and “Feige”
as the process reengineering engine, a closed-loop system of
“perception-decision-execution” was built to reconstruct the
labor organization logic through data flow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD T

Lingshi Edge Server: reconstructing the digital neurons of
spatial intelligence

In the wave of the global Al technology revolution in 2024, the
Group took the lead in reconstructing the property service value
chain with Lingshi Edge Server as the core carrier. Supporting
by the technical framework of “cloud-edge collaboration +
(BB W R +T5EIR),

the safety management paradigm with an alarm accuracy rate

near-field closed-loop” Lingshi reshaped
of 94.4%, with over 1.66 million early warning of potential
safety hazards throughout the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of 3.4 percentage points. Its breakthrough innovation
lies in building a “digital project manager” through the edge-end
GPU computing power pool to replace the traditional manual
roster model. As of December 31, 2024, 657 residential projects
have been equipped with Lingshi Edge Server, achieving a 99.7%
equipment online rate and a 15-minute fault response.

As the cornerstone of the space efficiency revolution, Lingshi
has expanded from residential areas to more diversified business
categories. In 2025, the Group will accelerate the “Lingshi+”
ecological strategy, deploying Lingshi Edge Server in commercial
offices, hospitals and other scenarios, accessing millions of loT
devices through standardized protocols and building a ubiquitous
perception network for space intelligentization, so as to usher in

a new era of space services.
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Feige work order system: the driving force of process
revolution

With the multi-module data analysis of Lingshi Edge Server and
the regional density layout of the Onewo Town strategy, Feige
work order platform has built an intelligent dispatching hub,
which can analyze the demand for space services in real time,
automatically generate all-scenario work orders for tasks such
as cleaning, repair and maintenance and security, and develop
optimal path planning with deep learning algorithms, achieving a
whole process closed-loop of “demand-response-feedback”.

As of December 31, 2024, the system has been deployed in
1,360 residential projects, precisely reaching 33,000 front-
line service personnel, building the industry’s largest real-time
work order response network. Through the “piecework system”
remuneration model and dynamic incentive dashboard, the per
capita efficiency of employees in security, cleaning and other
work lines has significantly improved and the income of front-line
cleaning and security staff increased by 3.4% and 3.9% year-on-
year respectively in 2024, achieving a positive cycle of labor value
and service quality.

Technological innovation has also spurred a service quality
control revolution. The current system has achieved a service
quality inspection accuracy rate of 94.3%, an increase of 17.5
percentage points compared to 2023. This enhancement has
further driven the reform of pricing paradigm in the industry
— the value assessment system with the core of “frequency of
services” and “completion criteria”, and has been gradually
replacing the traditional extensive pricing model based on
personnel allocation, providing technical support for a more
reasonable property pricing model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is divided into three major business segments: (i)
community space living consumption services; (ii) commercial
and urban space integrated services; (iii) AloT and BPaaS solution
services.

The following table sets out details of revenue by business and

FEH LR

AEBOA=ZREBRRR : ((HEREEEE
SHEBRS : (B mERgEE RS
(iii) AloT N2 BPaaSf& R 77 = IRFE -

TREFI AR B BIRR RS KRG E BB 5

B AFES

service type as at the dates indicated:

For the year ended 31 December,

BZ12A31ALEE
2024 2023 Growth rate
2024 2023%F BRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 % %
AR®T AREFT % %
Community space living consumption ~ HEZBEEEEERYE
services
~ Residential property services - EEMER 19,228,979 53.1 17,002,054 51.2 13.1
— Home-related assets services - EERBEERYE 1,346,669 3.7 1,360,922 4.1 -1.0
— Other community value-added services — H it @ L E R 331,864 0.9 375,463 1.1 -11.6
Subtotal et 20,907,512 57.7 18,738,439 56.4 11.6
Commercial and urban space FEHNRTEBEERYE
integrated services
— Property and facility management services — ¥E MRS ERH 9,970,753 275 8,299,598 25.0 20.1
- Value-added services for developers - A EEERE 1,569,151 43 2,683,486 8.1 415
— Urban space integration services - B EREE RS 755,646 2.1 681,326 2.1 109
Subtotal et 12,295,550 33.9 11,664,410 352 5.4
AloT and BPaa$ solution services AloT & BPaaSf& R i R IR
— AloT Solutions - AloTEER A& 1,427,347 3.9 1,417,506 43 0.7
~ BPaa$ Solutions - BPaaSEER TR 1,593,419 45 1,363,103 4.1 16.9
Subtotal et 3,020,766 8.4 2,780,609 8.4 8.6
Total &3t 36,223,828 100.0 33,183,458 100.0 9.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED T

The following table sets out the details of gross profit by business
and service type as at the dates indicated:

TREHIFR A RIRRER KRB ERNE D
HERFFE -

For the year ended 31 December,

BZ12A31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Gross Gross profit Gross  Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
E | ERE £ Ef=
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % IUNEETH %
Community space living consumption services  #EBZEEEEERE
~ Residential property services - EEMERE 2,386,314 124 2,269,257 133
~ Home-related assets services - BERBEERK 388,157 28.8 389,928 28.7
- Other community value-added services - At RIS ERE 219,152 66.0 248,496 66.2
Subtotal iy 2,993,623 14.3 2,907,681 15.5
Commercial and urban space integrated BEAETERRERE
services
— Property and facility management services — MIEMBIEE B RS 839,503 8.4 713,911 8.6
- Value-added services for developers — AEEEERE 72 0.1 312,276 1.6
- Urban space integration services ~ B EHEEA RS 53,515 7.1 64,904 9.5
Subtotal e 893,090 73 1,091,091 9.4
AloT and BPaaS$ solution services AloTK BPaaSf#ik 77 RER T
~ AloT Solutions - AloTHER A R 300,032 21.0 400,979 283
- BPaas Solutions - BPaaSERA A B 510,134 32.0 412,016 30.2
Subtotal et 810,166 26.8 812,995 292
Total CE 4,696,879 13.0 4,811,767 14.5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDN

The following table sets out the details of revenue and gross TR EFIAT/R B H A5 5B XK &4

profit by business and service type after excluding the impact of 18 » WIZREK LK ARBEERIE oW A KE
the business of developers*’ for the dates indicated: FFEIE -
Revenue Gross profit
WA ES ]
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEETR
Cumulative ~ Compound Cumulative ~ Compound
2021 pI)I growth rate  growth rate 2001 )L growth rate  growth rate
Business type E% 1 015 AL ZiHERE  EAERE W15 LR ZERE  HAERE
Recurring businesses BREER
Residential property services rEnzhE 11,076,480 18,770,261 69.5% 19.2% 979,229 1,927,596 96.8% 25.3%
Property and facility VES ST
management services 4,581,245 9,086,190 98.3% 25.6% 617,887 744,917 20.6% 6.4%
BPaaS Solutions N ES 361,144 1,103,004 205.4% 45.1% 128,563 369,905 187.7% 42.2%
Subtotal of recurring BRUER N
businesses 16,018,869 28,959,495 80.8% 21.8% 1,125,679 3,042,418 76.3% 20.8%

Add: Other core businesses 11 : Ef#b &%

Home-related assets services EREEEERY 1124093 1,082,325 -3.7% -1.3% 340,275 317,712 -6.6% -2.3%
AloT Solutions LS 151,197 864,651 4719% 78.8% 12,05 110,229 799.7% 108.0%
Subtotal of core businesses ~ BbER T 17,294,159 30,906,471 78.7% 4% 2078206 3,470,359 67.0% 18.6%
Add: Other businesses i EfEs
Other community value- EthitE 2B

added services 458737 321,825 -29.8% 11.1% 377,402 217,463 42.4% -16.8%
Urban space integration services S EH&ARK 326,198 728,262 1233% 30.7% 56,829 51417 -9.4% -3.2%
Subtotal of other businesses B EH it 784,935 1,050,087 33.8% 10.2% 434271 268,940 -38.1% -14.8%

Total after excluding all ARFEREE
developer businesses £Bhak 18,079,094 31,956,558 76.8% 20.9% 2512477 3,739,299 48.8% 14.2%

Note 1:Excluding the impact of the business of developers means excluding the impact of the continuing connected transactions of
China Vanke Group, and the value-added services for developers of other developers other than the China Vanke Group.

21 FRREREBZEEIRRENENEENFERNERS  hENEENEMRENNREMEERTNTZE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

During the Reporting Period, the revenue not related to
the business impact of developers accounted for 88.2% of
the Group's total revenue, representing an increase of 11.9
percentage points as compared to the same period in 2021.
During the Reporting Period, after excluding the impact of
the business of developers, the revenue of the Group was
RMB31,956.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 76.8% over 2021; gross profit was RMB3,739.3 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 48.8% in 2021.

Recurring businesses

As the “ballast stone” for steadily growing revenue, the recurring
businesses of the Group include three major business segments,
namely, residential property services, property and facility
management services and BPaaS solutions. During the Reporting
Period, the revenue of recurring businesses was RMB30,793.2
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.5%,
accounting for 85.0% of the Group’s total revenue. The gross
profit generated therefrom was RMB3,736.0 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 10.0%, accounting for 79.5% of the
Group's total gross profit.

Residential property services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from residential
property services was RMB19,229.0 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 13.1%, accounting for 53.1% of total
revenue. The business generated a gross profit of RMB2,386.3
million during the Reporting Period, representing a year-on-year
increase of 5.2%, accounting for 50.8% of total gross profit.
The decline in gross profit margin of this business was mainly
attributable to the Group's proactive investments in projects
to enhance customer satisfaction. During the Reporting Period,
revenue from residential property services increased steadily,
which was mainly due to the outstanding market-oriented
expansion capabilities of the Group’s Vanke Service brand. As of
December 31, 2024, the saturated income of residential projects
under management was RMB27,297.2 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 11.9%; the saturated income of
contracted residential projects was RMB32,690.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%.
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FEEEMNBMKARBARKE32,690988
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

The following table sets forth the details of the number and
saturated income from residential projects under management
and contracted residential projects as at the dates indicated:

Saturated income from contracted projects X ol RN
(RMB million) (ANR®EBETT)

Number of contracted projects (units) AHIEE #HE (@)

Saturated income from projects under EEfABA
management (RMB million) (ANREBET)

Number of projects under management (units)  ZEHB &K= (@)

TREIFATAREETEENEE REHE

£ MM AR

As of December 31,

HBZE128318
2024
2024

32,691
5,010

27,297
4,261

2023
20234

30,663
4,658

24,405
3,810

During the Reporting Period, the Group has withdrawn from a fEREHIR - KREBE LR HS3EFEYEE
B BROBMKARARE28598ET -

total of 53 residential property projects with a saturated income
of RMB285.9 million.

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

The following table sets forth the number of residential property TR LAY ERZEEGIERI 2SR RAE
projects under management and contracted residential property HIFEWENEENLRAYNBEHS = - TE
projects, the saturated income from projects under management  FIUTA LA K P~ BAME 28 B (F £ 3% & 18 IR 1%
as at the dates indicated, as well as a breakdown of income from U Z5BE4H -

residential property management services during the periods

indicated by types of property developer.

As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023
HZ220145128318 HE2023%512A31H
Number Number

of Annualized of Annualized
projects under saturated NENTEIM  Projects under saturated Financial
management income [T management income income

ZEEH 37 HERA Ei
Y& HAWA  BBRA ] BARA  BRRA
(RMB (RMB (RmB (RMB
(units) million) million) (units) million) million)
(A% N N N
(f8) BER) BER) (1) BET) BET)

China Vanke Group and its ot~ EMEEREAYLER

ventures and associates L YN 1,679 13,091 10,058 1,546 12,130 9,028
Independent Third Party BUE=HRHERER

real estate developers 2,582 14,206 9,171 2,264 12,275 7,974
Total ait 4,261 27,297 19,229 3,810 24,405 17,002
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

Property and facility management services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from property
and facility management services was RMB9,970.8 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 20.1%, accounting for
27.5% of the total revenue; the business generated a gross profit
of RMB839.5 million during the Reporting Period, representing a
year-on-year increase of 17.6%, accounting for 17.9% of total
gross profit. As of December 31, 2024, the saturated income
from contracted property and facility management services
projects was RMB18,588.0 million, of which RMB9,666.1 million
came from commercial property services projects, representing a
year-on-year increase of 19.8%; RMB8,921.9 million came from
integrated facility management service projects, representing a
year-on-year increase of 14.7%. During the Reporting Period, the
Group merged with Dantian Property, a leading service provider
in the public construction sector, to build up its property service
capacity in the hospital and university sectors, and to speed
up market development by relying on Onewo’s comprehensive
market expansion capabilities. Despite subject to impacts of
developers’ declining ability to pay, pressure from the external
environment and more severe market competition, the Group
acquired additional nine customers who are among the world’s
top 500 large companies in the year, relying on its outstanding
brand advantages and expansion abilities among business
customers as well as its integrated services abilities for both PM
and FM.

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH

Y 5% % 5 e B X AR S

WEHAN - NEEREWERBEE RS
B A B ARKE 970.8BE T FItLiER
20.1% @ 1B ARI27 5% « ZEBERSE
HINEIEEF ARKESIOSHE T @ RLIR
F17.6% - (HREFH17.9% © & E2024
F12A318 ' GHAMENZEERERBIE
EmsFfABARKE18,588.08& T -
HbErmERKEEB AARKI666.18
Br AHiER19.8%  RAERBEEER
HIEEAARKSNIIBET RLER
14.7% - HEHA » AEEHRLEES
SEMRBEESBYE  BEERMAZE
REMERB N - KTBYERERATIEHE
BEN  MBEMIHRE - BEAFEI M
B TRENIFE TR - INEIRIBAEN T 5
HERENMBEMNTE  AEE/RELBR
EPARREMNMEEDRIAREN - URAE
PMANFM MmO AR & RIS 8E ) - RS HIN
Gt R 5008 R F9E -



'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

The following table sets forth the details of the number and TRV AW EREZHEEIEREEE
saturated income from property and facility management services HEE R&AEE RAEMPA RS -
projects under management and contracted property and facility

management services projects as at the dates indicated:

As of December 31,

HZ12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234F
Saturated income from contracted projects BRI A
(RMB million) (AR#BET) 18,588 15,849
Number of contracted projects (units) AeEEEE (/) 2,993 2,531
Saturated income from projects under EE AU A
management (RMB million) (AREBET) 15,368 13,430
Number of projects under management (units) H#EEA"=E (/) 2,482 2,241
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

The following table sets forth the number of property and facility T&RE5|AYEFRZERERE DO RARE
management services projects under management property and Hi¥ENEMEERSNEEEESZE £
facility management services projects, the saturated income from EfIFUTALA LT REREI R B WE N EEE
projects under management as at the dates indicated, as well as IR ARFGULZERAAE -

a breakdown of income from property and facility management

services during the periods indicated by types of property

developer:

As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023

8220245128310 BR2023F 124311
Number Number

of  Annualized of  Annualized
projects under  saturated I ENTGEIM projects under saturated Financial

management income (¢ management income income
EEEA 34 £EER i
WA BBRA - UL UN B
(RMB (RMB (RMB (RMB
million) million) (units) million) million)
(ARH (AR (ARH Nz
BER) BET) (f8) BET) BET)
China Vanke Group and its joint ~ BREEREAELER
ventures and associates BeERT 294 2,292 1,422 325 2,202 1,273
Independent Third Party real BUE=FEHERER
estate developers 2,188 13,076 8,549 1,916 11,228 7,027
Total Bt 2,482 15,368 9,971 2,241 13,430 8,300
BPaa$ Solutions BPaaSfRR AR

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from BPaaS  #rsR< HA (A - ANEB K EBPaaSHR R T =
solutions was RMB1,593.4 million, representing a year-on-year g A A AR 1,593 4FE T RLEE
increase of 16.9%, accounting for 4.5% of the total revenue. 16 99% » (F4AUT A H4.5% ° ZEFEERE
The business generated a gross profit of RMB510.1 million during  HRREEF AARKSI0 1 HE T BEFE
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of 23.8% as [FHA#E23.8% @ (5EFEF|H10.9% o
compared to the same period of last year, accounting for 10.9%

of the total gross profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The rapid growth of the business was attributable to the Group's
marketization expansion capabilities of enterprise clients, and the
external expansion of enterprise BPaaS business was effective as
of December 31, 2024, with newly added customers including
top Internet operators, Al companies, large pharmaceutical

enterprises and well-known communication enterprises.
Other core businesses
In addition to the recurring businesses, home-related asset

services and AloT solutions businesses are also the Group’s core
businesses.

Home-related asset services

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue from home-
related asset services was RMB1,346.7 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 1.0%, accounting for 3.7% of the total
revenue. The business generated a gross profit of RMB388.2
million during the Reporting Period, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 0.5%, accounting for 8.3% of the total gross profit.
The decrease in revenue from the business was mainly due to
the decline in the total volume of the housing transaction market
and the impact of the external environment on the decoration

business.
AloT solutions

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from AloT
solutions was RMB1,427.3 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 0.7%, accounting for 3.9% of the total revenue;
of which the revenue from developers was RMB560.0 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 27.9%; the revenue
from industrial customers was RMB870.0 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 35.8%.
gross profit of RMB300.0 million during the Reporting Period,

representing a decrease of 25.2% as compared to the same

The business generated a

period of last year, accounting for 6.4% of the total gross profit.
The Group continued to optimize its customer structure and
build up its market expansion capability targeting industrial parks
and National Emerging Industries with the aim of extending its
capability cultivated in serving developers in the past to other
industrial customers with unmet demands, and as a result
gross profit margin declined while cash flow situation remained

healthy.

BEEWED T

ZEBHRREBRKRRAEEELES
Hr St EREE - BlE 2024512 A31
H - (¥ BPaaSEBINHRAKEL + 37
% = 5 35 58 P BB AR KRR - Eﬁﬁlwﬁ%\
ARBEPE MBRBELES

HAit 0 # 5%

BRIBRIVERSSN - EERBEERS &AlOT
R REB BB AEENZOER

FEEREE E R

WEBHKN ASEXRBETHBEERS
HABARKE1,346.78 8T AL T
1.0% ' HBWARN3 7% ZEBKERSE
HRENABARK3IS8.2BET ' R TE
0.5% ' (H#BEFME8.3% - ZEBWATE
FEHRREERSZMERNEETE - &NHh
HREBEBHNZE -

ZPIRIR

AloTHRF R

WMEHR - AEBREAIOTHRT RAKRA
ABAREE1,4273B8T BHRA07% ¢
HRKAM3.9%  HRREFAZEEHKRA
BAR®S 6T - AL TH27.9% : K8
EXEXFHNBRABARKS 7E T AL
F35.8% c ZEBEREHRNEFNABAR
¥300.0B 8L WEFRPTIE25.2% °

HREFNG64% - XEBBFEEBLEFE
B BEREXREMBERFAEEEBED
GHEREN  EERTRSHERMEE T
MEHMBRRKNEEREPF - REBRER
ZEMBERTEFEREGH TR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD T

Non-core businesses

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively adjusted its
strategies and the proportion of non-core businesses in the main
businesses continued to decline.

Urban space, one of the Group’s major scenario businesses, was
carried out mainly in the form of off-balance sheet joint ventures.

Urban space integrated services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s consolidated
income from urban space integrated services amounted to
RMB755.6 million,

10.9%, accounting for 2.1% of the total revenue. The business

representing a year-on-year increase of

generated a gross profit of RMB53.5 million during the Reporting
Period, representing a decrease of 17.5% as compared to the
same period of last year, accounting for 1.1% of the total gross

profit.
Other community value-added services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from other
community value-added services was RMB331.9 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.6%, accounting for
0.9% of the total revenue. The business generated a gross profit
of RMB219.2 million during the Reporting Period, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 11.8%. The decline in revenue and
profits is mainly due to a profit squeeze arising from a sharp
decline in business volume, and the time required for cost
adjustment.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551

R FEFE

ERERA - NEET B HEREE -
EBETEXBPOGLLBEETE
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BHEERARBEEENSERBZ— X
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Value-added services for developers

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from value-
added services for developers was RMB1,569.2 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 41.5%, accounting for
4.3% of the total revenue. The business generated a gross profit
of RMBO.1 million during the Reporting Period, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 100.0%. The decline in revenue and
profits is mainly due to the more-than-expected contraction of
developers’ new property affected by the industry cycle, and
the Group’s proactively downsizing its business in the second
half of the year resulting in its developer business’s shut down,

production suspension, merge and product changes.

OUTLOOK

2025 to 2027 will be the three years of capacity building for
the Group. With Al riding the wind, historical issues such as
those with developers will gradually be resolved. Based on our
long — established practice of labor outsourcing, we will focus

"

on "“assets, intelligence, and low carbon.” Through process
transformation and technological application to enhance
efficiency, we will gradually provide service products with higher

added technical and knowledge content.

Continuing to build an upgraded version
of the Onewo Town model that is scalable,
efficient, and extendable

We will adhere to the concept of “value for money,” leveraging
flexible pricing capabilities to facilitate market expansion. The
performance of the supply chain will continue to improve, with
“Lingshi+Feige” exploring new efficiency growth points. We
will actively carry out asset services such as house repairs and
renovations, adjusting store investment and layout based on
market demand and baseline growth. Focusing on the asset-
heavy community commercial projects we hold, we will build and
continuously iterate the “Onewo Town+Community Commerce”
operation model to create an

“ideal place” together with local

street authorities.

BEEWED T

FBBEBERE

WEHKN ASERBERAEHIEERBED
WABARK1,569.2B8 T AL TE
41.5% 1K ARL 3% » ZEBERS
HREFNABARBOIEE T B TAE
100.0% - RIT¥BPHTERER/IEFED
MBIEHELG B TH¥F IR ERERY
FEmEBNEETE  FRRARFBE

B o

ARREE
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IS EBE ERRY - BE SR AN N
Bk AEEEF o RISER

EREEMRFTIES  HEEETEERNE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

Building a competitive moat around diverse
customer needs

We will continue to serve more customers and in more aspects.
Developing segmented capabilities for vertical customers, we will
serve more leading customers from promising industries. Focusing
on essential needs of buildings, we will build intelligent and low-
carbon service capabilities, providing full lifecycle services for
buildings. Enhancing the synergy of various ToB businesses, we
will form cross-selling among various business lines within the
Group to jointly serve customers in more aspects.

Fully applying Al to bring about qualitative
changes in processes

The speed of Al development has repeatedly exceeded people’s
expectations. The Group will continue to actively embrace
Al, enhancing the application of large models and other Al
technologies to bring about qualitative changes in processes,
improving professional capabilities and operational efficiency.
Focusing on the “Lingshi” product, we will build full-space
digital service capabilities, promoting industry innovation through

technological innovation.

Adhering to the concept of sustainable
development and implementing the “Onewo
Plan”

Our group will continue to implement the four initiatives of “Love
Life, Love Growth, Love Environment, and Love Community,”
reducing unnatural deaths in service spaces, assisting frontline
service personnel in achieving diverse self-growth, promoting
building energy conservation and emission reduction as well as
community waste separation, achieving property renewal and
symbiosis with surrounding communities.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s income
structure continued to be optimized. Revenue from the recurring
businesses® 2 amounted to RMB30,793.2 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 15.5%, accounting for 85.0% of
revenue, bringing a gross profit of RMB3,736.0 million. The
administrative expenses ratio (as a percentage of revenue)
decreased by 0.9 percentage point year-on-year and net cash
flows from operating activities for the year amounted to
RMB1,918.8 million.

Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s total
revenue was RMB36,223.8 million, representing an increase of
9.2% as compared to RMB33,183.5 million for the same period
in 2023. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase
in scale under the Group’s management and the increase in
business contracts. Including:

o Community space living consumption services

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s
revenue generated from community space living
consumption services was RMB20,907.5 million,
representing an increase of 11.6% as compared to
RMB18,738.4 million for the same period in 2023,
primarily due to the Company's outstanding market
expansion capabilities, particularly the ability to strengthen
presence in the existing market.

o Commercial and urban space integrated services

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s
revenue generated from commercial and urban space
integrated services was RMB12,295.5 million, representing
an increase of 5.4% as compared to RMB11,664.4 million
for the same period in 2023, mainly due to the Company’s
deep market penetration in customer diversification.

Note 2:Recurring businesses refer to the residential property management
services under the Group’s community space living consumption
services, the property and facility management services under the
commercial and urban space integrated services, and the BPaaS
solution business under the AloT and BPaa$S solution services.

/g JEI)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

. AloT and BPaa$ solution services

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s
revenue generated from AloT and BPaaS solution services
was RMB3,020.8 million, representing an increase of 8.6%
as compared to RMB2,780.6 million for the same period in
2023, mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from
remote enterprise operation services.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly includes operating costs,
depreciation and amortization. Operating costs include (i)
subcontracting costs; (ii) staff costs; (iii) common area facility
costs; (iv) engineering costs; (v) office and other related costs;
and depreciation and amortization are mainly comprised of the
amortization of customer relationship resulted from our historical
acquisitions.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the total cost of the
Group was RMB31,526.9 million, representing an increase of
11.1% as compared to RMB28,371.7 million for the same period
in 2023. The increase in costs was mainly due to the increase in
business scale.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group's gross profit
was RMB4,696.9 million, representing a decrease of 2.4% as
compared to RMB4,811.8 million for the same period in 2023.
For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group's gross profit
margin was 13.0%, representing a decrease of 1.5 percentage
points as compared to 14.5% for the same period in 2023; the
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease
in the gross profit margin of the developer’s business.

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Community space living consumption services

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the gross
profit margin of the Group’s community space living
consumption services was 14.3%, representing a decrease
of 1.2 percentage points as compared to the same period
of last year, of which the gross profit margin of residential
property services was 12.4%, representing a decrease of
0.9 percentage point as compared to the same period
of last year, the decrease in the gross profit margin of
this business was mainly due to the Group’s proactive
investments in projects to enhance customer satisfaction;
the gross profit margin of home-related asset services was
28.8%, representing an increase of 0.1 percentage point
as compared to the same period of last year.

Commercial and urban space integrated services

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the gross profit
margin of the Group’'s commercial and urban space
integrated services was 7.3%, of which the gross profit
margin of property and facility management services was
8.4%, representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage point
as compared to the same period of last year, mainly
due to the fact that the integrated facility management
services are still in the stage of accumulating customer
base and building the brand across fields; the gross profit
margin of value-added services for developers was 0.1%,
representing a decrease of 11.5 percentage points as
compared to the same period of last year; the gross profit
margin of urban space integrated services was 7.1%,
representing a decrease of 2.4 percentage points as
compared to the same period of last year.
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. AloT and BPaa$ solution services

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the gross profit
margin of the Group’s AloT and BPaaS solution services
was 26.8%, representing a decrease of 2.4 percentage
points as compared to the same period of last year, mainly
due to the continuous optimization of product structure
under business transformation, of which the gross profit
margin of AloT solutions was 21.0%, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 7.3 percentage points, while the gross
profit margin of BPaaS solutions was 32.0%, representing
a year-on-year increase of 1.8 percentage points.

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains decreased by 74.4% from
RMB719.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 to
RMB184.0 million for the same period in 2024, mainly due to
the decrease in fair value gains on financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, the changes in the value of equity
investments held during the Reporting Period, and the expiration
of the value-added tax additional deduction policy and other
multiple factors in mainland China.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by 17.6%
from RMB497.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023
to RMB585.0 million for the same period in 2024, mainly due to
the increase in business scale and the investment in home-related
asset services; the selling and distribution expenses accounted for
1.6% of revenue, same as that for the same period of 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 6.4% from
RMB2,073.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2023
to RMB1,940.3 million for the same period in 2024. The
administrative expenses ratio (as a percentage of revenue)
was 5.4%, representing a decrease of 0.9 percentage point as
compared to the same period in 2023, which, on the one hand,
benefited from efficient management in a centralized, remote
and intelligent manner driven by improved performance by
technologies, on the other hand, was due to the strategies of
focusing on the construction of back-office functional teams,
standardization and aggregation, and commitment to the growth
of labor productivity.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by 29.3% from
RMB622.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 to
RMB440.0 million for the same period in 2024, mainly due to the
decrease in profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

The Group's profit for the year decreased by 38.3% year-on-year
from RMB2,035.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2023
to RMB1,256.0 million for the same period in 2024, mainly due
to an increase in net loss on extraordinary items of RMB810.2
million year-on-year, among which, provision for credit
impairment losses in relation to developers and others increased
by RMB337.1 million as compared to last year, gains from equity
transaction decreased by RMB257.6 million as compared to last
year, and gains on government grants decreased by RMB93.8
million as compared to last year due to the expiration and non-
renewal of preferential tax policies. For the year ended December
31, 2024, the Group's core net profit¥®? was RMB2,226.9
million, representing a decrease of 4.8% as compared to
RMB2,339.6 million for the same period in 2023.

Note 3: Core net profit is the profit for the year generated by operating
business activities, after deducting the amortization of customer
relationships for intangible assets arising from historical
acquisitions, gains from extraordinary items and related
income tax effect. Extraordinary items include gains/losses on
equity transaction, gains/losses on the disposal of fixed assets,
government grants, credit impairment losses, asset impairment
losses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

Intangible Assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly include customer
relationships and goodwill acquired in historical acquisitions. The
Group's intangible assets decreased from RMB7,981.2 million as
of December 31, 2023 to RMB7,733.5 million as of December 31,
2024, mainly due to the amortization of customer relationships
and intangible assets and goodwill arising from new merger and
acquisition.

Trade and Retention Receivables

The Group’s carrying balance of trade and bill receivables
decreased by 3.5% from RMB6,781.1 million as of December 31,
2023 to RMB6,541.5 million for the same period in 2024.

Liquidity and Financial Resource
Cash position

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB13,434.8 million, representing a decrease of
RMB2,137.7 million in balance from RMB15,572.5 million on
December 31, 2023, mainly due to the dividends paid during the
year amounting to RMB2,424.0 million and payment of share
repurchase amounting to RMB330.8 million. The Group’s cash
and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in Renminbi.

The Group has adopted prudent capital management policies
and conducted effective capital management under centralized
management to sustain appropriate and sufficient levels of cash
and bank balances.
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'MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Loans and Net Gearing Ratio

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had no bank loans or
borrowings and therefore had a net cash position. Net gearing
ratio is calculated as our total interest-bearing borrowings minus
cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity as of the end
of the relevant period. Accordingly, net gearing ratio is not
applicable to the Group as of December 31, 2024.

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Pledge of Asset

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had no pledge of assets.

Impact of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

As the Group’s business is mainly conducted in the PRC, we
mainly adopt RMB as the settlement currency.

As of December 31, 2024, non-RMB assets are cash and cash
equivalents, including HKD-denominated assets (worth RMB61.3
million) and USD-denominated assets (worth RMB6.1 million).
As of December 31, 2024, the Group's exposure to foreign
exchange risk was limited and fluctuation of the exchange rate
between RMB and foreign currency had no significant impact on
the results of operations of Group.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

S BEEREAEEE

The following are the biographical details of the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management as of the date of this annual
report:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (%R{R® %), aged 50, has been serving as the
general manager of our Company since May 2010 and a Director,
the chairman and the general manager of our Company since
February 2011 and was re-designated as our executive Director
on May 10, 2024.

Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in real estate and property
management industry and is committed to the digital
transformation of the industry. He has over 10 years of large
enterprise management experience. Since April 1999, Mr. Zhu
has successively held various positions in China Vanke, including
human resource department manager and customer service
center manager of Beijing Vanke Co., Ltd., the general manager
assistant in Chengdu Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd., the deputy
director and director of the general office of China Vanke Group,
an administration director of China Vanke Group, the general
manager in Nanjing Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd., vice president
and senior vice president of China Vanke Group.

Mr. Zhu graduated from East China University of Technology (¥
R IT¥KE) (now known as University of Shanghai for Science
and Technology (BT AKZ)) in July 1994 and obtained
his bachelor’s degree in Systems Engineering. He graduated
from China Europe International Business School (FE(EIER T
FEBT) with his master's degree in Business Administration
in October 2013. Mr. Zhu obtained his doctorate degree in
Business Administration jointly offered by Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University (Jt R KEHEFIE LML) and
Business School of University of Hong Kong (&8 A& & Bx)
in November 2022.
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ORS;SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
£ BEEkEAEEE

Mr. He Shuhua ({778 %£), aged 50, has been serving as a director
of our Company since January 2016 and was re-designated
as our executive Director on May 10, 2025. He also serves as
the chief operating officer of the Company and is in charge of
corporate strategic planning related matters.

Mr. He has over 20 years of extensive experience in property
management industry. After joining our Company in April 1998,
Mr. He consecutively served in multiple positions within our
Company, including property project management manager of
Shenzhen Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the executive deputy general
manager of Beijing Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the general manager
of Wuhan region, the general manager of Guangzhou region and
the chief executive officer, the chief partner of government and
enterprise clients service center (BFR{¥EFFIRISH L) and
the chief marketing officer of enterprise service division of Vanke
Service.

Mr. He also served as manager of Property Management
Department in China Vanke from April 2003 to April 2006,
customer director in Zhongshan Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and Zhuhai Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. from March 2007
to December 2008 and was primarily responsible for client
relationship management.

Mr. He graduated from Nanchang University (B2 AZ) in July
1995 and obtained his college degree in Real Estate Operation
and Management and graduated from Wuhan University (E%X
) in June 2013 with a master’s degree in Project Management.
He graduated from China Europe International Business School
in November 2024 and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration. Mr. He obtained a Property Manager Professional
Qualification (¥ EIEET) issued by Professional Title Reform
Leading Group of Hubei Province (it BifELE T1ESEE/\4E)
in September 2011.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

S BEEREAEEE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Sun Jia (&%), aged 47, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Mr. Sun has been a Director of our Company
since January 2018 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on May 10, 2024. Mr. Sun is primarily responsible for
the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.

Mr. Sun joined China Vanke in 2007, served as the general
manager of strategy and investment management department
of the Company in 2008, and served as the general manager
of Xi'an Vanke Co., Ltd. in 2010. He served as the general
manager of Shanghai Vanke Co., Ltd.in 2012, and served as
vice president of the Company in 2015. He served as executive
vice president and the chief financial officer of the Company
in 2016, and served as the chief executive officer and the chief
partner of the south regional business group of China Vanke in
2019. Mr. Sun was appointed as the chief partner and general
manager of commercial business group of China Vanke Group
in January 2024. Mr. Sun currently serves as the member of
the executive management team (EMT) of China Vanke Group,
the chief partner of commercial business group of China Vanke
Group and the chief executive officer of SCPG. He also has been
serving as the chairman and an executive director of Vanke
Overseas Investment Holding Company Limited (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1036) since
November 2021, responsible for overall operation, strategy and
development planning. The social positions he held include a
deputy to the seventh Shenzhen Municipal People’s Congress.

Mr. Sun graduated from the School of Economics, Peking
University (65 A22) with a bachelor’'s degree in July 2001. In
June 2007, he graduated from Harvard Business School in the
United States with a master’s degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. Zhou Qi (), aged 44, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Mr. Zhou has been a Director of our Company
since February 2017 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on May 10, 2024. Mr. Zhou is primarily responsible for
the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.

Mr. Zhou joined Boyu Capital (IE#12%) in April 2011 and
currently is a partner of Boyu Capital, and he has been a director
of the board of Sichuan Langjiu Group Co., Ltd. (P9I BBER% {5
BRR/A7F]) since April 2017. He was appointed as a director of
COFCO Joycome Foods Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1610) in May 2014 and
was designated as a non-executive director in May 2016, and
resigned in July 2021. Mr. Zhou also was a director of the board
of Shenzhen Yuying Property Service Co., Ltd. GEIITEE 1) % AR
AR AT from June 2017 to September 2021.

Before joining Boyu Capital, Mr. Zhou consecutively served as
an analyst and associate at Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. in Hong
Kong and one of its affiliates in Beijing from July 2005 to April
2011.

Mr. Zhou graduated from School of Economics and Management,
Tsinghua University (8% AX2) with a bachelor’'s degree in July
2003, a master’'s degree in July 2005 and earned his Executive
Master of Business Administrative degree from Tsinghua
University in January 2022.

Mr. Yao Jinbo (ZkEhK), aged 48, is a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Yao has been a Director of our Company
since February 2017 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on May 10, 2025. Mr. Yao is primarily responsible for
the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.
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Mr. Yao was a co-founder of Xueda Education Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“XueDa", EAHKER L R)ERAF) and
worked at XueDa from September 2001 to November 2005. Mr.
Yao founded Beijing 58 Information Technology Co., Ltd. (It
)\ ERAiTAR A R]) in December 2005 and has been its chief
executive officer. Mr. Yao is the founder, chairman and chief
executive officer of 58.com Inc. (a company previously listed on
the NYSE and delisted on September 18, 2020). He is also an
independent director of Cheetah Mobile Inc. (a company listed
on the NYSE, stock code: CMCM) since December 2017. He was
an independent director of Noah Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the NYSE, stock code: NOAH and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 6686) from November 2014 to June 2024.

Mr. Yao graduated from Ocean University of China (FBI/&¥ K
&) with a bachelor's degree in Computer Science and Marine
Chemistry in July 1999.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth (&#3%), MH, JP, aged 70, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022 and was re-designated as our
independent non-executive Director on May 10, 2024. She is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Company.

Ms. Law was employed as an auditor at Richter Usher &
Vineberg, an accounting firm, in Montreal, Canada from
September 1976 to May 1982. Ms. Law is a council member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and served as
its president in 1993. Ms. Law has been the director of Law &
Partners CPA Limited since 2004, a partner of Stephen Law &
Company, Certified Public Accountants since 1984.
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Ms. Law also serves as an independent non-executive director in

the following listed companies:

Period of service

ERAR

Since June 2023

B2023F6 At

Since April 2023

B2023F4 5 #

Since August 2017

B2017F8F#E

Since October 2016

B2016F 10 A

Since November 2011

B2011E11 A

Name of company
IR
Wise Ally International

Holdings Limited
BERRERERAR

Starlite Holdings Limited

Clifford Modern Living
Holdings Limited

FREERBZERER AR

Sunwah Kingsway Capital
Holdings Limited
NEEESRERERAT

=g

Listing venue and
stock code

LR RARE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9918)
BB
(BRIA 5% - 9918)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 403)

BB
(BRREE - 403)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0004)

EEBH
(BRI - 0004)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3686)

BB
(BEin 5% : 3686)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0188)
LN
(BRAARSE : 0188)

BULTEETI EMRBNBULIFNTE

Principal business

FEER

Manufacturing and sale of electronic
products
BERHEEFEM

Investment holding company, of which
subsidiaries are principally engaged
in printing and manufacturing packaging
materials, labels and paper products,
including environmental protection
paper products

REEBRAR - HMBRREERFHRR
SHEREMH - B%  REBRER BE
BREFER

Investment properties, hotels and development
properties in Hong Kong and
mainland China
EREEBRNMREFEE  BEMRE
FEiE

Provision of property management services,
renovation and fitting-out services,
retail services, off-campus training services
and information technology services
REMEERRY  BHREERE  TE
R ~ BOME IR R A5 BT AR

Investment holding company principally
engaged in financial businesses

REZRDA TBREEREY
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Ms. Law obtained her bachelor’'s degree in Commerce (majored
in Accounting) from McGill University in Canada in May 1976,
and completed her diploma of Accountancy in McGill University
in May 1978. She became a chartered accountant in Canada in
June 1979, an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in May 1982. Ms. Law has been admitted
as an Associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since February 2006, and was admitted as a
Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in August 2019 and a fellow certified public accountant in
Australia in November 2009. She has been a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December
1991, a fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since April
2003, and a chartered professional accountant in Canada since
November 2012. She also completed the independent director
training session held by CSRC and Tsinghua University in May
2002.

Ms. Law was the founding president of the Association of
Women Accountants (Hong Kong) Ltd. and has been appointed
as the honorary founding president since June 2008. Ms. Law
was a member of the Ninth, Tenth and Eleventh Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Guangdong Committee (/1
TRT—EFPBEARBAHESEEREELZEE%EE) and was
awarded the Medal of Honour in Hong Kong in July 2006, the
Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong in July 2009.

Mr. Chen Yuyu (BRE), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022 and was re-designated as our
independent non-executive Director on May 10, 2024. He is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Company.

In September 2003, Mr. Chen joined the Department of Applied
Economics, Guanghua School of Management, Peking University
(AERREB N EE IR S fEALE R) and has successively served as
a lecturer, an associate professor, and a professor since then. Mr.
Chen currently serves as the director of the Institute of Economic
Policy at Peking University (3t 5 K Z2 48 B BRI FTFT).
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Mr. Chen served as an independent director of Guangdong
Xinhui Meida Nylon Company Limited (BE¥T&EEHHRD
BBRAF]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 000782) from June 2017 to January 2024. Mr. Chen
served as an independent director of Zhanjiang Guolian Aquatic
Products Co., Ltd. CETEIB/KERERHERAF]) (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300094)
from November 2019 to January 2021. He also served as an
external director of Haode Technology Co., Ltd. (&R
BPBRAF]) since February 2016, and an independent director of
Meizhou Hakka Bank Co., Ltd. (M ZERITAZH R A A]) since
August 2017, and an independent non-executive director of
CITIC Limited (RFEFERHERAF]) (a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 267) since August 2024.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Economics from
Peking University (A5 KZ8) in the PRC in July 1994. He then
obtained his doctorate degree in Economics from the Australian
National University (B AFIZEE 7 K2) in Australia in September
2003.

Mr. Chen was granted The National Science Fund for
Distinguished Young Scholars (AIREHSFREZES) in 2014,
and he was recognized as the Fellow of Chang Jiang Scholars
Program (R/IZ2ZRFEHIER) in April 2017.

Mr. Shen Haipeng (Jti#8H8), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022 and was re-designated as our
independent non-executive Director on May 10, 2024. He is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Company.

Mr. Shen has been serving as the associate dean of the Faculty
of Business and Economics of the University of Hong Kong
since September 2017 and oversees the university’s Executive
Education program (5B EIEHAEIER).

Mr. Shen was a tenure-track assistant professor from July 2003
to June 2009, a tenured associate professor from July 2009 to
June 2014, and a tenured professor from July 2014 to August
2015 at the Department of Statistics and Operations Research at
the University of North Carolina Chapel Hill, United States.
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Mr. Shen was an independent director of Chow Tai Seng
Jewellery Company Limited (ARXKEHKERMDAERAF) (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
002867) from July 2018 to June 2024. Mr. Shen served as an
independent non-executive director of IntelliCentrics Global
Holdings Ltd. (FEZHZERBRAF) (@ company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 6819) from March
2019 to January 2020. Mr. Shen served as an independent
non-executive director of China Beststudy Education Group (&£
MBS E) (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3978) since October 2024.

Mr. Shen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Mathematics from
Peking University (At KZ) in July 1998. Mr. Shen then
obtained his master’'s degree in Art and his doctorate degree in
Philosophy from the Wharton School of Business, University of
Pennsylvania, in August 2000 and August 2003, respectively.

Mr. Shen was granted the Outstanding Teaching Award by The
University of Hong Kong Business School and Guanghua School
of Management of Peking University in December 2020.

Mr. Song Yunfeng (RZE#), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022 and was re-designated as our
independent non-executive Director on May 10, 2024. He is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Company.

Mr. Song has been an attorney of Beijing Dentons Law Offices,
LLP (Jt A BN EFEFT) since December 2004, and is a senior
partner of the firm. He has also been an independent director
of Beijing Hotgen Biotech Co., Ltd. (tRESZEYHEMIK
BBRAF], a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 688068)) since July 2022. Prior to that, he was
a civil servant from December 1995 to July 2004 at Foreign
Affairs Office and the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of
the People’s Government of Beijing Municipality (At XM AR
FINERAERABREEIAZE) and was primarily responsible
for administrative service. He served as a teacher at School of
Literature, Capital Normal University (2 #PEMEEAER) from July
1993 to December 1995 and was responsible for education and
administration affairs.
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Mr. Song obtained his bachelor's degree in Chinese Literature
from Capital Normal University in July 1993, and his master’s
degree in Law from Peking University Law School in June 2004.
Mr. Song further completed the EMBA program in Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University (It R AZ Y iEEIRE
B%) in January 2012. Mr. Song obtained his doctorate degree in
Business Administration jointly offered by Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University and Business School of University
of Hong Kong (B8 KB & EET) in November 2022.

Mr. Song obtained his PRC Legal Professional Qualification
Certificate issued by the PRC Ministry of Justice in 2004 and was
qualified as an attorney by the Beijing Justice Bureau in 2005.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Xiang Yun ([2), aged 57, is the chairperson of our
Board of Supervisors. Ms. Xiang has served as a Supervisor of
our Company since January 2016, and has been serving as the
general consultant of audit and internal control of our Company
since March 2018. She is primarily responsible for supervising the
audit and internal control of our Company.

After joining our Company in May 1994, Ms. Xiang served in
various positions, including an office director in Shenzhen branch,
a manager of quality management and an assistant general
manager from May 1994 to September 2000. She successively
served as a deputy general manager of property management
department and the general manager of property services
management department in China Vanke from October 2000 to
January 2009, and served as an assistant general manager of our
Company from February 2009 to February 2018.

Ms. Xiang graduated from Jianghan University (T:ZAZ) with
a college degree in Business and Economics Management
in July 1988, and obtained her master's degree in Business
Administration from Asia International Open University (Macau)
(now known as City University of Macau) in May 2001.
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Ms. Han Huihua (E£#%#), aged 42, is a shareholder
representative Supervisor. Ms. Han has served as a Supervisor of
our Company since January 2018. She is primarily responsible
for supervising financial matters and the directors and senior
management of our Company. Ms. Han is currently an executive
vice president and the head of finance of China Vanke.

Ms. Han joined China Vanke in 2008, and successively held
positions of a business manager, the assistant general manager
and the deputy general manager of the finance and internal
control department, and the partner of the financial management
function in the management center of China Vanke. Ms. Han has
been appointed as a non-executive Director of Vanke Overseas
Investment Holding Company Limited (a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1036) since August
2023.

Ms. Han obtained her bachelor’s degree in Administration
from University of Science and Technology of China (BRI
FATAE) in the PRC in July 2003, and her master’s degree in
Administration (majored in accounting) from lJiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (TR KRE) in January 2008. She
obtained the Certified Public Accountant certificate granted by
Certified Public Accountant Examination Committee of Ministry
of Finance of the PRC (FEIMBHAMEMERAZER) in
January 2007.

Mr. Zou Ming ($883), aged 51, has successively served as
multiple positions, including an executive of human resources
of Shenzhen Vanke Service Co., Ltd., an assistant manager in
human resources department, a deputy general manager of
Shanghai Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the director of the planning
and development department, a deputy general manager of
Beijing Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the general manager of Tianjin
Vanke Property Service Co., Ltd., the general manager of
residential projects operation center Beijing region, the general
manager of North China region and the head of human resource
of our Company since his joining our Company in February 2001.
Mr. Zou served as the deputy general manager of our Company
from January 2021 to March 2024, responsible for the human
resources management of the Company.

Mr. Zou obtained his bachelor’s degree in Power Systems and
Automation from Southeast University (3REIAE) in June 1996.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (5&#R2), aged 50. For his biography, please
refer to the sub-section “ —Directors” above.

Mr. He Shuhua (fiJB8%), aged 50. For his biography, please
refer to the sub-section “ —Directors” above.

Mr. Yang Guanghui (##¥), aged 53, has been serving as the
deputy general manager, the chief customer services officer of
our Company since March 2021 and the chief partner of Vanke
Service business unit (“BU") since January 2022. Mr. Yang is
primarily responsible for operation and management of our
Company’s residential property services (Vanke Service).

Mr. Yang has over 20 years of experience in the property
management industry. After joining our Company in April 1997,
Mr. Yang consecutively served in multiple positions within
our Company, including an environment executive, a quality
executive, a quality manager, a business supervision manager,
the general manager of Hangzhou Vanke Property Service Co.,
Ltd., the general manager of residential projects operation
center Shanghai region, the general manager of Shanghai Vanke
Service Co., Ltd., the chairman of Zhejiang Yaojiang Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (/TR IWEEERERARF]), a leading
partner of East China region and the chief customer services
officer.

Mr. Yang obtained his bachelor's degree in Landscape
Architecture from the Inner Mongolia Forestry College (RE & #k
Z0t) (now known as the Inner Mongolia Agricultural University
(RN EHEZEAKE)) in the PRC in July 1994. Mr. Yang obtained
the Special Award for the Executive Officer of 2019 granted
by our Company, the Industry Contribution Award granted by
Shanghai Property Management Association in November 2019
and was elected as the vice president of the sixth Council of
Shanghai Property Management Association in July 2020.
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Ms. Ye Fei (¥3E), aged 41, has joined the Company since
July 2023 and has served as the deputy general manager of
the Company since March 22, 2024. Currently, she is general
manager of Onewo asset operation center, and is responsible for
the management and operation of community commercial assets.

Ms. Ye has excellent strategic vision and management innovation
capabilities, with rich international perspective as well as in-depth
industry experience in corporate governance, capital operation,
investment and mergers and acquisitions, business innovation and
incubation, etc. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ye successively
served as deputy CFO of the Group, CFO of CJIA Apartment,
senior vice president of the Group/head of the capital operation
center in H World Group Limited from March 2016 to July 2023.
She successively served in important management positions in
BOOZ & COMPANY and direct investment department of CITIC
Capital from July 2004 to February 2016.

Ms. Ye graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in June
2004 and obtained her bachelor’s degree in Economics; she
graduated from Harvard Business School in the United States
in June 2009 and obtained her master’'s degree in Business
Administration.

Mr. Huang Min (EX), aged 35, was appointed as our joint
company secretary of the Company on March 1, 2022 and was
appointed as secretary to the Board of the Company on August
30, 2024. Mr. Huang joined our Company in June 2014 and is
currently in charge of the securities and corporate governance
department of the Company, and is responsible for internal
audit, ESG, securities affairs and investor relations related affairs
of the Company.
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Mr. Huang successively served as a financial management
director, an investor relations director, a partner of strategy
mergers and acquisitions and a partner of the planning and
development department of our Company since joining in June
2014. In addition, Mr. Huang also serves in directorship of
the companies in which our Company invested, a director of
Shenzhen Vanyu Securepro Technology Co., Ltd. CEIITEH L
RIS EHE AR 2 a]) since November 2019. Prior to joining our
Company, from July 2012 to June 2014, Mr. Huang served in
Huarun Power Wind Power (Shantou) Co., Ltd. (ZEJEE HREECL
SB)BRAR]).

Mr. Huang graduated from Xiamen University in July 2012 and
obtained his bachelor’s degree in Financial Management.

Mr. Wang Xubin (E#3E), aged 48, was appointed as the
financial principal on December 12, 2024. Mr. Wang joined our
Company in July 2004, with over 20 years' experience of financial
management in property and real estate industry.

From July 2002 to June 2004, Mr. Wang served as the financial
director in Shenzhen Overseas Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd.;
in July 2004, he joined into China Vanke where he served as the
financial director; in May 2008, he was redesignated to Vanke
Service Co., Ltd. (BRMFEZEERMBIRAF]) (currently known
as Onewo), and served as the financial manager of Guangzhou
Vanke Service Co., Ltd. (BN ERERBEER AR,
March 2010, he has been in charge of the finance and treasury

since

management center in Onewo.

Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology with
master’s degree in June 2002.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Huang Min (E2), aged 35. For his biography, please refer
to the sub-section “— Senior Management” above.

Ms. Ng Wai Kam ({R{Z%), was appointed as our joint company
secretary of the Company on March 1, 2022. Ms. Ng is a senior
manager of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited, a
global professional services provider specializing in integrated
business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Ng has over 10
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field. She has
been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong
listed companies as well as multinational, private and offshore
companies.

Ms. Ng is currently the company secretary/joint company
secretary of listed companies on the Stock Exchange, namely,
Hebei Yichen Industrial Group Corporation Limited (it B[R B %
EBR (DA AF]; stock code: 1596), Genertec Universal Medical
Group Company Limited GBRIRIKEBEE LB FR A A]; stock code:
2666) and Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (EREEEBABRE A
A]; stock code: 2279).

Ms. Ng is an Associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in
the United Kingdom. Ms. Ng obtained her bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan University in
July 2011.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Board of Directors hereby presents to the Shareholders the
report of the Board of Directors for the financial year ended
December 31, 2024.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on February 20, 2001
and was converted into a joint stock limited company on March
20, 2018. The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on September 29, 2022.

The basic information of the Company is set out on pages 19 to
22 in the "Corporate Information” of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Company's issued Shares
were 1,171,565,329 Shares. Details of the Company’s share
capital during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

The Group is a leading omni-space service provider in China
that has continuously effected improvements in the industry
over the past three decades. 34 years ago, we kick-started our
journey with the simple purpose of pursuing excellent property
management services for more people — a purpose which still
guides the way we do business in a highly competitive and
fragmented sector today. Drawing on our brand strength and
service quality, we have expanded our business beyond property
management services and become a leading service provider
with a growth model built upon the synergy of businesses across
community, commercial and urban spaces, serving a diverse array
of properties such as residential communities, workspaces and
public premises, and a broad customer base covering property
owners, corporate and other institutional clients. Leveraging R&D
investments, we have developed AloT and BPaa$ solutions aiming
to digitalize workflows, mobilize resources and improve efficiency
of the spaces we serve. As our service offerings intertwine and
further integrate with purpose-built technologies, we become
well-prepared to achieve economies of scale and capture
adjacent opportunities. In terms of geographic focus, we strive
to provide quality services to customers in high-tier cities with
strong economic fundamentals.

Details of the names, principal places of business, countries of
incorporation and issued share capital of the Group’s principal
subsidiaries are set forth in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. For the year ended December 31, 2024, there was
no material change in the nature of the principal business of
the Group. As of the date of this annual report, the Board of
Directors had no intention to substantially change the principal
business of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's businesses for the year and a discussion
on their future development are set forth in the sections headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. An analysis of the
Group's performance for the year using key financial performance
indicators is set forth in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. The Group had no significant events
taking place during the period from the financial year-end falling

on December 31, 2024 to the date of this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS,
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had not made any
significant investments, acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

In addition, save as the changes in plans of use of proceeds
disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the announcement regarding
the change in use of proceeds from Global Offering of the
Company dated September 30, 2024, the Group has no specific
plans to make significant investments or acquire material
capital assets. However, the Group will continue to seek new
opportunities for business development in accordance with the
Company’s strategy. For further details of the change in use of
proceeds, please refer to the section headed “Future Plans and

Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the announcement.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS RAISED FROM IPO
AND OVERALLOTMENT OPTION

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date by way of Global
Offering. The net proceeds from the Global Offering received by
the Company (after the full exercise of the Over-allotment Option
in part) was approximately RMB5,617.2 million, after deduction
of underwriting commissions and other related expenses
payable by the Company in connection with the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had utilized approximately
RMB3,416.0 million of the proceeds, which were allocated
and used in accordance with the use of proceeds set out in
the Company’s Prospectus dated September 22, 2022 and the
announcement of the Company regarding the change in the use
of proceeds from the Global Offering dated September 30, 2024
(the “Announcement”). As disclosed in the Announcement after
careful consideration and detailed evaluation of the Company’s
operations and strategy, the Board has resolved to propose
to change the intended use originally allocated to change
the unutilized Net Proceeds. The unutilized Net Proceeds of
approximately RMB2,201.2 million will be allocated and utilized
in accordance with the purposes and proportions set out in the
Announcement. The specific utilization is as follows:
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Unutilized
amount of the
proceeds from Unutilized
The revised initial public amount of the Expected
Net Proceeds offerings Utilized Net Proceeds timetable
Use of revised Net as stated asof  amount of asat for the full
Proceeds as stated in the January 1, the proceeds December 31, use of the
in the Announcement Announcement 2024t in 2024 2024 balance
#2205 R2024%
NHEAERE 1A18 KB R2024% 1283182
BN e HE BETRFE  BROMBE B R FBARE TUERBEN
FETEFENAR REFE  ASTESET FERELE RERE RHRER
(RMB million) (RMB million) ~ (RMB million) ~ (RMB million)
(ARE (ARE (ARE (ARE
BET) AET) BET) BET)
Replicating the success of our ‘Onewo  #17[ ENE4E |- AR HE 11234 985.5 2953 690.2 By the end of 2027
Town' model - for supporting ENERKEE - RERER 2027 EFE AT
residential property services projects, b ¥R ER: 2
horizontal acquisitions and other
business expansion initiatives
Investing in the development of our & AAloT JtBPaaS 1,404.3 990.1 623.1 367.0 By the end of 2027
AloT and BPaaS solutions BRARMRE R2027 FERAT
For technical investment and FIRERRIEE TR 561.7 510.8 285.0 2258
transformation of infrastructures REME
(i) For developing, upgrading () BRATEARERNAR 280.9 2773 225 54.8
and enhancing the integration LN ESIE )
capability of AloT system on the
AloT platform
(i) For optimizing the algorithms (i) ARELEE 280.8 2335 62.5 171.0
For the development of our BPaaS FR 7 BPaaS A 77 MG & 842.6 479.4 338.2 1412 By the end of 2027
solutions R2027 EE KA
(i) For enhancing BPaaS solutions () FRINEBPaaSEEA R 2809 198.5 573 141.2
(i) For developing new service (i) AREEHRETE 561.7 280.9 280.9 =
processes
Use for deepening the Onewo RREERESHARSAER 1,966.1 1,849.8 872.1 977.7 By the end of 2027
Town strategy and incubating the ENNMESS (FEENE R2027EERR
Onewo ecosystem through the ERES) BRACENE
exploration of property targets with B~ L ENE L ZH
development potentials (including
investment in operating assets) by
means of fund investment, etc.
Attracting and nurturing talents ARRAREREAS 561.7 555.6 389.3 166.3 By the end of 2027
R0TEFER
For working capital and general ARBEEER—RATRE 561.7 28.8 288 =
corporate purposes
Total At 56172 4,409.8 2,086 2,012

Note: The unutilized amount of the Net Proceeds from initial public 7 @ EZE2024F1A1BZ2ABHAERAHBEERS

offerings as of January 1, 2024 has been restated as if the RIBFHLECEY - BUZASHAKFG
change in use of Net Proceeds as described in the Announcement HIBFRERSEEDN2024F1 A1HEE -

has been effected on January 1, 2024.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable
Date, the list of Directors and Supervisors is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. He Shuhua

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wenjin (resigned as a non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from March 31, 2025)

Mr. Zhang Xu (resigned as a non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from March 31, 2025)

Mr. Sun Jia

Mr. Zhou Qi

Mr. Yao Jinbo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth
Mr. Chen Yuyu

Mr. Shen Haipeng
Mr. Song Yunfeng

Supervisors

Ms. Xiang Yun
Ms. Han Huihua
Mr. Zou Ming

Changes in Information of Directors and
Supervisors

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 58
to 72 of this annual report. During the Reporting Period, save
as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this annual report, there has been no
other information that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules as of December 31, 2024.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of
Directors and Supervisors in respect of, among other things, (i)
compliance of relevant laws and regulations, (ii) observance of
the Articles of Association, and (iii) provisions on arbitration.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any service contract of Directors or Supervisors with any member
of our Group (other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the relevant employer within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation).

Independence Confirmation Letter of
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received the independence confirmation letter
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors and
confirmed that all of them are independent pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

As of December 31, 2024, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors has any interests in any business that competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of our Group.

. Anjuke Group Inc. (“Anjuke”): Mr. Yao lJinbo, a non-
executive director of the Company, is the executive
director, chairperson, chief executive officer, and a
controlling shareholder of Anjuke. Anjuke is an open
online platform for real estate information and transaction
services (“Relevant Director Business”) in China.
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There is neither any substantial competition between our
businesses and the Relevant Director Businesses, nor any material
conflict of interests arising from Mr. Yao Jinbo’s position and
shareholding in Anjuke, having taken into account that (a) our
Group is a leading service provider in community, commercial and
urban spaces, which offers, among others, home sale and rental
brokerage services as an extension of our residential property
services only while Anjuke focuses on developing its online real
estate service platform business and serves as an intermediary;
and (b) the role of Mr. Yao in our Company is non-executive in
nature and he has not involved in the day-to-day management of
the operations of our Group.

Mr. Yao Jinbo confirms he is also aware of his fiduciary duties
as a Director which require, among other things, that he must
act for the benefit of and in the best interests of our Group and
not allow any conflict between his duties as a Director and his
personal interests. In the event that there is a potential conflict
of interest arising out of Mr. Yao's positions held in the Relevant
Director Businesses, Mr. Yao shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions of our Board approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he has a material interest and
shall not be counted in the quorum present at the relevant Board
meetings.

Our Directors are of the view that such Relevant Director
Businesses will not result in any substantial competition issues
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the other
Directors or their associates engaged in any business (other
than the business of our Group) which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
our Group, or had any interest therein, which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as of December
31, 2024.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

According to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the details of the
continuing connected transactions of the Company during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

1. Property Lease

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
“Framework Property
Lease Agreement”) with China Vanke (for itself and on

property lease agreement (the

behalf of members of the Retained China Vanke Group
and their respective associates). Accordingly, we will
lease certain properties from members of the Retained
China Vanke Group (including their respective associates)
for office use (the “Property Lease”). The Framework
Property Lease Agreement has a term commencing from
2024, which may be

renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to

the Listing Date to December 31,
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations.
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The annual caps payable to members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates by
our Group in respect of the Framework Property Lease
Agreement for the three years ended December 31, 2024
were RMB28 million, RMB48 million and RMB68 million,
respectively.

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under
the Framework Property Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s
expenses on leasing certain properties from members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates for office use amounted to RMB66.7 million,
which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB68 million.

Property Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
property services agreement (“Framework Property
Services Agreement”) with China Vanke (for itself and
on behalf of members of the Retained China Vanke Group
and their respective associates), pursuant to which our
Group agreed to provide property services to members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates, including (i) residential property services in
respect of the unsold residential properties developed and
to be developed by members of the Retained China Vanke
Group and their respective associates; and (ii) property and
facility management services in respect of the commercial
properties owned or used by members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates (the
“Property Services”). The Framework Property Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date
to December 31, 2024, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The annual caps payable to our Group by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates in respect of the Framework Property Services
Agreement for the three years ended December 31, 2024
were RMB936 million, RMB1,078 million and RMB1,244
million, respectively.

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under
the Framework Property Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2024, the total
revenue from property services provided by our Group to
members of the Retained China Vanke Group and their
respective associates was RMB1,217.5 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB1,244 million.

Value-added Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
value-added services agreement (“Framework
Value-added Services Agreement”) with China Vanke
(for itself and on behalf of members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide value-added
services to the properties owned or used by members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates, including but not limited to (i) sale center
and model room management services; (ii) predelivery
support services; and (iii) building maintenance services
in respect of the properties developed by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates (the “"Value-added Services”). The Framework
Value-added Services Agreement has a term commencing
from the Listing Date to December 31, 2024, which may
be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject
to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations.
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The annual caps payable to our Group by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates in respect of the Framework Value-added
Services Agreement for the three years ended December
31, 2024 were RMB2,729 million, RMB2,706 million and
RMB2,703 million, respectively.

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under the
Framework Value-added Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2024, the total
revenue from value-added services provided by our Group
to members of the Retained China Vanke Group and their
respective associates was RMB1,462.2 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB2,703 million.

AloT and BPaa$S Solution Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework AloT
and BPaaS solution services agreement (the “Framework
AloT and BPaa$S Solution Services Agreement”) with
China Vanke (for itself and on behalf of members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates), pursuant to which we agreed to provide AloT
and BPaaS solution services of (i) design, construction,
operation and maintenance of smart property equipment
and system, and related services (such as smart property
consultancy services and integrated smart space solutions);
and (ii) remote space operation services (such as intelligent
urban space workflow management services and operation
data analysis services) to members of the Retained China
Vanke Group and their respective associates (the “AloT
and BPaa$S Solution Services”). The Framework AloT
and BPaaS Solution Services Agreement has a term
commencing from the Listing Date to December 31,
2024, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.
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The annual caps payable to our Group by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates in respect of the Framework AloT and BPaaS
Solution Services Agreement for the three years ended
December 31, 2024 were RMB1,029 million, RMB1,237
million and RMB1,373 million, respectively.

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under the
Framework AloT and BPaaS Solution Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company. During the year ended December 31, 2024,
the total revenue from AloT and BPaaS solution services
provided by our Group to members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates was
RMB481.5 million, which did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB1,373 million.

Property Agency Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
property agency services agreement (the “Framework
Property Agency Services Agreement”) with China
Vanke (for itself and on behalf of members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property agency
services to members of the Retained China Vanke Group
and their respective associates, and receive service fees
as consideration. The property agency services mainly
include conducting marketing and sale activities, sourcing
potential clients to enter into property sale and purchase
agreements in respect of (i) the residential and commercial
property units; and (ii) the carpark space and other
properties developed and to be developed by members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates (the “Property Agency Services”). The
Framework Property Agency Services Agreement has a
term commencing from the Listing Date to December 31,
2024, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.
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The expected maximum service fees payable to our Group
by members of the Retained China Vanke Group and
their respective associates in respect of the Framework
Property Agency Services Agreement and maximum daily
balance of the Deposits payable by our Group to members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates for the three years ended December 31, 2024
are as follows:

Annual Caps of Service Fees
Maximum Daily Balance of the
Deposits

HZE20245F12831BIE=EAEE -
BTERNEEREQARREZAHE
A ERIBIRSIER HE R AEE
AWM EBERREEERNEE MK
TENEEREARKESEBHEA
SRS BAREESRIIINT

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2023 2024
20224 20234 20245
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETT INGLAwE
410,000 447,000 496,000
1,643,056 1,643,056 1,643,056

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under
the Framework Property Agency Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company. During the year ended December 31, 2024,
the total revenue from property agency services provided
by our Group to members of the Retained China Vanke
Group and their respective associates was RMB274.4
million, which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB496
million. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the
maximum daily balance of the Deposits paid by our Group
to members of the Retained China Vanke Group and their
respective associates was RMB1,562.0 million, which did
not exceed the cap of RMB1,643 million.

ERERARRINIERRE - A
RAaMEEALT - Bt - MERRE
RIBIER B ZEIE N ETHRXHENA
RAMPBEBRERS - REZE2024
F12A31BLEEEAR  XEERER
TEREEKEARRESEHEA
REMERERBBRAREASARKE
274 4B 8L ReBABBFEL
RARMKA6EETT - RBIE20245F
AMBLEFEER: A&EBRHBRTE
MEEKBERAAIRESAEBEALN
EZeHWEBHRaEHRABARK1,562.0
BEL ZeBABBERARK
1,643HETT °
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As the above-mentioned framework agreements
(collectively, the “2022 Framework Agreements”)
expired on December 31, 2024, the Company (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
new framework agreements (collectively, the “2025
Framework Agreements”) with China Vanke (for
itself and on behalf of the member companies of
China Vanke Group and their respective contacts) on
December 12, 2024, to renew the 2022 Framework
Agreements. The term of the agreements is from January
1, 2025 to December 31, 2027. For details of the 2025
Framework Agreements, please refer to the Company’s
announcement and circular dated December 13, 2024,
respectively. As the highest applicable percentage ratio of
the proposed annual caps of the new Framework Property
Services Agreement, the new Framework Value-added
Services Agreement and the new Framework Property
Agency Services Agreement (i.e., non-exempt continuing
connected transactions) exceeds 5%, the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions are subject to the
requirements of reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company's extraordinary
general meeting was held on December 31, 2024, and the
independent shareholders approved all the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions at the meeting.

CONFIRMATION FROM OUR
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed that these transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
or better commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing these transactions on the terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

EBNEERMERBRMOER AT 2024FFH
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CONFIRMATION FROM THE AUDITOR

The Company's auditor has been engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The letter with unqualified
opinion issued by the auditor in respect of the results and
conclusions of the review of the disclosed continuing connected
transactions is set out below:

(a) nothing material has been found that would prevent the
disclosed continuing connected transactions from being
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(b) in respect of connected transactions relating to the
provision of goods or services by the Group, it is not found
that the Group has not entered into the transactions in
accordance with the pricing policy of the Group in all
material aspects;

(0) nothing material has been found that would lead it to
believe that the transactions have not been entered into
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing such continuing connected transactions in all
material aspects; and

(d) in respect of the total amount of all continuing connected
transactions, nothing material has been found that
would lead them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the relevant caps
for the year ended December 31, 2024.

o B8 Bl R

AABEEZEBZEE REFLGHMOE
M 2 BB RERIBERE 30005 (EF])
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The details of the continuing connected transactions of the
Company during the Reporting Period are as follows:

1.

BYnE=E

Wuhan Xintang Equity Transfer
Agreement
On November 1, 2024, Zhuhai Maode Chengtou
Commercial Development Co., Ltd. (Bk/&m#EH R
FEEZEEAEMRAA) (“Zhuhai Maode Chengtou”)
and Shenzhen Onewo Business Enterprise Space
Technology Co., Ltd. CRYITTEYEB=REHRBR R E])
("Onewo Business Enterprlse Space Technology”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Equity Transfer Agreement. Pursuant to the Equity
Transfer Agreement, Zhuhai Maode Chengtou agreed to
sell to the Purchaser (Onewo Business Enterprise Space
Technology), and the Purchaser agreed to purchase from
the Vendor, 50% of the equity interests in Wuhan Xintang
Gongxiang Business Management Co., Ltd. (BZEHE &
HEEEEERAR) (“Wuhan Xintang”) free from all
encumbrances. The consideration was RMB150,000,000,
representing the sum of the value of 50% of the equity
interest of Wuhan Xintang and the value of the principal
and interest of existing shareholder loan claims of Zhuhai
Maode Chengtou in Wuhan Xintang inherited by Onewo
Business Enterprise Space Technology.

The Company and China Vanke had trade receivables and
other balances with related parties, and after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties, the parties agreed to use
the assets of the Target Project of RMB150,000,000 to
offset the due and receivable amount of RMB150,000,000
in respect of the aforesaid balances with related parties.
The transaction would be effected by the purchase of
50% equity interest in Wuhan Xintang held by Zhuhai
Maode Chengtou by Onewo Business Enterprise Space
Technology, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
thereby realizing that the Company indirectly holds 50%
interest in all the assets (including the Target Project)
under the name of Wuhan Xintang. The Target Project
is located within the “Tangjiadun Street” of Onewo
It is expected to retain a relative possibility of
asset appreciation in the future by virtue of the relative
advantage of the high density of Onewo Town.

Town.
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China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. Zhuhai Maode Chengtou is a holding subsidiary
of China Vanke. Therefore, China Vanke and Zhuhai
Maode Chengtou are each a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transaction contemplated under the Equity Transfer
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the transaction contemplated under
the Equity Transfer Agreement exceed 0.1% but all
are less than 5%, the transaction contemplated under
the Equity Transfer Agreement is therefore subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements, but is
exempted from the circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated November 1, 2024 and
December 26, 2024 respectively.

Shanghai Xiangda Equity Transfer
Agreement

On November 29, 2024, Shanghai Vanke Investment
(“Shanghai Vanke Investment”) and Onewo Business
Enterprise Space Technology entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement. Pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, Shanghai Vanke Investment agreed to sell
to Onewo Business Enterprise Space Technology, and
Onewo Business Enterprise Space Technology agreed
to purchase from Shanghai Vanke Investment, 45% of
the equity interests in Shanghai Xiangda free from all
encumbrances. The initial consideration was RMB712.0440
million. The final purchase price of the equity transfer will
be determined in accordance with the PRC Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and its current assets
and liabilities as set out in the audited statement of net
assets prepared for Shanghai Xiangda as of the closing
date.
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The Company and China Vanke had trade receivables and
other balances with related parties, and after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties, the parties agreed to use
part of the consideration of this transfer to offset the due
and receivable amount of RMB590 million in respect of
the aforesaid balances with related parties. The transaction
would be effected by the purchase of 45% equity interests
in Shanghai Xiangda held by Shanghai Vanke Investment
by Onewo Business Enterprise Space Technology, thereby
achieving the result that the Company indirectly holds
45% interests in all assets (including the Target Project)
of Shanghai Xiangda. The Target Project is located in the
core area of Lujiazui, Shanghai, with a strong purchasing
power of the neighboring consumer groups and great
commercial potential. In addition, it is a commercial
complex with business patterns covering shopping malls
and office premises, with shopping malls contributing to
the mutually beneficial development model of “Onewo
Towns + Community Business” for Onewo.

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. Shanghai Vanke Investment is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Vanke. Therefore, China Vanke and
Shanghai Vanke Investment are connected persons of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transaction contemplated under the Equity Transfer
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the transaction contemplated under
the Equity Transfer Agreement, after aggregating with
the previous transactions, exceed 0.1% but all are less
than 5%, the transaction contemplated under the Equity
Transfer Agreement is therefore subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements, but is exempted from
the circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated November 29, 2024
and January 6, 2025.
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Wanyi Commercial Management Equity
Transfer Agreement

On December 26, 2024, Beijing Lianwanxiang
Construction Technology Co., Ltd. (It REtEZRERK
BIRAF]) (“Lianwanxiang Construction Technology”)
and Beijing Vanke Service Co., Ltd. (It RBRIERE
BIRAF]) ("Beijing Vanke Service”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement. Pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, Lianwanxiang Construction Technology agreed
to sell to Beijing Vanke Service, and Beijing Vanke Service
agreed to purchase from Lianwanxiang Construction
Technology, 100% of the equity interests in Beijing Wanyi
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (At REBBEEETER
R 2 7A]) (“Wanyi Commercial Management”) free from
all encumbrances, at a consideration of RMB55 million.

The Company and China Vanke had trade receivables
and other balances with related parties, and after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties, the parties
agreed that the payment of the transfer consideration of
RMB55,000,000 is subject to the Vendor and its related
parties repaying the due and receivable amount of
RMB55,000,000 in respect of the aforesaid balances with
related parties to the Purchaser and its related parties.
The transaction would be effected by the purchase of
100% equity interests in Wanyi Commercial Management
by Beijing Vanke Service, thereby achieving the result
that the Company indirectly holds 100% interests in all
assets (including the Target Project) of Wanyi Commercial
Management. By entering into the Equity Transfer
Agreement, the Company will be able to recover the
existing debts owed by China Vanke and/or its related
parties.

3.
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China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. Wanyi Commercial Management is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Vanke. Therefore,
China Vanke and Wanyi Commercial Management are
connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transaction contemplated under
the Equity Transfer Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction
contemplated under the Equity Transfer Agreement, after
aggregating with the previous transactions, exceed 0.1%
but all are less than 5%, the transaction contemplated
under the Equity Transfer Agreement is therefore subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements, but is
exempted from the circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated December 26, 2024.

Fuke Industrial Equity Transfer
Agreement

On December 30, 2024, Shenzhen Vanke Industrial
Development Co., Ltd. ORI EREZZREBR A F)
(“Vanke Industrial Development”) and Shenzhen Vanke
Property Service Co., Ltd. (XYM BRIYIZERBEBR A AD)
(“Shenzhen Vanke Service”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement. Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement,
Vanke Industrial Development agreed to sell to Shenzhen
Vanke Service, and Shenzhen Vanke Service agreed to
purchase from Vanke Industrial Development, 75% of
the equity interests in Fuke Industrial (“Fuke Industrial”)
free from all encumbrances. The initial consideration
was RMB142,074,225. The final purchase price of the
equity transfer will be determined in accordance with
the PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and the net assets in the audited balance sheet of Fuke
Industrial prepared as of the date when the industrial
and commercial change registration procedures (including
changes in equity and personnel) involved in the equity
transfer are completed and the business license is
obtained.
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Given that the Company and China Vanke had trade
receivables and other balances with related parties, and
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties, the
parties agreed to offset the due and receivable amount
from the balance of the aforesaid related parties of
RMB142,074,225 with the assets of the Target Project at
the amount of RMB142,074,225. The transaction would
be effected by the purchase of 75% equity interest in
Fuke Industrial held by Shenzhen Vanke Industrial by
Shenzhen Vanke Service, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, thereby achieving the result that the Company
indirectly holds 30% interest in the Target Project.

China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of
the Company. Vanke Industrial Development is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Vanke. Therefore,
China Vanke and Vanke Industrial Development are
connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transaction contemplated under
the Equity Transfer Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction
contemplated under the Equity Transfer Agreement, after
aggregating with the previous transaction, exceed 0.1%
but all are less than 5%, the transaction contemplated
under the Equity Transfer Agreement is therefore subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements, but is
exempted from the circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated December 30, 2024.
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Asset Acquisition Agreement

On December 30, 2024, Shenyang Vanke Yongan Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (BEGBEKEZEHABREAF]) (“Yongan
Real Estate”) and Shenyang Puyu Real Estate Agent
Service Co., Ltd. (BB TEEEEFNMREER QA
(“Shenyang Puyu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Asset Acquisition Agreement.
Pursuant to the Asset Acquisition Agreement, Yongan Real
Estate agreed to sell to Shenyang Puyu, and Shenyang
Puyu agreed to purchase from Yongan Real Estate all
rights and interests of the Target Property for a total
consideration of RMB150,000,000.

The Company and China Vanke had trade receivables and
other balances with related parties, and after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties, the parties agreed to use
the acquisition consideration to pay the due and receivable
amount of RMB63 million in respect of the aforesaid
balances with related parties. The transaction would
be effected by the purchase of all rights and interests
of the Target Property by Shenyang Puyu from Yongan
Real Estate. The Target Property is located at No. 212
Changbaishan Road, Heping District, Shenyang City, and
is the first centralized business community in Changbai
Island, which is located in Changbai Street, Onewo Towns.
Upon the completion of the transaction, the operation of
the Target Property can be further improved by leveraging
on the strategic advantages of Onewo Towns.
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China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. Yongan Real Estate is a subsidiary of China
Vanke. Therefore, China Vanke and Yongan Real Estate
are connected persons of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction contemplated
under the Asset Acquisition Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company. As one or more
of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
transaction contemplated under the Asset Acquisition
Agreement, after aggregating with the previous
transactions, exceed 0.1% but all are less than 5%, the
transaction contemplated under the Asset Acquisition
Agreement is therefore subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempted from
the circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated December 30, 2024.

Debt Settlement Agreements

On December 30, 2024, certain subsidiaries and related
parties of the Group entered into a series of debt
settlement agreements with each of the vendors and
debtors, pursuant to which each of the vendors and
debtors agreed to settle certain payables owed by each of
the vendors and/or debtors to certain subsidiaries of the
Group, by transferring properties or car parking spaces to
certain subsidiaries of the Group. The total consideration
for such Debt Settlement Agreements amounts to
RMB702,654,617.

The Company and China Vanke had trade receivables
and other balances with related parties, and after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties, the parties agreed
to offset the matured receivables of RMB689,928,063
in the abovementioned balances with related parties in
respect of the Settlement Properties at the amount of
RMB702,654,617. Meanwhile, as the income and expense
of certain development projects are independently
managed by the related joint ventures, the difference of
RMB4,254,287 from the consideration for acquisition will
be paid through offsetting the business payment which
should be prepaid by each vendors and/or debtors to the
Group, and the rest of the consideration, amounting to
RMB8,472,267 will be paid by the Group.
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China Vanke is the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. Save as disclosed in the in the Company’s
announcement dated December 30, 2024, each of the
vendors and debtors is ultimately controlled by China
Vanke through certain companies, or is an associated
company or joint venture or co-managed companies
operated by China Vanke and independent third parties,
thus China Vanke and each of the relevant vendors
and debtors are connected persons of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transactions
contemplated under the Debt Settlement Agreements
constitute connected transactions of the Company.
As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
in respect of the transaction contemplated under the
Debt Settlement Agreements exceed 0.1% but all are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under
the Debt Settlement Agreements are therefore subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempted from the circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated December 30, 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2024 is contained in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
this annual report.

With respect of the note 34 to “Related Party Transactions”
to the consolidated financial statements contained in the
annual report, those transactions which constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company have been disclosed above or constitute fully exempted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of
the Company due to all applicable percentage ratios are less than
0.1%. The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements
for connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the
Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements of our Group in this annual report, “Directors’
and Supervisors’ Service Contracts”, “Directors’ Interests in
Competing Businesses” and the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions”, none
of the Directors, Supervisors or any entity connected with a
Director or Supervisor was materially interested, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, and which subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no contract
of significance entered into between the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, and a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.
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MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Main risks and uncertainties the Group is exposed to include,
among others, that:

Faster business growth of the Company
is associated with macroeconomic
environment.

Space technology service is our focus in business development,
which covers community space living consumption services,
commercial and urban space integrated services, AloT and
BPaaS solution services. Such businesses development is largely
depended on general economic trend and market conditions,
subject to factors including, but not limited to periodical
fluctuations in economy, adjustments to macroeconomic policies,
transformation of economic structure and changes in local fiscal
revenue and expenditure; changes in real estate conditions and
fluctuations in levels of consumer spending locally; adjustments
to relevant laws and regulations.

Fluctuation in consumer confidence index, progressing of policies
on subsidized rental housing, adjustment to charging standards
for residential property services and other industrial policies,
commercial enterprises’ cutting budget for facility operation
and maintenance due to reduction in capital expenditures, and
other risks arising from force majeure events, such as geopolitical
conflict and extreme weather conditions, may have material
impact on economic fundamentals and market's supply and
demand pattern, which will extrude both of business growth
profile and profitability resilience of the Company.
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"Flexible” pricing product may have impact
on gross profits.

Vanke Service launched its new product featuring flexible pricing,
aiming to drive revenue growth through expansion of market,
and optimize profitability structure levering on technology
empowerment. However, flexible pricing product relies on AloT
equipment (such as Lingshi system) and digital infrastructure,
requiring continuing efforts on research and development and
upgrading, which will dilute profit margins in short term. It
takes time to adapt such flexible pricing model for property
owners, and additional communication costs (such as explaining
the service list and adjusting pricing mechanism) may incur at
early stage, which will affect operational efficiency. In addition,
long-term stability in revenue shall be enhanced by strengthening
customer retention. Meanwhile, low-price competition may arise
if there are similar model emerge in the industry, which will
further reduce gross margins.

Building up the “Ecosystem of Onewo Town"”
may compress profits in short term.

We are gradually elevating our dimension from property
management to capital management, expanding to upstream
and downstream service chain. We break the physical boundary
between residential, commercial and urban services by building
community service ecosystem based on a network with 600 +
Onewo Towns, realizing dynamic scheduling for cross-industry
personnel and resource recycling. However, eco-synergy requires
continuing updates for infrastructures, which may give rise to
fluctuation in our profit in short term.
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As our core strategy resources, brand and
reputation have direct influence on market’s
valuation on the Company’s values. Any
negative public sentiment or brand events
may cause eroding confidence and business
fluctuation.

Brand is a kind of core strategy resource of the Company.
We carry out community space living consumption services,
commercial and urban space integrated services, AloT and BPaa$S
solution services mainly drawing on “Vanke Service (B&I#7%)",
“Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service (8#2177)", “City Up”
and “Vanrui IntelliTech (B&%H%)" brand names, and expand
related business. Customer acquisition and retention ability is
highly relied on integrated feedback scores from markets on
service quality, management effectiveness, ESG practice and
emergency response ability, so that the improved brand value
is directly related to market share and premium capacity. The
existing brand system is exposed to two risks: on the one hand,
as certain trademarks, such as “Vanke Service”, are licensed
by China Vanke Group, any undue behavior or negative public
sentiment of relevant entities may result in decreased brand
value; on the other hand, at digital era, brand communication
demonstrates a exponential spreading, therefore, unexpected
accidents of service or disputes in management may give rise to

reputation crisis through social media.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance procedures in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations which
have a significant influence on the Group. As at the date of this
annual report, save as disclosed herein, the Group has complied
with, in all material respects, all relevant and applicable PRC laws
and regulations governing the property management business.
The Group has obtained all licenses, permits and certificates for
conducting its business operations.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group was not involved
in and the Board of Directors was not aware of any non -
compliance incidents which may have adverse effect on the value
of the Group therein.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF OUR COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of
Directors, Supervisors and senior management in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of our Company or its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance), which were required to be entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, under the Model Code (as defined
below), to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:
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Interest in Shares of the Company RAEQXTRDHIESE

Approximate
percentage in the

total share
Nature of Class of Number of capital of our
Name Title interest Shares Shares™ Company®
AN TRAERE
HE Bifu EHMtE R4 %8 Bl RGHEED HERN B D@
Mr. Zhu Baoquan® Executive Interest in H Shares 20,000,000(L) 1.71%
Director, controlled
the chairman corporations
of the Board
and the
general
manager
KREFED WITESE - REELEE#EZE HR 20,000,000(L) 1.71%
BER
Feumisin
Mr. Yao Jinbo® Non-executive  Beneficial owner H Shares 11,848,934(L) 1.01%
Director
PSR AW FRITES EnEAA HA% 11,848,934(L) 1.01%
Ms. Xiang Yun Chairperson of Beneficial owner H Shares 589,959(L) 0.05%
the Board of
Supervisors
mERZ L EEEIE EnEAA HA% 589,959(L) 0.05%
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(L) —long position

The approximate percentage of total share capital in the Company
was calculated based on the total number of issued Shares, which
was 1,171,565,329 H Shares as of December 31, 2024.

As of December 31, 2024, Spring Wind Blows Limited
("SWBLHK") held 20,000,000 Shares of the Company. SWBLHK
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Spring Wind Blows Limited.
Mr. Zhu Baoquan, our chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and the general manager of our Company, holds 100%
of interests in Spring Wind Blows Limited. Therefore, Mr. Zhu
Baoquan is deemed to be interested in the 20,000,000 Shares of
the Company held by SWBLHK pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Dream Landing Holdings Limited (“Dream Landing”) held
11,848,934 Shares of the Company. Dream Landing is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Dream Warrior Inc., which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of 58.com Inc.. 58.com Inc.
is ultimately controlled by Mr. Yao Jinbo, our non-executive
Director. Therefore, Mr. Yao Jinbo is deemed to be interested in
the 11,848,934 Shares of the Company held by Dream Landing
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Interest in Underlying Shares of Associated A 7S & 5] #8 B 5% B #H B8 IR 10 0O #E
=

Corporations of Our Company

Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in Approximate
the relevant  percentage of
class of the shareholding

underlying in the total
shares of share capital
Name of the relevant of the relevant
associated  Nature of Class of Number of associated associated
Name Title corporation interest Shares Shares™”  corporation®  corporation®?
LB R
EEEEER EE B
LR HERGH ZERAEEN
] B =g EmEtE ROER BROHED BAKFRAI L BOBREIL
Ms. Han Huihua Supervisor  China Vanke Beneficial A shares 141,000 (L) 0.0014% 0.0012%
owner
BEELT S BRI ERBEEA AR 141,000 (L) 0.0014% 0.0012%
Notes: Hiat -
(1) (L) —long position (1 L — e
(2) The total issued shares of China Vanke was 11,930,709,471  (2) HZE2024%12A31H BRI EB®T
shares as of December 31, 2024, comprising 9,724,196,533 R 428 A11,930,709,47 1% - &
A shares (including 72,955,992 treasury A shares) and 9,724,196,533 AR (KX B81572,955,992 %
2,206,512,938 H shares. ARRETFRR ) %2,206,512,938 AR HARAE AL -
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As of December 31, 2024, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, Supervisors or senior management of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
which were required, under the Model Code (as defined below),
to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS®
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

Long Position in Shares of the Company

As of December 31, 2024, as far as the Company is aware, as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
other than our Directors, Supervisors or senior management of
the Company, the following persons hold 5% or more interests
in the Shares or underlying shares:
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Approximate
percentage in the
total share
capital of
Number of Shares®  our Company®
O
Capacity/Nature 54/ Class of R EM
Name £ of interest BRkE Shares  RAER Rigaw BaEate
China Vanke? ERipgo0 Beneficial owner A A HShares  Hk 600,000,000 (1) 51.21%
Interest in SEAEES H Shares  HiR 60,602,000 (L) 5.17%
controlled
corporations
Shenzhen Wanhuguanyuan MImEMFRER AR AT Beneficial owner  EREBA H Shares  Hik 35,602,000 (L) 3.04%
Management Consulting Co,, — ([BRIRE)"
(td. ("Wanhugquanyuan")"
Shenzhen Wanqing Management  FHIMEIBEERHAER L Beneficial owner ~ E#fiEg A H Shares  HIR 5,000,000 (L) 0.43%
Consulting Co, Ltd. ([
("Wanqing")"
Shenzhen Wanhu Management AT EAIEEAHER L Beneficial owner  E&EHBA H Shares  Hik 5,000,000 (L) 0.43%
Consulting Co., Ltd. (Bl
("Wanhu")"
Shenzhen Wanmazhengian  FHIMESFLEERAER Beneficial owner  EXEAA H Shares  Hik 5,000,000 (L) 0.43%
Management Consulting Co,, A ([BEZ%])"
Ltd. ("Wanmazhengxian")"
Shenzhen Yingda Investment A MREREESEEER AT Beneficial owner ~ E#fiEg A H Shares  HIR 5,000,000 (L) 0.43%
Fund Management Co, Ltd.  ([BEREES))V
("Yingda Investment
Fund")"
Interest in REEEES H Shares  Hik 55,602,000 (1) 5.17%
controlled
corporations
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Approximate
percentage in the
total share
capital of
Number of Shares®  our Company®
AT
Capacity/Nature 54/ Class of R EM
Name £8 of interest BEHE Shares  RHYERI RHgR®W BHEARE
Shenzhen Wanshuzhimiao AMER Y EREAER AT Beneficial owner ~ EXEBA HShares  HER 5,000,000 (L) 0.43%
Management Consulting Co,,  ([BBzi )0
Ltd. ("Wanshuzhimiao")"
Radiant Sunbeam Limited® Radiant Sunbeam Limited® Beneficial owner  EREFA H Shares  HIk 182,473,233 (L) 15.58%
Bumper Harvest Limited® Bumper Harvest Limited® Interest in SELEER H Shares  HR 182,473,233 (1) 15.58%
controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Fund Il LP.# Boyu Capital Fund Il LP.% Interest in REREESR H Shares  HIR 182,473,233 (1) 15.58%
controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital General Partner Il Boyu Capital General Partner I, LP.® Interest in FEERER H Shares  HiX 182,473,233 (1) 15.58%
Lp® controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital General Partner Ill,  Boyu Capital General Partner lll, Ltd®  Interest in SELEER H Shares  Hik 182,473,233 (L) 15.58%
[td.? controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Group Holdings ~ Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd®  Interest in REEEER H Shares  HI 186,475,833 (1) 15.92%
[td.® controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Investment Boyu Capital Investment Interest in controlled  FEEER H Shares  HX 4,002,600 (1) 0.34%
Management Limited® Management Limited® corporations

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024 107




108

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Notes:

(A)

(L) —long position

The approximate percentage of shareholding in the Company was
calculated based on the total number of issued Shares, which was
1,171,565,329 H Shares as of December 31, 2024.

Each of Wanhuquanyuan, Wanging, Wanhu, Wanmazhengxian,
Yingda Investment Fund and Wanshuzhimiao is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Vanke. As such, China Vanke is deemed
to be interested in the shares of our Company held by each of
Wanhuquanyuan, Wanging, Wanhu, Wanmazhengxian, Yingda
Investment Fund and Wanshuzhimiao pursuant to the SFO.

These 7,310,200 H Shares were repurchased by the Company
and held as treasury shares, representing approximately 0.62%
of total share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2024.
As of December 31, 2024, China Vanke controlled one-third or
more of the voting rights at general meetings of the Company
and therefore was taken to have an interest in these H Shares as
treasury shares pursuant to the SFO.

Radiant Sunbeam Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bumper Harvest Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Boyu
Capital Fund I, L.P. and Boyu Capital General Partner Ill, L.P. is
the general partner of Boyu Capital Fund Ill, L.P.. Boyu Capital
General Partner Ill, Ltd. is the general partner of Boyu Capital
General Partner Ill, L.P. and Boyu Capital General Partner lll,
Ltd. is wholly owned by Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd.. As
such, each of Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd., Boyu Capital
General Partner Ill, Ltd., Boyu Capital General Partner Ill, L.P.,
Boyu Capital Fund Ill, L.P. and Bumper Harvest Limited is deemed
to be interested in the shares of our Company held by Radiant
Sunbeam Limited pursuant to the SFO. In addition, Boyu Capital
Investment Management Limited holds 100% of management
shares of two investment funds, which in aggregate hold less
than 5% of Shares in the total share capital in the Company as of
December 31, 2024, while Boyu Capital Investment Management
Limited is wholly owned by Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd. As
such, each of Boyu Capital Investment Management Limited and
Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd. is also deemed to be interested
in the Shares of the Company held by such investment funds
pursuant to the SFO.
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Save as disclosed in this report, as of December 31, 2024, the
Company had not been notified by any person (other than a
Director, a Supervisor or senior management of the Company)
that he had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares, which was required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2024, revenue from the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 9.5% of the
total revenue of the Group, while revenue from the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total
revenue of the Group.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2024, purchases from the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 15.2%
of the total cost of the Group, while purchases from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchase of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that its employees, customers and suppliers
are critical to the sustainable development of the Group,
therefore we will deeply integrate the synergetic development
with all stakeholders into the corporate governance system.
We will build a more resilient and sustainable development
ecosystem by enhancing the participation mechanism, improving
the long-term and effective communication platform and
strengthening the value creation capability. The Group has
thoroughly implemented the strategy of talent-based corporate
development, and regarded the appreciation of human capital as
the core driver for high-quality development of the enterprise.
We attach great importance to the overall well-being of our
employees and are committed to creating a fair, safe and
inclusive workplace, ensuring that they are fairly recognized and
rewarded for their individual achievements and ample career
growth space.

In order to constantly improve employees’ professional capability
and overall quality, the Group will systematically establish a
high-quality training and development system to ensure that
all employees can keep abreast of the latest development
trend in the market and industry, so as to improve their work
efficiency and achieve their personal growth and development.
In the meantime, we firmly believe that a good relationship
with customers is the cornerstone of corporate success, thus
establishing a rigorous and optimized customer complaint
handling mechanism and conducting customer satisfaction
surveys as an important measure of service quality to ensure
timely follow-up and implementation of customer opinions.

The Group regards supply chain partners as a strategic
community for the co-creation of corporate value, and strives to
build a stable and sustainable relationship featuring mutual trust
and mutual assistance to ensure a stable supply of raw materials.
Business bonds were strengthened through communication and
collaboration mechanisms to achieve improvement in product
quality and delivery efficiency. Such measures have not only
enhanced the overall competitiveness of the supply chain, but
also strengthened the Group’s competitive advantage and
leading position in the market.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551

B ENBRE

AEERH#D  BE  EBEFPFLHEHUSKE
SERREENBEARTE - B MSEMR
BERNEHBRBERRAEBARFIERER -
BRTESEKS  BRERMBRTS - =
LEERIERES  BEEAIHDUENAFESR
RARE - ARBARABRAT BD Hﬂ)\jj
BAREEREESEERRNZ OB -
BPSEERETHBEREL  BOANER
DF¥ 2R BRNIESH - WERA

REAKABESRIERNRRMEZR - ARE
BEHBEREZM -

BIKBERTEENERENNGESRE
AEERGEESEENIIREERER - #
RATE B TRESNBERMIGENRE R IT A -
MR TIEREE - WO EBRBEAKK
HER - R RMAREETPHRFERE
REERINER AU ERZETENE
PiRFRIE#S  YKARESPMEERE
VEB@?%HH%E%E’UE%%R  REREER
EEERFRER -

$’$ B 46 AR AS 1 T%AT’E%§1¥7EBA¥ETE

HAWBE KRR  ENREFERE - &
EEE)JE’U’SVEE%% VABEOR R #HE FE AR

o BBAERBIFREIERRGAT  BR
EnEEMIMRERERTT - tRERTE
R T HEEMNEBEET  ANDBIERT
AREBAET ST EFELMFRAL -



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended December 31, 2024, no contract had been
entered into by the Company in respect of the management and
administration of the Company as a whole or any significant part
of the business of the Company, nor did any contract subsist.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

For the year ended December 31, 2024, none of our Directors or
their respective spouses or children under the age of 18 had been
granted any right to acquire benefits by means of the purchase
of shares or debentures of the Company, nor had they exercised
any of such rights. In addition, neither the Company, its holding
company nor any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries had
entered into any arrangement to enable the Directors to obtain
such rights in respect of any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION
OF THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

On May 10, 2024, the annual general meeting of the Company
considered and approved the grant of general mandate to the
Board to repurchase H shares (the “H Shares”) of the Company
(the “May 2024 Repurchase Mandate”). The amount of H
Shares repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
H Shares in issue as at the date of the annual general meeting.
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With effect from June 11, 2024, the Listing Rules have been
amended, among other things, to remove the requirement to
cancel repurchase shares and to adopt a framework to govern
the resale of treasury shares. In view of the amendments of
the Listing Rules and in order to grasp market opportunities,
the Board recommends approval of the granting of a general
mandate to the Board to repurchase the H Shares. On
September 27, 2024, the grant of general mandate to the
Board to repurchase H Shares (“September 2024 Repurchase
Mandate”) was considered and approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company. Therefore, if the Company
repurchases any H Shares pursuant to the September 2024
Repurchase Mandate, the Company will either (i) cancel the H
Shares repurchased and reduce the Company’s registered capital
by an amount equivalent to the aggregate nominal value of the
H Shares so cancelled, and/or (ii) hold such H Shares as treasury
shares, subject to market conditions and the Company’s capital
management needs at the relevant time any repurchases of H
Shares are made. The H Shares repurchased shall not exceed
10% of the total number of H Shares in issue (excluding any
treasury shares and H Shares repurchased but not yet cancelled)
as at the date of the extraordinary general meeting. The May
2024 Repurchase Mandate lapsed on the same date.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company started the H FRIREHAN - NATIR2024F1 AOHHBE
Shares repurchase on January 9, 2024. As of December 31, FEHAXOEE « #{ZE 20244128318  AA 7
2024, the Company has repurchased 18,308,900 H Shares in RIREHAANE 2518 18,308,9000%8HAL -
total during the Reporting Period, representing 1.57% of the (§ZRNATEZE2024F12 831 BIRALAZ (1~
total share capital (excluding treasury shares) of the Company ‘BIEEFRMD) BELHIAE1.57% @ EZ{Tay48
as of December 31, 2024, and the total amount paid was ©%E8#)/4385,715,815.44%8 7 (TEX 58
approximately HK$385,715,815.44 (excluding transaction fees). F3) o BiE2024E 12 A31HILEE » HIZKE
For the year ended December 31, 2024, the monthly report on H  BEMIE AsRE W T -

Shares repurchase is as follows:

Number of Price per Share

Shares BRER Total

Repurchased Highest Lowest Amount

Month of Repurchase Ei& A 5] B iR & BS B BB
(HKS$/per Share) (HK$/per Share) (HK$)

(B, R) (B &) ()

January 2024 2024% 1R 959,300 21.60 20.30 20,192,150.57
February 2024 202442 R 600,000 19.00 17.22 10,743,060.00
March 2024 2024%3H 79,000 19.66 19.60 1,552,752.90
April 2024 2024F 4 A 2,203,600 19.04 17.28 39,648,478.12
May 2024 202445 H 300,000 24.25 23.45 7,183,080.00
June 2024 202456 H 1,344,600 24.00 23.15 31,815,107.29
July 2024 2024%F 7R 2,000,000 23.65 20.15 44,403,270.00
August 2024 202458 H 2,054,100 17.82 16.04 34,341,697.61
September 2024 2024%9H 1,458,100 20.20 16.98 26,798,124.80
October 2024 202410 A 3,101,700 27.20 23.25 78,826,020.57
November 2024 202411 A 2,708,500 23.05 21.20 59,813,073.58
December 2024 2024412 A 1,500,000 20.45 20.00 30,399,000.00

The Board believes that repurchase of shares under the current ZEFBEHE - EEAI MR NEBERO KERE
market conditions will demonstrate the Company’s confidence in AR RI¥ B HFEBERLKFSFTMELD + I
the development and prospects of its business and will ultimately EEARRNTZ @R ARREIEEER R -
benefit the Company and create a return of value for the TFEARRTIRKRRNEBER G -
shareholders, which is in the interests of the Company and the

shareholders as a whole.
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On April 29, 2024 and August 16, 2024, the Company cancelled
5,582,100 H Shares repurchased during the period from
December 11, 2023 to April 22, 2024 and 4,090,000 H Shares
repurchased during the period from April 23, 2024 to July 22,
2024, respectively. As of the Latest Practicable Date, 3,512,200
H Shares repurchased during the period from August 23, 2024 to
January 17, 2025 have not been cancelled.

As of December 31, 2024, 7,310,200 repurchased shares
have not been cancelled and are held by the Company as
treasury shares (as defined in the Listing Rules). As of the Latest
Practicable Date, 11,560,200 repurchased shares have not been
cancelled and are held by the Company as treasury shares (as
defined in the Listing Rules). If the Company intends to sell or
transfer H Shares in treasury, it shall proceed in accordance with
the Listing Rules and applicable PRC laws and regulations. The
Company did not sell or transfer any treasury shares during the
Reporting Period.

Save as set forth above, during the Reporting Period, the Group
and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company (including sale of treasury shares (as
defined in the Listing Rules)).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision under the Articles of Association or the
laws of the PRC (i.e. the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated) relating to pre-emptive rights that require the
Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders based on
the percentage of shareholding.

TAX RELIEF

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Company is not aware of
any tax relief available to any holders of the Company’s securities
as a result of holding such securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Group
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

Our journey as a company providing property services started
in 1990. Over the last three decades, we have established
a strong service culture as well as a customer-centric and
creative service team. We have further developed an inheritable
corporate culture and operating system centered on the values of

7]

“Service”, “Champion” and “Positivity”, which are crucial for us
to keep attracting and retaining talents that meet our business
development needs. In addition, the structure of our human
resources includes talents in areas such as customer service, sales
and marketing, research and operations, property and project
delivery, as well as functional support, forming a diversified and
all-rounded talent team that lays the foundation for our business

development.
Employee Diversity

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had 102,441 employees
(December 31, 2023: 101,284 employees), and the total staff
cost during the period was approximately RMB11,892.7 million.
Remuneration and benefits of the employees of the Group
include basic salaries, discretionary bonus, social security fund
and housing provident fund, which are determined based on
the nature of work, work performance and market conditions.
The Group also offers competitive remuneration and employee
stock ownership plan for its employees, especially key employees.
The Group is committed to creating favorable conditions in the
working environment in order to continue to maintain the gender
diversity of the Group’s employees. At present, the proportion of
male and female employees in the Group is relatively balanced,
with 55,147 male and 47,294 female employees (representing
53.83% and 46.17%), respectively. The Group strictly complies
with the various provisions of the Labor Law of the PRC (&
EARKEFELEL)), and has internally formulated the
Management Systems for Recruitment (BEEEHIE)) to
unify and standardize the employee recruitment process and

EER

AEERANEIELRERAFTRANANFE
WEREEARE | —5 -

BE K HMECR

HARE1990F L FTMERRFBIAR - FEL
30885 U T REMRBE XL - XWBET
—XNUEFPRTL - FERFTHRGEEK -
BFIE— LT A AFEE MRS
FIxFE-IRIBRLEEINEERDN
PEXCEELEE - FERSI ERBER
EBERFT2OATBM - 1o BHABDA
hEREBEREPREEBAR - HERE
HEAE  BIMEZEAER MERTRE
RNMBABRBEXHBAES  EKT %
Bt 2BRRANERXTERFTENATK
fh e

BT %t

HZE2024F12A318 » AEEHE 102,441
#Z BT (2023%12H31H :101,284%8
T) HHBEINANARK11,892.78
B -ASEEINTMNENSEERS
B - MBS RERAES  ERIEM
B IERBEMSEAME - XEBTA
BETILHEBARETREEHRF HOFH M
NMETHRE - ARBEBORELERE
FEEA RGNS NEERFEEES LR
ZaltihE - RREESHEEH MR
B ARAEFE  HPBHEMZEETA
£ Rl &55,147F147,294( 5 R1553.83%
M46.17%) - AEEBEFRER(PFEARHE
MBELBE)HSIERTE - NEHIE T (B
HEBHE) BEESA—HRBETHRER
2 BAMBEAEANRERR - RAR
FEEFNUEBINEEFES  EwBIE -
Rk &k - 45 - RBEDNERXXEE
S RO —KBRELC - AFEHF - EREBR

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

115




116

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

resolutely eliminate any forms of employment discrimination. We
deeply respect the unique background of every employee and
treat them equally and fairly regardless of nationality, ethnicity,
race, gender, religious belief or cultural background. During
the recruitment process, we always adhere to the principles of
diversity, co-fusion and meritocracy to recruit talents widely
and inject vitality into the Group’s continuous development.
We have a zero-tolerance attitude towards any discrimination in
the recruitment process and resolutely maintain a fair and just
recruitment environment to ensure that outstanding talents are
fairly attracted and introduced. We are committed to cultivating
a diverse talent team to provide strong intellectual support and
talent guarantee for the Group's development.

In accordance with the diversity policy, the Group has set the
following measurable goals:

o The Group is committed to maintaining a diverse balance
of skills, experience and perspectives in the process of
business growth. We pay special attention to ensuring the
recruitment and selection process for the Board and other
staff at all levels has complete structure, to attract and
input high-quality candidates with different backgrounds
for the Group to consider;

o The Nomination Committee is required to discuss regularly
(if applicable) and to review and agree measurable
indicators aimed at achieving diversity goals such as
gender diversity at the Board meeting, as well as to
put forward its recommendations to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the diversity policy
from time to time based on actual circumstances to ensure
its continued effectiveness. The Board had one female
Director, and is committed to maintaining gender diversity
as and when suitable candidates are identified.

The human resource-related department of the Group will
continue to monitor and review the gender proportion of
employees, and strive to maintain a balanced proportion of male
and female employees.
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EMPLOYEE TRAINING PLAN

Onewo built a broad development platform for employees.
According to the business needs and employees’ personal career
planning and development, a training system that is beneficial to
employees’ development was established to provide diversified
career development paths and learning opportunities.

1. "Onewo Dream” Development

The Group has launched the employee development
project since 2019 and built a multi-path development
mechanism with professionalization, diversification and full
business scenarios for front line employees, to encourage
them to explore new career paths and help them move to
a larger development stage and gain more labor income.
The Group provides front line employees with rich skill
trainings and diversified business direction choices, and
helps front line service staff transition to other positions
that are more skilled and more irreplaceable. During the
Reporting Period, the Group assisted 1,153 front line
employees to successfully transfer to grid coordinators,
asset coordinators, mechanical and electrical experts, and
digital operation, etc. Since the inception of the “Onewo
Dream” Development project in 2020, the Group has
successfully helped a total of 9,034 front line employees
transfer to other positions.

B THEIIF S

ENERBIRERTERAMNERTE R
EBETEUNRBTEARERSIRE 2T
BNREBETRRNEIER  RETRHS
THRBEERREANEBHRE -

1. [BETAIFER

AEBEB2019FBETRBETEHRIE
B EHMEEEI#EEZEL ZT
It  2EBISENZREEEKD
B QEEBET  BRBEFHE
¥ ERMMERNEANBRES -
BEESEZHEHKA - XEEAEE
BETRHEEEREFIMZTERS
MIEE - BH—ERBABEREME
REFEE  FATABERUENMAE
Ao EHAA - AEEHSN,153%
EEEBEIXNEREKNAMEBER - B
EER KEER - BTELF-H
200 [BR T4 P23 R E B MF
PAZR » AEB R HE 9,034 EE
BTINKIEM -

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

17




118

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Talent Training and Development

We are well aware that talent is the core driving force for
promoting the sustainable development of enterprises.
Therefore, we attach great importance to seeking and
empowering talents, and establish talent reserves for
key positions such as supervisor and manager. In 2024,
the Group continued to implement the prevailing talent
system, innovated constantly, optimized talent selection
mechanism, and improved the quality of talent selection,
to meet the requirement of business development better.
We established professional certification system standards
and provided on-the-job professional skill training and
first aid skill certification course to standardize the
improvement of employees’ capabilities and to ensure
that employees are equipped with necessary skills and
knowledge to play a key role when necessary. To promote
talent development, the Group planned and implemented
a series of talent training and development projects in
2024, including:

o Leadership training camp: helping new supervisors,
managers and directors improve their leadership
level, covering administrators at each level to
reserve talent echelons for the future;

o Professional certification system: the standards
of the ability certification system was issued in
accordance with ISO international standards to
optimize employees’ competence and ensure the
quality delivery of services;

o Key position ability certification: arranging key
positions in business operation to ensure that key
position personnel are equipped with professional
abilities required for;

o Market development training camp: assessment
and training for core market development positions
were carried out to promote the transformation
of trainees into more professional and specialized
market development teams, and strengthen market
competitiveness;
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o Digital compass project for talent: achieving
more precise talent management through data
management system and Al algorithm to assist
talent selection and training;

o Executive coach program: professional training
by retired senior management through external
executive coaches, and guidance for active
senior managers, to drive the improvement of
organizational performance;

o First aid skill training for positions facing customer:
providing necessary first aid skill training and
certification for front line service staff; currently,
it has covered more than 44,000 on-the-job
employees;

o Other skill and knowledge training for front line
service employee.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

China Vanke introduced and adopted an internal business
partnership scheme (EE &% A#H) for employees of its
property service business, being our Company, in June 2015
to attract and retain talents and to enhance the Company’s
competitiveness for long-term development. Before the Listing,
the Company has further amended and consolidated the
business partnership scheme as the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan. Please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — 5. Employee Stock Ownership Plan” in the
Prospectus and the announcement of the Company dated May
31, 2024 for details.

. AFBFERER - MABE
EEARGEAIEEEHP AT E
wMiER  BREREOAS
B

. SEHREAR c ARRSEE
BEEBRBINESERRIERE
Al WHRRSEEREETT
Y WERAGEMWIRTT

. % A SR eI« &
H—@RREET  RELEN
SRFEFIMRE : BATE
ERBRIABERETIRES

. Hitst ¥ — G RBGE THED
e EAEIF o

B T#HFIRETE

BERIOER201-F6 A AEMERBGEY
(BPARRF]) MEISIAYRMANTEELR
A - LARBIFIBB{EAA - B AQFIH
BMEH BRRPRE - AQFRLWAEH
REEEBRABIE—FTEITTEAHAET
FRGTE - FBELHBRERIEER—
BER —5 B ITHRTE ] —§ERAQFH
H1A52024F5 A31HARE °

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

119




120

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEE

HE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group is subject to PRC laws in relation to environmental
protection matters. The Group considers the protection of the
environment to be important and has implemented measures
in the operation of businesses to ensure its compliance with all
applicable requirements. Given the nature of its operations, the
Group believes that it is not subject to material environmental
liability risk or compliance costs.

2024 and as of the Latest
Practicable Date, the Group had not been subject to a fine or

For the year ended December 31,

punishment and any material administrative penalties as well due
to violation of environmental laws in the PRC.

Social Responsibility

The Group has entered into employment contracts with its
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and
regulations.

The Group maintains social welfare insurance for its full-time
employees in the PRC, including pension insurance, medical
insurance, personal injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance, in accordance with the relevant PRC

laws and regulations.
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Health and Work Safety

The administrative measures for employees adopted by the
Group contain the policies and procedures regarding work
safety and occupational health matters. The Group provides its
employees with annual medical checks and safety training, and
the properties of the Group are equipped with safety facilities.

The quality management-related department of the Group is
responsible for recording and handling work accidents as well as
maintaining health and work safety compliance records.

During the year ended December 31, 2024 and as of the Latest
Practicable Date, the Group did not encounter any material safety
accident or material claims for personal or property damages or
make material compensation payouts to employees in respect
of claims for personal or property damages related to safety
accidents.

For more information about our environmental, social and
governance performance, please refer to the 2024 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, no permitted indemnity provision which benefits the
Directors or Supervisors was in force or is currently in force
(whether made by the Company or not), and no permitted
indemnity provision which benefits the directors or supervisors of
associated companies of the Company was in force or is currently
in force (if made by the Company).

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and Supervisors concerning the relevant legal actions
they may be faced with.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2024.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material events affecting the Group after the
Reporting Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange has granted the Company a waiver from
strict compliance with the requirements of Rule 8.08(1) of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules, provided that the minimum public float
of the Company shall be the higher of: (a) 10.0%; and (b) such
percentage of H Shares to be held by the public after the exercise
of the Over-allotment Option, of the enlarged issued share
capital of the Company. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company as of the Latest Practicable Date and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed
that the Company has maintained the aforementioned minimum
public float required by the Stock Exchange during the Reporting
Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group made

charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMBO0.9
million.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2024.

There is no change of auditor of the Company in the preceding
three years.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take
into account the following factors when considering whether
to propose dividends and determining the dividend amount:
our results of operations, cash flows, financial condition,
payments by our subsidiaries of cash dividends to us, business
prospects, statutory, regulatory and contractual restrictions on
our declaration and payment of dividends, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group, as
well as other factors that our Board may consider important. No
dividend will be declared or payable except out of our profits
lawfully available for distribution.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity in this annual report. As at
December 31, 2024, the distributable reserves of the Group were
approximately RMB3,358.1 million.

DIVIDEND

The final dividend of RMB0.777 (equivalent to HK$0.8553) per
share (including tax) totaling RMB915.2 million (equivalent to
HK$1,001.7 million) declared for the year ended December 31,
2023, was approved by shareholders at the 2023 annual general
meeting held on May 10, 2024, and was paid during the year.

On August 22, 2024, the Board declared an interim dividend of
RMBO0.562 (equivalent to HK$0.622) per share (including tax) and
a special dividend of RMB0.460 (equivalent to HK$0.509) per
share (including tax) for the six months ended June 30, 2024,
totaling RMB1,201.8 million (equivalent to HK$1,315.5 million),
which has been approved by shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on September 27, 2024,
all of which have been paid during the year.
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The Board resolves to propose declaration of an ordinary
dividend of RMB1.045 per share (including tax) for the full
year of 2024 at 55% of the core net profit for the year ended
December 31, 2024 based on total shares as at the end of the
period. Furthermore, to ensure a consistent dividend distribution
throughout 2024, the Board is pleased to announce that it has
resolved to propose a special dividend of RMBO0.855 per share
(including tax) for the full year of 2024 at 45% of the core net
profit for the year ended December 31, 2024 to the shareholders
based on total shares as at the end of the period. The aggregate
dividend to be distributed for the full year will be RMB1.900 per
share (including tax), amounting to a total of RMB2,226.9 million
based on total shares as at the end of the period. Deducting
the declared interim dividend totalling RMB661.0 million
(including tax) and the special dividend totalling RMB540.8
million (including tax) paid in 2024, the aggregate dividend to be
distributed will be RMB0.875 per share (including tax) (including
a final dividend of RMB0.481 per share (including tax) for the
year ended December 31, 2024 (the “2024 Final Dividend”)
and a special dividend of RMB0.394 per share (including tax) (the
“2024 Special Dividend ")), amounting to a total of RMB1,025.1
million.

For the payment of dividends, dividends for holders of H Shares
will be declared in RMB but paid in Hong Kong dollars. The
2024 Final Dividend and 2024 Special Dividend are subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming 2024 AGM. The
2024 Final Dividend and 2024 Special Dividend are expected to
be paid in cash on or about June 13, 2025 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on May 26, 2025.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a)

(b)

For determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to attend and vote at the
2024 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from May 13, 2025 to May 16, 2025 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2024
AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the H
Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.

on May 12, 2025.

For determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to the proposed 2024 Final
Dividend and 2024 Special Dividend

Subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company
at the 2024 AGM, the 2024 Final Dividend and 2024
Special Dividend will be paid on or about June 13, 2025.
For determining the entitlement to the proposed 2024
Final Dividend and 2024 Special Dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from May 22,
2025 to May 26, 2025 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed 2024 Final
Dividend and 2024 Special Dividend, all share transfer
documents of the Company accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the H Share
Registrar of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on May 21,
2025.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on May 16, 2025. The notice of the annual general meeting
will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (https://www.onewo.com)
and despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China and its implementation rules and the Notice
of the State Taxation Administration on Issues Concerning
Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the Dividends Paid
by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H Shareholders Who Are
Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] No.
897) (ARXMBKEARKEANPEERGEMRINMBIEERE
FRRIRER BN ELTSH A R BB B X
[2008]8975%)), as a PRC domestic enterprise, the Company will,
after withholding 10% of the final dividend and special dividend
as enterprise income tax, distribute the final dividend and
special dividend to non-resident enterprise shareholders whose
names appear on the H Shares register of members (i.e. any
shareholders who hold H Shares in the name of non-individual
shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC Nominees
Limited, other nominees, trustees, or H shareholders registered
in the name of other organizations and groups). After receiving
dividends, the non-resident enterprise shareholders may apply to
the competent tax authorities for enjoying treatment of taxation
treaties (arrangement) in person or by proxy or by the Company,
and provide information to prove that it is an actual beneficiary
under the requirements of such taxation treaties (arrangement).
After the competent tax authorities have verified that there is
no error, it shall refund the tax difference between the amount
of tax levied and the amount of tax payable calculated at the
tax rate under the requirements of the relevant taxation treaties
(arrangement).
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Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues Regarding Levy of Individual
Income Tax after the Abolishment of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No.
045 Document (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) (@M EIFI
(199310455 X REIF R B RAEAPMSERBERENRAN) (BHK
EK[2011]348%7%)), the Company shall withhold and pay individual
income tax for individual holders of H Shares. If the individual
holders of H Shares are Hong Kong or Macau residents or
residents of other countries or regions that have a tax rate of
10% under the tax treaties with the PRC, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on
behalf of such shareholders.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries
or regions that have a tax rate lower than 10% under the tax
treaties with the PRC, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of such
shareholders. If such shareholders claim refund of the amount in
excess of the individual income tax payable under the relevant tax
treaties, the Company may apply, on behalf of such shareholders
and according to the relevant tax treaties, for the treatment
under tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholders
submit the relevant documents and information required by
the Administrative Measures on Enjoying Treatment under Tax
Treaties by Non-resident Taxpayers (State Taxation Administration
Announcement, 2015, No.60) (3EERMBAZE XU AT E
ERWEINERFIEEBAE2015F5605%) and the provisions
of the relevant tax treaties in a timely manner. The Company
will assist with the tax refund for the overpaid tax subject to the
approval of the competent tax authorities.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries
or regions that have a tax rate higher than 10% but lower than
20% under the tax treaties with the PRC, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the applicable tax rates
stated in such tax treaties on behalf of such shareholders.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries
or regions that have a tax rate of 20% under the tax treaties
with the PRC, or have not entered into any tax treaties with the
PRC, or otherwise, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of such shareholders.
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Pursuant to the Notice on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot
Program of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Caishui
[2014] No. 81) KEAREEREMISERX S B GBI ARG
TR A BB 5 [2014]815%)) and the Notice on the Tax
Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect (Caishui [2016] No. 127) KR FEREMIHL
ZEHEEES AR AR RBEROEMNIH[2016]1275%))
for dividends received by mainland domestic individual investors
and securities investment funds from investment in the H shares
listed on the Stock Exchange through Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the
companies of such H shares shall withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of such investors. The
companies of such H shares will not withhold the income tax of
dividends for domestic enterprise investors and those domestic
enterprise investors shall report and pay the relevant tax by
themselves.

Where the Company withholds and pays individual income tax
for individual holders of H Shares, and If the competent tax
authority has other opinion, advice or guidance on the above
withholding and payment, the Company shall implement the
same with reference to the opinion, advice or guidance of the
relevant competent tax authority.

If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised to consult an
expert.

On behalf of the Board
Onewo Inc.

Zhu Baoquan
Chairman
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors of the Company hereby presents the
Shareholders the report of the Board of Supervisors for the
financial year ended December 31, 2024.

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors of Onewo Inc. (the “Board
of Supervisors”) strictly complied with the Listing Rules, the
Articles of Association and the Procedural Rules for the Board
of Supervisors and other system standards. With the principle
of being strongly accountable to shareholders, the Board of
Supervisors conscientiously performed its monitoring duties in all
respects by standing firmly on the Company’s culture and values
with a rigorous and practical style. The Board of Supervisors
also conducted thorough and meticulous supervision over the
Company’s financial position, management and operation, the
performance of duties by our Directors and senior management
in discharging their duties by attending the Board meeting,
reviewing reports on special projects and conducting on-
site inspections and interviews. Thus, the healthy and stable
development of the Company has been ensured.

THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS AND MEMBERSHIP CHANGE
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Supervisors comprises three members, including
two shareholder representative Supervisors and one employee
representative Supervisor. All Supervisors conscientiously
performed their duties in compliance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association. The term of office of each Supervisor shall
be three years, renewable upon re-election and re-appointment.
On March 22, 2024, Mr.

employee representatives’ assembly of Onewo as the employee

Zou Ming was elected by the

representative Supervisor of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors of Onewo by way of poll. On May 10, 2024, the
proposal of the election of Ms. Xiang Yun and Ms. Han Huihua
as shareholder representative Supervisors of the third session
of the Board of Supervisors was considered and approved by
Onewo’s 2023 annual general meeting.
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The composition of the third session of the Board of Supervisors B¥EE=[EEFeAKET :
of Onewo is as follows:

Name Position =4 B
Ms. Xiang Yun Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors, MEZL EEEgXfE .-
Shareholder Representative Supervisor RERKES

Ms. Han Huihua  Shareholder Representative Supervisor BEETL BRERKES

Mr. Zou Ming Employee Representative Supervisor AT E BIRKES

THE MAJOR WORK PERFORMED BY THE 2024 FEEESTETHRE

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2024 p

The major work performed by the Board of Supervisors in 2024 is 20244 » BT BT /EIIT :

as follows:

1. Holding the Meetings of the Board 1. CHEEESE REBET
of Supervisors and Conscientiously EEERsE

Performed the Duties of the Board of

Supervisors

In 2024, a total of 2 meetings of the Board of Supervisors 2024%F - EEZ e HAR2AEEEE
were held by the Board of Supervisors. The attendances wo EEHAEEIERALRESS
of Supervisors at the meeting of the Board of Supervisors @RBRAT

(either in person or by proxy) are as follows:

Number of actual

attendances/number

Name Supervisor category of scheduled attendances
ERLESRRE

®A EEHER EHEESZRH™
Xiang Yun Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors
QS EEexF 2/2
Han Huihua Shareholder Representative Supervisor
CESS BRERRRESF 2/2
Wu Jianxia Employee Representative Supervisor
R &l BIRKES 11
Zou Ming Employee Representative Supervisor
e BIRRES 11
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Supervising the Performance of Duties
by Directors and Senior Management

The Board of Supervisors conducted comprehensive
supervision over the performance of duties by Directors
and senior management by attending the meetings
of the Board of Directors, reviewing each proposal of
Board, and inspecting the Company's daily operations
and management, etc. The Board of Supervisors
highly recognizes Directors and senior management’s
conscientiousness, and is not aware of any actions in
violation of laws and regulations or detrimental to the

interests of the Company.

Supervising the Operations of the
Company

In 2024, the members of the Board of Supervisors
supervised the operation of the Company by attending
Board meetings and other various important meetings,
reviewing reports on special projects and conducting
on-site inspections and interviews. The Board of
Supervisors is of the view that the decision-making
procedures of the general meeting of the Company
and the Board are legal and that the Board and the
management team of the Company have faithfully and
effectively fulfilled the resolutions of the general meeting
in compliance with relevant provisions of laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association, and is not aware of any
actions in violation of laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association or detrimental to the interest of the Company
when Directors and senior management performing their
duties.

2.

EFeRBIFERE  FHER
BEREREEEETFR  2HUE
BEFNSAREEAERR EF®
SERARREEREREEAEN
PHBERE  KBEREMERERE
ERBIBERRMENITR -

EBNTKEER

20245 BEEERBIIRESTEES
& BHNIZEMEARRBKR - 35
RETAHRRELBERETES -
EZERRARRRENESTEMR
REFAE AREFSNREER
BRI EBBICET T RRENER
REE - TFRER AR MABERM
BERE  RBEREZRSREEA
BUEATARBBRARERER &
B RRIERSBERRFIZEAITS
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INDEPENDENT OPINIONS ON CERTAIN HAREBEENEYER

MATTERS OF THE COMPANY

1. Compliance of the Company’s 1. DEMGEEERR
Operations with the Law
The Board of Supervisors believes that the Company has BEEe L NARRERRERLS - 1F
been able to operate under the law and standardize its HER  KEXERHEE - RAIA
management, and the operating results are objective and TEIETEERFIRTT - T T HE
authentic. The Company’s internal control management 2HE - TEMANIIEHIEE - emE
has been gradually improved, and a relatively sound ME GBI AE RS - BRARSIE
and comprehensive internal control system has been EBREEAFHE st RBEATE
established to enable effective risk identification and SEENLTEMTE -

control, ensure the normal and orderly operation of each
business of the Company, and ensure the safety and
integrity of the Company’s capital assets.

2. Inspection of the Company’s Financial 2. BREATMKER

Position

The Board of Supervisors carefully supervised, inspected e N R HE AN EIT
and audited the financial position, financial management EEEMEEKRRET T RENE
and operating results of the Company during the B BmENEX  TEHAEEEHE
Reporting Period, and reviewed the Group's audited 2024F 12 A31 B I FE 7 &FE=HEr
financial report and other financial information for the BREREMBBEER - RBEZES
year ended December 31, 2024. The Board of Supervisors MEEET  ERE - BB TAR
is of the view that the audited report gives a truthful, B LK RMB AR » N FREME
accurate and complete reflection of the operating results MEREE - REM Rk EAER o

and financial position of the Company, without any false
records, misleading statements or material omissions.
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Performance Evaluation of Directors
and Senior Management

Through the evaluation of the performance of duties
by the Directors and senior management, the Board
of Supervisors believes that the Directors and senior
management of the Company have been law-abiding,
dutiful, pragmatic and dedicated and have adopted a
legal decision-making process, effectively safeguarding the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Continuing Connected Transactions

In 2024, the continuing connected transactions of the
Company were carried out in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group on normal or better
commercial terms and under the relevant agreements
governing such transactions and the terms are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole. The consideration, voting, disclosure and
performance in connection with the continuing connected
transactions were compliant with the relevant provisions
of laws, regulations and the Articles of Association.

Onewo Inc.
Board of Supervisors

3.

55 SREEBEABBBT
HER

EXelEEs SAEEAENER
BRETTRHE  BRBEARBEFR
SREEABELTE  REBT
BEWME  RREFAE  BUMEE
TARRB MBCRAF5E o

HEBERS

20245 - RRRIEBHEBER S IRAK
SE—MATEEBY  H—RBRIEE
PEBRRLREBEREZRZERHIZEH
WEET BEFHBATEE - &
ERREBNE - HEFAEISINE
FEORR EEREBTSBELFAEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company and enhance the corporate value
as well as the responsibility commitments.

The Group is fully aware of the importance of the Board of
Directors in providing targeted guidance for the Group's business
and ensuring the operational transparency and accountability
system. The Board of Directors fully understands that good
corporate governance is key to leading the Group to success and
enhancing Shareholders’ value. Therefore, the Board of Directors
has formulated a series of corporate governance policies and
systems with the aim of fully protecting Shareholders’ interests
and continuously enhancing corporate value. At the same time,
all Directors shall adhere to the principle of impartiality, lead by
example and actively promote and practice the corporate culture
to jointly facilitate the steady development of the Group.

The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of
corporate governance, and to the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended December
31, 2024 and as of the Latest Practicable Date, save as disclosed
below.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhu Baoquan is the
chairman of our Board and the general manager of our Company
and the roles of Mr. Zhu Baoquan have not been separated as
required under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551
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In view of the fact that Mr. Zhu Baoquan has been managing
and operating the Company as the Chairman, an executive
Director and the general manager of the Company since February
2011, the Board believes that Mr. Zhu Baoquan should continue
to assume the responsibilities of the general manager of the
Company as this arrangement will improve the efficiency of the
Group’s decision-making and execution process, and provide
strong and consistent leadership to the Group. Further, the
Company has put in place an appropriate check-and-balance
mechanism through the Board and the independent
non-executive Directors. In light of the above, the Board
considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code is appropriate in the circumstances of the Company. The
Board will review the current structure from time to time and will
make any necessary arrangement as appropriate.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, Mr. Zhu Baoquan,
Chairman of the Board, held one meeting (without other
Directors’ attendance) with Independent non-executive Directors
to discuss the Group’s strategy and future development direction.
At the same time, Mr. Zhu Baoquan encouraged all Directors
to actively express their opinions on the Group’s operation and
development and matters of concern to the Group, to ensure
that appropriate steps were taken to effectively communicate
with Shareholders, to ensure that Shareholders’ views could
be delivered to the entire Board of Directors, and to take
appropriate steps to ensure that Shareholders could measure the
application of relevant corporate governance principles.

Directors use their best endeavors to procure the Company to
continue to comply with the CG Code.

ERB201MF2ARKRELEE—BEERE
ER WTESHRARFBKIBEERRES
AAF BEEERABRARETCEREEET
RARBKIE—E  REAZLIHESRES
SEARNMPITBENRE  WAREEIR
M KB - EES - Lo - ARTFIERE
BEESRBEIUHFNTESEZERE HIEH
#lc BEREX EFERAREE(EEER
SR SFEMEXEC 2 1 EH AR T HERM
EEBRE EFSBTRHELERTERE I
ERER N EREE T8 -

REE2024F12A31BIEEFE - EFRAK
REXEEBYIFATESEHINZER
MEELENEE  FNEE B RARR
BREAM - AR KREEEHHSNVNES
BRFKEHAEELERERNE R REAX
SEEINER  BMREDEESRERRE
BRUER - BRIRFEAE R AEED R
Exe URARBKRIEESHE  BEREKRE
AEERECEETARANERBR

EEHERABIRERAREEB (D
EEIATAD
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INDUCTION TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides necessary induction training information and
data to ensure that each Director has a full understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and his/her responsibilities
in accordance with the relevant regulations, statutes, laws and
rules. Moreover, the Group organizes seminars regularly to
provide Directors with the latest development and changes of
Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations in a timely
manner. Meanwhile, we also regularly provide the updates
on the performance, positions, and prospects of the Group to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to better perform
their duties. These measures aim at ensuring that the Directors
are well-informed and contribute to the steady development of

the Group.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
Reporting Period, the Company has provided the training material
for Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
Directors and management of the Company, details of which are
as follows:

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551
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Reading or attending
briefings and/or seminars
and/or conferences relevant
to regulatory and
governance updates

HERLFREERER
BMEREBENERE

Name of Directors EEMR k/BBER,SREHE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhu Baoquan KRESE 4
Mr. He Shuhua IR EE S 4 v
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wang Wenjin' FXEEAE v/
Mr. Zhang Xu? SR NB ST A2 v
Mr. Sun Jia ReiE 4
Mr. Zhou Qi EEp v
Mr. Yao Jinbo Bk ShR S 4
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Law Elizabeth BEEELL v
Mr. Chen Yuyu BREFHRE v
Mr. Shen Haipeng L NE S A 4
Mr. Song Yunfeng REEFE v

Note 1. Mr. Wang resigned as a non-executive Director and a member of 777 FTHAREBE2025F3A31HEBEIIFERATEER
the Audit Committee with effect from March 31, 2025. EtLBEeKE -

Note 2: Mr. Zhang resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 72 - RS54 H2025%3 A31 HEEEIEHITES o
March 31, 2025.
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THE BOARD 2xe

1. Responsibilities 1. BE
The Board is the core decision-making organization EECe/EANNTINZOIREEE
of the Company and assumes the responsibilities AIEE BB ANER - BB R
for the leadership and control of the Group, and BEIFERIE - REEERBENESRE
supervising and approval of financial performance, KRERWET - A EFE€CHFA
strategic development objectives and major business ZEEEREESEeNEEHIT A
decisions. Meanwhile, the Board has delegated to the EEENHEREMEBLRSIE o AR
management the responsibilities for the Group's daily FABRE  EEFEeRT B8
operations and business management according to the @ . HMEXRTEe NIERTES S
Board’s instructions. The Board has established three —AERTEe (iBAESES
special committees, namely the Audit Committee, e ) VT TeMEZEEREE -
the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and ELEEZEeYKES AR
the Nomination Committee (together, the “Board BT TRENESE  LREEERE
Committees”), and has delegated to the Board BNEEEE -

Committees various duties to improve governance
efficiency. All the Board Committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
and jointly facilitate the steady development of the Group.

The Board should also establish the Company’s purpose, EEeEMNTAARINER BE
values and strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the B RS - WHERBE AN T X b —E o
Company’s culture are aligned. All Directors shall act FrTEESEFIETHN  LLEELR - IF
with integrity, lead by example and be committed to MO FTHEER L - B E
promoting the desired culture. Such culture should instil M FTES  WTE NSRS ok
and continually reinforce across the enterprise the values 2 CoEELETNES -

of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

All Directors shall always adhere to the principle of good PREEFRHEBRTHEEREL - BEIEE
faith, strictly comply with applicable laws and regulations TFEAEEEEE R ARETHE
to ensure that all decisions and actions are in the best T FEEREBR RIEENRERNZ -

interests of the Group and Shareholders.
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Under the leadership and supervision of the general
manager, the senior management of the Company is
responsible for the coordination of the daily operation
and management, and the smooth operation of
various functions. The Board gives clear direction and
requirements to the senior management by reviewing the
annual key work and other issues. At the same time, the
Board delegates to the management to make decisions
independently on daily business operation and ensure
compliance within the framework of established strategies
and instructions.

The Board retains its final decision-making power on all
major matters of the Company, including the approval and
supervision of corporate governance and policy matters,
planning of overall strategies and budgets, establishment
and improvement of risk management and internal control
systems, approval of major transactions involving potential
conflicts of interest, review and analysis of financial data,
appointment of Directors and other material financial and
operational decisions. Through these measures, the Board
ensures that the Group is able to continuously grow on a
sound basis and create long-term value for shareholders.

Board Composition
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan
Mr. He Shuhua

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wenjin (resigned with effect from
March 31, 2025)
Mr. Zhang Xu (resigned with effect from March 31, 2025)
Mr. Sun Jia
Mr. Zhou Qi
Mr. Yao Jinbo

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth
Mr. Chen Yuyu

Mr. Shen Haipeng
Mr. Song Yunfeng

FRLENESREEET - AQFN
EREEEAENERRERKEEESR
BEEBENESENF EFSRBHE
ZFEEHTIHRFEZZE  Me
REREFERENTAHRENR © [{
B EFSTAEEEREAERMERE
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BERERARM
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There is no material financial, business, family or other
relationship between any members of the Board. The
biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed "Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report. All the Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, bring a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Board has
assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are considered to be
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years.

ENZEMMBRBBRNDERRIF 2024551
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Zhu Baoquan is the chairman of our Board and the
general manager of our Company and the roles of Mr.
Zhu Baoquan have not been separated as required under
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

In view of the fact that Mr. Zhu Baoquan has been
managing and operating the Group as the Chairman,
an executive Director and the general manager of the
Company since February 2011, the Board believes
that Mr. Zhu Baoquan should continue to assume the
responsibilities of the general manager of the Group
as this arrangement will improve the efficiency of the
Group's decision-making and execution process, and
provide strong and consistent leadership to the Group.
Further, the Company has put in place an appropriate
check-and-balance mechanism through the Board and
the independent non-executive Directors. In light of the
above, the Board considers that the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in the
circumstances of the Company. The Board will review the
current structure from time to time and will make any
necessary arrangement as appropriate.

3.

ETRETHRAR
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Board Meetings

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that
at least four regular Board meetings should be held in
each year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation of majority of directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notices of not less than 14 days are
given of all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with the opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda. For other committee meetings, a notice will be
given 3 days prior to the meeting. When the Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they
are advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in detail and include the matters considered
by the Board and the committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the Directors within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held, which allows
enough time for them to request amendments.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company
convened 8 Board meetings, 1 annual general meeting
and 2 extraordinary general meetings. All Directors
attended in person (including on-site attendance and
online remote attendance) or appointed other Directors
as his/her representative to attend Board meetings of
the year. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance of Directors at these meetings in person:

ZEMBRBRNDERRE 202455

(REBEARTRD M TRMEXEC.5.1
FHRE  BFELARNAEHES
@ ANEBF R BAZHE
AEB2EeR (BERRS BB
ETAASTA) -

i

ARBIEFMERAFREETEEEN
Ef - RARILABEHBRITNES
SERBHTLOMIARNBA - s
TeREFHFEHERLEEES
HRMAZENKE - AR EEE
EME > BREFAFRA=RE LR
MoBEEXZBERBARLES
& RERENEERESTIRNE
B UHAHEERTERAMERE
RER -

l

EXeeRkR BB gRLE
CHECEIEREZTERZEEN
ZENEENMEBNRE @ BFEE
ERONEMHEE BEFEEEN
ZEgeRNERCHRERLIENS
FRTAHRNAERRANERES
o ERFAREBRKIELER

HZE2024F12A831BILFE » AR
AIEBH8RESTEE®EHE 1 ARRE
BFER2AGRKRES  -IEES
HHEE (RERGHFRAGERERDY
[E)RETAEMESHEAFEES
g% (RBJIZESRESTHRS
HEHFFS



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Number of meetings attended in person/
held during the Director’s term of office’
ESNEHARSHE BTER0RE

Annual Extraordinary

Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors EEHR Exgel BRRBFE BRRRRE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhu Baoquan KRE%EE 8/8 1/1 2/2
Mr. He Shuhua fEEE L 8/8 0/1 22
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wang Wenjin2 FX&FkAE? 8/8 0/1 0/2
Mr. Zhang Xu3 ok B ST A3 8/8 1/1 0/2
Mr. Sun Jia Bmiat 8/8 0/1 172
Mr. Zhou Qi A#FkE 8/8 11 0/2
Mr. Yao Jinbo R T AL 8/8 01 0/2
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITEE
Ms. Law Elizabeth BEELL 8/8 11 22
Mr. Chen Yuyu PREFHEA 8/8 1/1 12
Mr. Shen Haipeng LENE ST 8/8 0/1 0/2
Mr. Song Yunfeng REBKE 8/8 1/1 2/2
Note 1:The following Directors were unable to attend the Annual F1: AAKBERE G UTESEFReHadER
General Meeting/Extraordinary General Meeting in person RRAEe BEEREE -
due to business engagements.
Note 2:Mr. Wang resigned as a non-executive Director and a 72 FEEBE2025F3 A31 BRREH{EIEHIT
member of the Audit Committee with effect from March EENEHSHEELKS -
31, 2025.
Note 3:Mr. Zhang resigned as a non-executive Director with 33 SREAEBE202543 A31 BEEEIEHTT
effect from March 31, 2025. FHo
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The combination of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors in the Board of Directors is balanced, so that
the Board of Directors maintains independence and can
make effective independent judgments. The functions
of the non-executive Directors mainly include: (i) actively
participating in Board meetings to bring independent
opinions and suggestions on core resolutions such as
strategy making, policy implementation, the Company's
performance assessment, accountability system
optimization, resource allocation improvement, key
appointments and standards of conduct compliance, (ii)
playing a key role of guiding and coordinating where
potential scenarios of interest conflict arise; (iii) serving as
members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee and the Nomination Committee
as and when necessary, to provide professional support
and supervision on the work of each committee; and (iv)
scrutinizing the Group's actual operation to ensure its
consistency with agreed corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring the Company’s performance reporting.

Meanwhile, to ensure the fairness and transparency of
the Board’s decision-making, when there is a Director
who is connected to companies involved in a resolution
of the Board meeting and has a material interest in a
resolution or there are other abstention circumstances
stipulated by laws, such Director shall take the initiative
to abstain from voting on the resolution and shall not
exercise the voting rights on behalf of other Directors.
When calculating the quorum of Directors present at the
meeting, such Director shall not be counted. The fairness
and legality of resolution is so guaranteed. Implementation
of such measures may help to maintain the authority
and credibility of the Board and promote the healthy
development of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of these committees has specific written
terms of reference which clarifies their powers and duties. The
chairpersons of these committees will report their findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

1. Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee in
compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing
Rules and code provision D.3 of the CG Code, and has
adopted corresponding written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to supervise
and evaluate the external and internal audit process,
review the Company’s financial reports and express
opinions on them, and coordinate communication
between management, internal audit department, relevant
departments and external audit agencies. During the
Reporting Period, the Audit Committee was consisted of
one non-executive Director (namely Mr. Wang Wenjin)
and two independent non-executive Directors (namely Ms.
Law Elizabeth and Mr. Chen Yuyu). The Audit Committee
is currently chaired by Ms. Law Elizabeth, who possesses
suitable professional qualifications.

EXZEE

ARBERIUENRES  FMEREZES
kiRtEZBe XZEBeRAHTEERE
E - BMIAEBENMEE c ZFREBE
MEFRERRKBAESTEREEEERNHE

1. BIZEE®

EESERB(LEMRANDE3.211%
KE3. 221G R(EEERTRID) T A
FEDIRRIUFBNEZEE - W KEKM
EHRERE - FIFREENTIER
BEREENHEIIMEITIE A
EB L EARBESLFE  AEEH
NREMPBRELHEERER - &
BEWHRAEIERE - MEBEET AP A
EBFTESNEEEAT B RIEE - RS
HIN - B X B R —RHFUTES
(BIEX®KE) » RMBBILIFATT
BER(AEEZXLLHRETEE)A
o BEAREBERBHEERLLH
TEF HEBEAEEEXER -
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Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit
Committee to comprise non-executive directors only,
with @ minimum of three members with independent
non-executive Directors in majority and at least one
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Mr. Wang Wenjin, a member of the Audit Committee,
resigned as a non-executive Director on March 31,
2025. Following the resignation of Mr. Wang, the Audit
Committee comprises only two members (namely Ms. Law
Elizabeth and Mr. Chen Yuyu).

The Company has proposed to appoint Ms. Zhu Xu to fill
the vacancies of positions of non-executive Director and
a member of the Audit Committee, in order to fulfill the
requirements of the Listing Rules as soon as practicable
and in any event within three months after March 31,
2025 as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
March 31, 2025.
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The Audit Committee convened 2 meetings during the
Reporting Period to review the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended December 31, 2023
and the interim financial results and report in respect of
the six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively, as well
as significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, and reported the results of the
review to the Board of Directors. The table below sets
forth the details of the attendance at these meetings:

Name of committee member ZEENERSE
Ms. Law Elizabeth (Chairperson) BEERLT (TE)
Mr. Wang Wenjin' FXEEAE

Mr. Chen Yuyu BREFHRE

Note 1:Mr. Wang resigned as a non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee with effect from March
31, 2025.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and confirmed that it has complied
all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. The
Audit Committee has also discussed the matters of
audit and financial reporting. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed the significant issues on the financial
reporting, compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems and connected transactions, and
has discussed with the auditor of the Company about the
tasks it had performed.

RFERHE - B ZESE8H2AE
& U RIEEEE2023F12 A31
HIEFENFEVBHEERRSE LB
£2024%6 A308 1E/51E A A HAES
BEELRRE  URBBEMGER -
EBEBRARRVNERZETNES
SERBTER - TR ZELE
B H R RS -

Number of meetings
attended/held
during the Director’s
term of office
EEREHRALE
HITEBORE

2/2
2/2
2/2

G171 EAEAEBE2025%3 A31 HEBTIIETT
EEREFFZEGKE -

BT ZESCEHNASEHE2024F
AN BLEFENKESEHUB
Bk THRAECDETHEERSE
JRA| - ZRIRRE  WEEHFESE
%o BHZEENERBZ LM BE
MEEETHR  BIHEEENER
FEBYKER S8EF  RIPE
T EBREERGLRBERISMHEKX
B WELARR AR R E T
B LAE o
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The figures in the Group's consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of financial position and
related notes for the year ended December 31, 2024 set
out in this report have been agreed by the auditor of
the Company, Ernst & Young, to the amounts set out
in the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
current year. The work performed by Ernst &Young in
this respect did not constitute an assurance engagement
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing,
Hong Kong Standards on Review Engagements or Hong
Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
consequently no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &
Young on this report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration
of the auditor for the year ended December 31, 2024
and has recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as the auditor of the Company for the year
ending December 31, 2025, subject to the approval by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting.

The duties and priorities of the Audit Committee during
the relevant period included, among others, the oversight
of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
risk management and control system, monitoring the
integrity of the preparation of the Group’s financial data
(including interim and annual results of the Company),
reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies
and practices and monitoring the effectiveness of the
internal audit function. The Audit Committee also
supervises and manages the relationship with the Group's
external auditor, which covers reviewing and monitoring
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process conducted in
accordance with applicable standards.
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Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of
the Listing Rules and code provisions E.1.1 to E.1.5 of
the CG Code, and has adopted corresponding written
terms of reference. The primary responsibilities of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are to review
and make recommendations to the Board regarding
the annual performance of our Directors and senior
management, the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to our Directors
and senior management, and other matters authorized by
the Board. The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
currently consists of one executive Director (namely
Mr. Zhu Baoquan) and two independent non-executive
Directors (namely Mr. Shen Haipeng and Mr. Song
Yunfeng). The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee is
currently chaired by Mr. Shen Haipeng.

The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee convened
one meeting during the Reporting Period. The table below
sets forth the details of the attendance at these meetings:

Name of committee member ZEEREH®A
Mr. Shen Haipeng (Chairperson) LENs e ()
Mr. Zhu Baoquan KREBFE

Mr. Song Yunfeng REHTE

FMEREES

EZSOREB(EMRADE325KK
F3.261FARCBEEEATRI)FRIZE
E1MEEFENSKELTMEZE
Bg VWEHMEABEDE o ZrH
ERLZEBENEEREARESERS
REBENFEEN BHESEES
REBEMNTNES  BAREMIR
MEERA R EESRENEMEIE
HETEEVYRNESSREESR - HH
ERLZEeHRKA —RNTES (A
KREEE) EMBBLIFERITES
(BMLgHs e £ B R Ee8 5L &) 4K -
FMERZESENRILEBLEED
TEE -

RBEME  FHERZESEH
RE& - TREIZFEENHEF

%

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

term of office
EEREHREE
HITEEORE

171

171
171
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The duties and priorities of the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee during the Reporting Period
include the following, among others: considering the
remuneration packages of the Company’s Directors,
Supervisors and senior management and submitting them
and making recommendations to the Board; approving
the terms of the executive Directors’ service contracts,
and reviewing and approving material matters relating to
share schemes during the financial year; considering the
Terms of Reference of the Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee and proposing amendments and submitting
them to the Board for approval;, as well as considering
the appraisal criteria, performance evaluation procedures,
remuneration and rewards and punishment policies for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management members.
The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee may also
seek independent professional advice if necessary.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee has reviewed
and approved the matters concerning allowances of the
senior management and submitted them to the Board for
further consideration. In the meantime, the Remuneration
and Evaluation Committee received briefings from the
management on the remuneration management system
of the Company, and were able to provide constructive
opinions on improving the management system of the
Company.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management
Directors and members of senior management receive
remuneration from the Company in the form of salaries,

bonuses and other benefits in kind, such as contributions
to pension schemes.
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In order to better reflect the contribution of the
Directors and Supervisors of the Company and the
value the Directors and Supervisors have created for
the Shareholders, and to attract and retain outstanding
individuals with rich professional experience, extensive
industry reputation and international vision to serve
as the Directors and Supervisors, the remuneration
of the Directors and Supervisors working full-time in
the Company was determined in accordance with the
remuneration system of the Company and their work
performance during the Reporting Period.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the expenses
incurred by the Company for Director's remuneration
(including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes
and social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances, and other benefits in kind) were
approximately RMB8.9 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the expenses
incurred by the Group for the remuneration of the five
highest paid individuals (including Directors), which
included fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes
and social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances, and other benefits in kind, were
approximately RMB17.4 million.

REFMWRRARFEEREENE
BANBEEREERBRERAENE
B RIITREEXEREE - FF
BZITREZERERICRF LD A
THREEEREST  RBEHA - &
RAEBTHENEZSNESHIRE
AR RIFMHIE R E TERRME

HZE2024512831HIEFE - AR
ARESFH(2Eee  Fe B
EZirEI RS RBFMER - BIBIEL -
FEREAMZHRUNEMEYFZ)
EENRZANARKSIBET -

HE2024%F12831HILFEE - &%
ERxAEEeTMAL (BEES)®
FH(REee  Fe  BEFTEK
HEREAHR - WBEL - FEEE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024, a total of four
Directors, including Mr. Wang Wenjin, Mr. Zhang Xu,
Mr. Sun Jia, and Mr. Zhou Qi, confirmed their waivers of
Director's remuneration by submitting the “Confirmation
Letter of Voluntary Waiver of Director's Remuneration”
to the Company. Mr. Zhu Baoquan and Mr. He Shuhua
as Directors working full-time at the Company, do not
receive Director’'s remuneration, but receive remuneration
according to the Company’s remuneration system and
work performance. The Board will review and determine
the salaries and remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management, and take the recommendations and
advice from the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.
The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee will
consider salaries paid by comparable companies, the time
committed by Directors and their duties, as well as the
Group's performance. No payment of remuneration was
made by the Group to any of our Directors or Supervisors
as salaries to induce them to join or to join the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period. The remuneration plan of Directors for this year
will be proposed at the general meeting of the Company
for further approval.

For further details of Directors’ remuneration and data
about the highest paid individuals for the year ended
December 31, 2024, please refer to notes 9 and 10 in
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, in accordance with code provision E.1.5 of the
CG Code, the annual remuneration ranges for the senior
management members (other than Directors) during the
year ended December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Remuneration range HMEE

HKD2.5 million to HKD3.0 million
HKD3.5 million to HKD4.0 million

BE2SHELEBEI0HET
BEISHELEEBI0EET

HZE20245F12831HIEFE » £X
CEE RBES EREF - AF
EE—HMAREFTRBRANRERIAB
FREEEMESMEREK] - UER
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HING EM TEE BN - 25
CREMANETESRSAEEEN
FoREMWES  URBRFMEZE
BEENHBERZ THERZESH
ZEALRABSZANES  EFK
AHEBBEBEARRNEBHKRE -
WEBHAN  AEEBERNARRESER
EEYEAME  (EAEBIIMARK
MAXEENE © - KIEABERA
B - AEFEENESFHAIREFAR
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BREEZE2024F12A31BILFEE
EHMEE—TFHE  UEESFHFA
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee in
compliance with code provision B.3 of the CG Code, and
has adopted corresponding written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of Directors and senior management, the
related criteria and procedures of the appointment and
other matters authorized by the Board. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of one executive Director
(Mr. Zhu Baoquan) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Song Yunfeng, Mr. Chen Yuyu and Mr.
Shen Haipeng). The Nomination Committee is currently
chaired by Mr. Zhu Baoquan.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
convened 3 meetings, including receiving and reviewing
the Performance Report of the Independent Directors
for 2023, proposing candidates for Directors of the third
session of the Board, proposing candidates for Secretary to
the Board of the Company and proposing the candidates
for the chief financial officer of the Company, etc. The
table below sets forth the details of the attendance of the
meeting:

Name of committee member

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Chairperson)
Mr. Song Yunfeng REERFTE

Mr. Chen Yuyu BREFESE
Mr. Shen Haipeng’ sy pta

ZEEHENE

KRESEE (Z/E)

REEEST

EXeCREB(EEBRTRD TSR
B3R IEREERE  YIRMEE
BEHE REZEENIZRAER
REELRRREEEBNRME  HEZ
EREMEFUREFERENE M
FHANEFERHTER - RRZEEg
BAER—RBTES (AIRFREEL)
AR=2BIUFRPTES (AIREL
hE - REFRERLEBELEE) A
e lRBEZEEAMBARRELEES
TEE -

RFERHE - RBLZESBHAINT
& BREERKRERQI23FERET
EXRBHE) BRF-EEET
EETANR BREARAETEUMEA
BRBZARRVBAEEAANRES
H ' TREBVNZSHMHEFS

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

term of office
ESREHRLE
HITEBNRE

3/3
3/3
3/3
N/A N3

Note 1:Mr. Shen was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from March 31, 2025.

A1 LA BE2025F3 A3 BRELZT AR
HEBEKE -
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Board diversity policy

The Company regards the board diversity policy as a key
driver of sustainable development. In order to enhance
the operational efficiency of the Board and to maintain
an excellent standard of corporate governance, the
Company has actively implemented a board diversity
policy which clearly sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity in our Board. Pursuant to this policy,
selection of Board candidates will take into account a
wide range of diversity factors, such as gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical capabilities, professional qualifications and
skills, knowledge and length of service, etc. We will also
fully consider the Group's unique business model and
special needs. When finalizing Director candidates, the
candidates’ advantages and the value that they can bring
to our Board will be our primary consideration. We are
committed to building a diverse, efficient and dynamic
Board that will provide strong support for the long-term
development of the Group through these initiatives.

The Board has reviewed and considered the implementation
of the diversity policy to be effective. The diversity policy
has been well implemented as there are both female and
male Directors from a diverse age group with experience
from different industries and sectors. The Directors have a
balanced mix of knowledge and skills.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition based on

the measurable objectives is set out below:

1.

Gender
Gender group 4 548 Bl
Number of Directors EEAH
Age

50 and below
Age group Fie4a R 503 L T
Number of Directors EEAH 6

Length of service of Directors

Less than

1 year

Length of service BR 75 5 BR PR1E
Number of Directors BEAH 0

REFMGENERHESTSE AKX
B DTSN -

1+ R
Male Female
B feg i
10 1

2. FR
51-55 56-60 Above 60
51-555% 56-605% 605% A £
2 2 1

3+ EEBERBFR

More than

1-3 years 3-10 years 10 years
1-3% 3-10% KH10F

4 6 1
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4. Professional qualifications and industry
experience
Directors Role
=23 At

Mr. Zhu Baoquan Executive Director

KRELAE
Mr. He Shuhua

HITES

Executive Director

B L
Mr. Wang Wenjin'

HITES

Non-executive Director

EXEELE
Mr. Zhang Xu?

FHITES

Non-executive Director

RIBSEAE? FEHITES

Mr. Sun lJia Non-executive Director

RErE FEITES

Mr. Zhou Qi Non-executive Director

A&k FERITES

Mr. Yao Jinbo Non-executive Director

PSR S 4 FEITESE

Ms. Law Elizabeth Independent non-executive
Director

EEFETT BUERITES

Mr. Chen Yuyu Independent non-executive
Director

REFxRE BUFERITES

Mr. Shen Haipeng Independent non-executive
Director

Wbt BUERITESE

Mr. Song Yunfeng Independent non-executive
Director

RESEFLE BUERITES

Note 1:Mr. Wang resigned as a non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from March 31, 2025.

Note 2:Mr. Zhang resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from March 31, 2025.
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4. EXRERRTEER

Professional qualifications and industry
experience
EXERRITELR

Property management, business administration,
corporate governance, investment and financing,
capital operation

MEERE ITHEE XEhR KRME - EXE

Property management, business administration,

EfE

corporate governance

MEERE ITEEE  XEAR

Real estate development and sales, investment and
financing, capital operation, financial accounting
FHEMEEEE  RHE  BREE MKt
Real estate development and sales, investment and
financing, capital operation

FHEMEEEE  REE  BREE

Real estate development and sales, investment and
financing, capital operation

FHEMBEEE - IRME - EXEE

Investment and financing, capital operation

KEE BREE

Information technology, investment and financing
SRR - REE

Expert in the financial accounting

MG REER
Expert in the economics field

L E

BHER
Expert in the business management field

EEEREHER
Expert in the legal field
FEEFER
i1 FEHEB202543A31 Elt%%
AN TEEREFLZES
E o
2 FREEB2025F3A31HER
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The Company's Board members have a balanced
mix of knowledge and skills, covering a number of
key areas such as overall management and strategic
development, human resources management,
information technology, accounting and financial
management, risk management and corporate
governance. The Directors also have a wide range
of educational backgrounds, including economics,
business administration and accounting and
other majors. In addition, the Board has three
independent non-executive Directors with different
industry backgrounds, representing one-third of
the members of our Board, providing a diverse
perspective on the Board’s decision-making.
Furthermore, the Board also has one female
Director, reflecting the Company’s active efforts in
gender equality.

In combination with the current business model,
specific needs and the diverse backgrounds of
the Directors, the composition of the Board is
fully in line with the requirements of the Board
diversity policy. In order to ensure the continued
and effective implementation of the Board
diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will
be responsible for monitoring and evaluating the
implementation of the policy on an annual basis.
When necessary, the Nomination Committee will
make recommendations to the Board to ensure
that the composition of the Board is balanced
and diverse. At the same time, the Company will
disclose the implementation of the Board diversity
policy in the Corporate Governance Report on
an annual basis to enhance transparency and
accountability.

Through these initiatives, the Company is
committed to building a board of directors with
comprehensive knowledge, complementary skills
and diverse backgrounds to drive the sustainable
development of the Group and create greater value
for Shareholders and other stakeholders.

ARBINESZTEXBHEBHENAE
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Company has formulated internal
policies and mechanisms (including but not limited
to the Articles of Association, Directors’” Nomination
Policy, Terms of Reference of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees) to ensure that the Board has
access to independent views and opinions. These policies
and mechanisms cover the Company’s selection criteria,
election and appointment procedures for Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors), the
recusal mechanism for Directors to vote on relevant
proposals to be considered by the Board, and the Directors
being entitled to seek independent professional advice
according to the Company’s policies to perform their
duties when necessary. In addition, the Board comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, who play
important roles in the Board by virtue of their independent
background, judgment and views. The Company will
review the implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms annually to ensure that the Board has access
to independent views and opinions.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board has
held meeting to review the corporate governance policies
and practices of the Company, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company, the policies and practices
of the Group in compliance with laws and regulations, the
compliance of Model Code (as defined below), and the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code by the
Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code for dealing
in securities in the Company by the Directors, Supervisors and
related employees. The Company has made specific enquiries
with the Directors and Supervisors and the Directors and
Supervisors have confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
December 31, 2024. During the Reporting Period, no incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the employees was noted
by the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the fees paid/payable to
the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
and non-audit services are set out as follows:

WF L HRITARTRERS
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For the year ended
December 31, 2024

BZ2024F
12A31BLFE
RMB million
AREBETT

Audit and related services E R B R
Annual audit and other services FEEZARTE R H A AR TS 5.8
Non-audit services B S
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THE RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE
DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibility statement of the Directors on financial
statements below shall be read in conjunction with that of the
auditor included in the independent auditor’s report in this
annual report, while both statements shall be comprehended
separately.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year that give a true
reflection of the operating results of the Company. To the
knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting Period, there
were no material events or circumstances which would have a
material adverse effect on the operations of the Company as a
going concern.

The Directors are aware of their responsibility for preparing all
data and statements contained in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2024 that give true and fair opinions on the position,
performance and cash flows of the Company for the relevant
period. The Directors believe that the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2024 have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
accounting standards and regulations and the amounts reflect
the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board of Directors and management. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis. The statements of the
auditor’s responsibility for reporting the consolidated financial
statements of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company has formulated its internal control management
system in accordance with the Listing Rules, the Enterprise
Internal Control Regulatory Systems and the COSO Internal
Control — Integrated Framework to better improve the
governance structure of the Group, strengthen and standardize
the internal control and management, guarantee the legitimacy
and compliance of the Group’s operation and management,
the safety of capital and assets, the authenticity and integrity of
financial reports and relevant information, improve operational
efficiency and effectiveness, and respond to the changes in
the external environment so as to facilitate the realization
of development strategies. The Group's internal control is a
process implemented by the management and all employees of
the Company to achieve control objectives. It is closely aligned
with strategic objectives, adapts to changes and fully identifies
risks, and has a certain level of management. The Company has
established a self-circulation closed-loop management supervision
mechanism, accurately attributing to responsible persons at
all levels and tracking improvement management. It provides
training and consultation for the Company’s internal control
activities, supports process control improvement, organizes self —
inspection and overall internal control assessments.
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The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement
and effective implementation of the Company's internal control
and risk management functions to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains effective risk management and
internal control systems, covering all key monitoring aspects
of the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
monitoring, and to continuously monitor the Group’s overall risks
(including environmental, social and governance risks), and the
scope, quality and procedures of risk management and internal
monitoring. During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the
risk management and internal monitoring systems. The scope of
the review covers, among other things:
(i) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training courses received by the staff and
budgets regarding the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, as well as
environmental, social and governance performance and

reporting;

(i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant

risks (including environmental, social and governance
risks) since the last review, as well as the Group's ability
to respond to changes in its business and external

environment;

(iii)  the scope and quality of the management’'s ongoing

monitoring of risks (including environmental, social and
governance risks) and risk management and internal
control systems, the work and effectiveness of the
internal audit function and the assurance provided by the

management;

(iv) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Board to enable the Board to assess the
status of the Group's controls and the effectiveness of risk
management;
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(v) any material monitoring failures occurred or significant
monitoring weaknesses identified at any time during the
review period, as well as the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that
have had, could have had, or may in the future have, a
material impact on the financial performance or condition
of the Group; and

(vi) the effectiveness of the procedures relating to financial
reporting and compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The Board considered such systems to be adequate and effective,
with no material monitoring failures occurred or significant
monitoring weaknesses identified. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the design
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis, directing and coordinating internal audits
and other related matters, etc. It also evaluates the effectiveness
of the Group’'s risk management and internal monitoring by
reviewing the inspection report on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control issued by the Group annually.

The Board of Supervisors oversees the establishment and
implementation of internal controls by the Board.

The management is responsible for organizing and leading the
day-to-day operation of the internal controls of the Group.

The Risk Management and Internal Control Report for the
current year has been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration and reviewed by the Board through the Audit
Committee.
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In accordance with the criteria for identifying internal control
defects in financial reporting and non-financial reporting as
set out in the Risk Management and Internal Control Report,
the Board considers that there were no material or significant
internal control defects in the Group during the Reporting Period.
As of December 31,
internal control systems are generally sound, and no deficiencies

2024, the Group's risk management and

and anomalies that have a significant impact on corporate
governance, operation management and development have been
identified.

The Board also confirms that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems have sufficient professional and
experienced staff in resources, accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and the training courses received by
the staff and the relevant budgets are sufficient.

Business Ethics

The Group has always adhered to the “Positivity” corporate
2024, the Group

had adopted the Whistle-blowing Policy to provide channels and

culture. During the year ended December 31,

guidelines for reporting possible irregularities, malpractice, and
corruption relating to the matters of the Group and guaranteed
to the whistleblower or entity (whistleblower) that the Group
would protect whistleblowers from dismissal, persecution or any
form of retaliation for making any true and sincere reports under
the Policy.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group had
adopted the Anti-Corruption Policy to ensure that relevant
employees maintain simplicity, openness and transparency in
all business transactions, and establish a clean and win-win
cooperative relationship with partners.
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Information Disclosure

In order to regulate the Company’s information disclosure
practices, strengthen the management of information disclosure
matters and protect the legitimate interests of investors, the
Company has formulated the Information Disclosure System in
accordance with the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
("SFC") and other applicable laws and regulations, in which it
sets out the procedures for the timely processing and release of
the Company’s periodic reports (including annual and interim
reports), interim reports (announcements and disclosures other
than periodic reports made by the Company in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations, including notifiable
transactions, inside information, etc.), and the management
of information disclosure to keep stakeholders informed of
the Group’'s latest position. The Board regularly reviews the
framework and its effectiveness.

Internal Audit

The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement and
effective implementation of the Company’s internal control and
risk management functions. The Audit Committee is established
under the Board, which is committed to overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis, assessing the effective implementation of internal
controls, and guiding and coordinating internal audit and
other related matters. Meanwhile, the Board of Supervisors is
responsible for overseeing the establishment and implementation
of internal controls by the Board, so as to ensure that various
measures are effectively implemented. The management is
responsible for organizing and leading the day-to-day work
of the internal controls of the Company in daily operations to
ensure its stable operations.
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The Company has internally set up a special audit department,
which comprehensively evaluates the efficiency and effect of
internal control design and implementation by conducting
comprehensive audits, special audits or special investigations.
The audit department supervises and inspects the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control design and operation with the
aim of promoting the continuous improvement and enhancement
of the Group's internal control work quality. If any internal
control deficiencies are identified in audits or investigations,
the audit department shall report to the Board of Supervisors,
Audit Committee or management in a timely manner according
to the severity of the issues, and urge relevant departments
to take active measures to rectify. In addition, through regular
communication and inquiry with the management, the head of
finance and employees of different levels, analysis of the business
operating data and financial data of the Company, and review of
the internal control reports as well as the inspection of records
of the Company, the Group was able to implement relevant
processes to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, fully reviews the
overall effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems annually. After careful assessment, the
Board confirmed that the Group's risk management and internal
control systems are generally sound, effective and adequate to
meet various challenges for the year. During the review process,
no deficiencies and anomalies that have a significant impact on
corporate governance, operation management and development
of the Company have been identified. The implementation of
these measures ensures the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management, and provides a solid guarantee for
the steady development of the Group.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Huang Min and Ms. Ng Wai Kam have been appointed as
the Company’s joint company secretaries. Ms. Ng Wai Kam is
currently a senior manager of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretaries on corporate governance and board
practices and matters.

Mr. Huang Min has been designated as the primary contact
person at the Company, and is responsible for working and
communicating with Ms. Ng on the Company's corporate
governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, Mr. Huang Min and Ms.
Ng Wai Kam had undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company has always been committed to pursuing close
and effective dialogue with Shareholders to ensure timely and
accurate disclosure of information concerning the Group's
material developments and safeguard the Shareholders’ right to
know and participate.
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Annual general meeting serves as an important bridge for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. We
make full use of this platform to propose resolutions on major
matters such as the election of Directors, for Shareholders’
consideration and voting. To enhance transparency, we pay
special attention to the attendance at annual general meetings,
to ensure all Directors, the chairpersons of all the Board
Committees, senior management and external auditor will
attend the meetings to address Shareholders’ inquiries onsite.
In case of special circumstances, if the chairman of the Board
or the chairperson of each Board Committee fails to attend the
meeting, then other members of committees will be invited to
attend on behalf of them, to ensure the communications with
Shareholders will not be affected.

All resolutions proposed at the general meetings will be voted
by poll. The voting results will be posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company timely to ensure the
information is open and transparent.

In addition, to facilitate the Shareholders to keep abreast of
the latest developments of the Group, the Company maintains
a dedicated website to regularly publish relevant information,
such as business operation, corporate governance and investor
relations. Meanwhile, the Company has established various
communication channels with its Shareholders, including regularly
releasing annual and interim results reports, annual and interim
reports, announcements and circulars, etc., and held results
press conferences, to provide the Shareholders with a chance to
communicate directly with the Company.

During the Reporting Period, we have comprehensively reviewed
the information disclosure on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange and confirmed that the shareholder
communication policy is effective. In the future, we will continue
to optimize this policy to ensure that Shareholders and the public
have timely access to the Group's latest information and witness
the growth and development of the Group together.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

In accordance with Article 51 and Article 68 of the Articles of

Association:

(1

The shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding ten
percent or more of the Company’s total voting shares
may sign one or more written requests in the same
format requesting the Board of Directors to convene
an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting and stating the
matters to be considered at the meeting. The Board of
Directors shall convene an extraordinary shareholders’
meeting as soon as possible after receipt of the aforesaid
written request. The above mentioned shareholding shall
be calculated as of the day on which the written request
is made.

If the Board of Directors does not agree to convene the
extraordinary shareholders’ meeting or fails to make a
response within ten days from the date of the receipt of
the above written request, the shareholder(s) individually
or jointly holding ten percent or more of the shares of the
Company shall have the right to propose to the Board of
Supervisors to convene the extraordinary shareholders’
meeting. Such request shall be made in writing.

If the Board of Supervisors fails to issue a notice of
holding shareholders’ meeting within five days after the
receipt of the request, it shall be deemed that the Board
of Supervisors shall not convene and preside over the
shareholders’ meeting, and the shareholder(s) individually
or jointly holding ten percent or more of the shares of
the Company for more than 90 consecutive days may
convene and preside over the meeting by himself/herself/
themselves.

Where the shareholders convene and preside over a meeting by

itself or themselves as the Board fails to convene the meeting

pursuant to the aforesaid request, the necessary expenses

incurred therefrom shall be borne by the Company and deducted

from the amounts payable by the Company to the defaulting

Directors.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Shareholders, who individually or jointly hold one percent or
more of the shares of the Company, shall be entitled to submit
ad hoc proposals and send them in writing to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1607, NEO, 123
Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, to submit to
the convener ten days before the convening of the shareholders’
general meeting. The convener shall issue a supplemental notice
of the shareholders’ general meeting within two days after the
receipt of the proposals. The Company shall include matters as
proposed in the proposals that are within the scope of authority
of the shareholders’ general meeting in the agenda of such
meeting, and announce the content of the ad hoc proposals.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’
Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations, whose
contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 1607, NEO, 123 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@ onewo.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the Company has made two
amendments to the Articles of Association. Except for the first
amendment to changes in registered capital and total number
of issued shares, the proposal of the second amendment to the
Articles of Association was, in order to, among other things,
(i) reflect the amendments required by relevant Chinese laws
and regulations and continue to comply with all applicable
regulatory provisions, and (ii) make amendment to the Articles of
Association after taking into account the actual position of the
Company, and it was considered and approved by Shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on September
27, 2024. For details of the amendments to the Articles of
Association, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated July 16, 2024, August 22, 2024, circular dated September
11, 2024 and announcement dated September 27, 2024. Save
as disclosed above, there were no changes to the Articles of
Association of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Onewo Inc.
A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Onewo Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 182 to 336, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB

BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

-+

FAREFISEE

Key audit matter

EZRUHRARERRESNHRABEEERNTMG

RPN ET NI EEERETTSE
How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and retention receivables

The balance of trade and retention receivables as at
31 December 2024 amounted to RMB6,541,534,000,
against which an allowance for impairment amounting
to RMB945, 135,000 was made.

Management assessed the expected credit losses of
trade and retention receivables based on expected
credit loss rates. Factors that management considers
in making the assessment of expected credit losses
include the Group's collection history, the aging profile
of the receivables, available information concerning
the creditworthiness of customers, existing economic
and industry conditions, as well as forward-looking
information at the end of the year.
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Our audit procedures in relation to the assessment of
the expected credit losses of the trade and retention
receivables included:

e Understanding, evaluating and testing management'’s
key controls in relation to the assessment of the
expected credit losses of trade and retention
receivables;

e Obtaining the impairment assessments of trade and
retention receivables prepared by management to
understand the credit loss provisioning methodology
adopted by the Group;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EESRETSH REANBTNAEERRENEE W
Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key
audit matter (continued)

EFRWREAREBRRRSNHABEEBRTMA @)

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and retention receivables (continued)

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the e Assessing the estimated credit loss rates by

significance of the balance in the consolidated financial considering historical cash collection and movements
statements and the assessment of the expected credit of the ageing of trade and retention receivables, the
losses on trade and retention receivables involving market conditions and forward-looking factors;

significant estimates made by management.
e Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
The accounting policies and disclosures are included calculation of the provision for loss allowance;
in notes 3, 23 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. e Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing analysis of receivables prepared by
management;

e Examining, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of the receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation; and

e Checking the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in connection with the
impairment of trade and retention receivables.
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BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

-+
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Key audit matter (continued)

BB R E G

Impairment assessment of goodwiill

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had goodwill of
RMB3,825,162,000, which accounted for approximately
10% of the total assets of the Group.

The Group determined that the residential business
group and the commercial and government-sponsored
institution business group (“Commercial and GSI
business group”) were separately accounted for as
two cash-generating units (“CGU") for the purpose
of impairment testing. Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the goodwill relates. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU.
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BMNETOAEERARESEEH @
How our audit addressed the key
audit matter (continued)

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

e Obtaining an understanding of management’s
assessment process of goodwill impairment;

e Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's
identification of the CGU based on the Group's

accounting policies and our understanding of the
Group’s business;
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BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ARETEE @)

Key audit matter (continued)

BB R E R (8)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (continued)

Significant judgements and estimates were involved
in the impairment assessment of goodwill. These
significant judgements and estimates include the
adoption of appropriate model and methodology to
perform impairment assessment of goodwill and the
use of key assumptions in the value-in-use calculation,
which primarily include annual revenue growth rates,
the long-term growth rate and pre-tax discount rates.

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the
significance of the goodwill balance and the significant
judgements and estimates made by management in the
impairment assessment of goodwill.

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BMNENAEEEARETSE
How our audit addressed the key
audit matter (continued)

e Obtaining management’s assessment on
goodwill impairment and evaluating the model
and methodology adopted by management to
perform goodwill impairment assessment and the
key assumptions used by management, with the
involvement of our internal valuation experts;

e Performing a retrospective review by comparing the
prior year's cash flow forecasts with the current
year's results to assess the reliability and historical
accuracy of management'’s forecasting process;

e Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the goodwill impairment assessment;
and

e Checking the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in connection with the
impairment assessment of goodwill.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

REMMmBTESHMBEERE
ARENETw

STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion..
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internal control that we identify during our audit. EITER
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

=Xsimi=bin
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

Notes 2024 2023
BtaE 20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
REVENUE WA 5 36,223,828 33,183,458
Cost of sales SHE A AR (31,526,949)  (28,371,691)
Gross profit EF 4,696,879 4,811,767
Other income and gains, net HApug A Rk 6 184,004 719,923
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R A X (584,962) (497,375)
Administrative expenses THEHEX (1,940,333) (2,073,304)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & @& ERMEKIEFE (608,148) (271,003)
Finance costs B SRR AR 7 (12,412) (8,538)
Share of profits and losses of joint EhEEhER
ventures and associates Be 28 N A) A1) B M B 1R (38,992) (23,649)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BAT R E 8 1,696,036 2,657,821
Income tax expense PSR = 11 (440,008) (621,992)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 1,256,028 2,035,829
Attributable to: AR & 77 FEh -
Shareholders of the Company RN BIREER 1,149,578 1,954,696
Non-controlling interests FEfE I i 106,450 81,133
1,256,028 2,035,829
EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
SHAREHOLDERS OF AAREBREEMN
THE COMPANY, IN RMB BRKE (ARY)
Basic and diluted AR E#E 13 0.98 1.66
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OLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Bt EEWER
Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFHE 1,256,028 2,035,829
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hitv2ElE A (BER)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AR R BEREN DS

that may be reclassified to profit or B EM

loss in subsequent periods: 2HEWE (EE)
Exchange differences: MEH 8

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations MEBINEFSHME =50 209 (162)

Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

AIREE R BRI ETN AR
B EMmEm
Wezs /(E1E) F58 209 (162)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value

TerEREPRET S EE
BaEMEE
W,/ (E518)
BERUAABESEELHEESY
FAEMEEEEORERE
NABEEED 200,872 (98,111)

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that

TeERBHRER SRS

will not be reclassified to profit or Bar Rt 2 m|

loss in subsequent periods Wzt (518 ) /5 200,872 (98,111)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FERHEMEEmWE S (BE)

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HERBIE 201,081 (98,273)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR

THE YEAR FAEHEWNEAEE 1,457,109 1,937,556
Attributable to: AR & 75 FEh -

Shareholders of the Company ZiN/NE |1 33 1,350,659 1,856,423

Non-controlling interests SEFE IR A 106,450 81,133

1,457,109 1,937,556
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& PF R AR R R
31 December 2024
2024912 A31H

Notes 31 December 31 December
2024 2023
BtaE 20244 20234
128318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMEF T ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B R 14 620,329 678,625
Investment properties REMYZE 15 960,268 548,290
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 16 324,229 353,683
Intangible assets B AE 17 7,733,496 7,981,176
Investments in joint ventures and
associates REEERBERRINIRE 18 1,947,172 1,413,676
Equity investments designated at EERARAAEBEFEZREE
fair value through other BE T AEMEE
comprehensive income Wi KRR REIE & 19 1,013,591 812,719
Financial assets at fair value through DWAREBEFEAHEZESH:TA
profit or loss EHBERNeREE 20 - 976
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 21 319,758 207,037
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - ke k
other receivables H 1th B UL TR IE 24 2,832,461 2,501,888
Total non-current assets FERMBEERE 15,751,304 14,498,070
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 558 22 102,440 56,054
Trade and retention receivables B S EN G IE R EWRE S 23 6,541,534 6,781,100
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - ke Rk
other receivables H At fE WK IR 24 2,135,138 1,912,396
Restricted bank deposits R ERITER 25 455,345 390,446
Time deposits with original maturity of ~ REIHHBBE=1EF &
over three months TEHAITE K 25 187,686 172,568
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeEEY 25 13,434,778 15,572,483
Total current assets MEEERE 22,856,921 24,885,047
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and notes payables B 5N RIE R EN R 26 6,657,945 5,764,491
Contract liabilities aRAaE 27 4,908,248 4,681,194
Other payables and accruals E A E T SR IE K FEETIE B 28 6,426,662 7,148,543
Lease liabilities HERE 16 102,048 99,772
Tax payable FETIE 998,218 988,559
Total current liabilities mE B ERsE 19,093,121 18,682,559
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;ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B PR AR R &
31 December 2024
2024%12H31H

Notes 31 December 31 December
2024 2023

Hiat 2024%F 20234
12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTFTT

NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 3,763,800 6,202,488

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES EEHAERABES 19,515,104 20,700,558
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBAE
Other payables and accruals Efh e FRIB N EETIA B 28 1,160,038 1,130,927
Provision A 29 104,731 146,910
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 233,910 251,589
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIBEE 21 856,674 950,891
Total non-current liabilities JERE B ERRE 2,355,353 2,480,317
Net assets BEFE 17,159,751 18,220,241
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders of

the Company AR AR FE I e e
Share capital &z 30 1,171,565 1,178,469
Reserves {1 31 15,251,039 16,426,957

16,422,604 17,605,426

Non-controlling interests VR 737,147 614,815
Total equity EmAATE 17,159,751 18,220,241
Zhu Baoquan He Shuhua
KRE AT BEEE
Director Director
3 £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHEERER
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

Notes 2024 2023
Wit 20245 2035
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFTL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEDRERERE
Profit before tax AT 1,696,036 2,657,821
Adjustments for: HEEE
Depreciation and amortisation FTEREH 8 1,004,655 1,016,165
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and HENE - BE - JER
equipment and investment properties REAMMEERMME (5,208) (77,018)
WARBEFEAEEHIA
Fair value gains on financial assets at EHERMEREEN
fair value through profit or loss AR EERR 6 (74,358) (72,230
MARBEFEAEEHHIA
Fair value gains on financial liabilities at EHEENERERED
fair value through profit or loss AR BENE 6 - (191,792)
Impairment losses on trade and retention B SRR R RE
receivables, net REBEFE 823 523,980 193,937
Impairment losses on prepayments, BAFE - ke REM
deposits and other receivables, net ENFERESRESE 824 84,168 77,066
Impairment losses on investment in associates REERFARERESE 18 83,592 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of equity interests HERENER /(Ka) 157 (82,660)
Gain on remeasurement of the previously BHHBUNEREY
held interest in an associate Ba Al ER A e 6 (47,645) -
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and EEeEtERBEAR
associates MEREE 18 38,992 23,649
Interest income MEBKA 6 (90,460) (124,479)
Finance costs ISR AR 7 12,412 8,538
Foreign exchange differences, net FNEZ (1,400) (5,613)
3,224,921 3,423,384
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE(Em),/ mo (46,386) 12,676
Increase in trade and retention receivables 2 5 MEA KB RE S (550,605) (728,957)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BAFE - ke REM
other receivables RWFIEEM (480,240 (515,308)
Increase in trade and notes payables BN FERENRREMN 860,054 460,736
E th e F0E R ERE B
(Decrease)fincrease in other payables and accruals (R / (588,827) 240,952
Increase in contract liabilities ARBEEN 223,799 175,536
(Decrease)/increase in provision & (RD) /0 (42,179) 29,627
2,600,537 3,098,646
Tax paid BAHE (681,771) (512,416)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELBFEREREFR 1,918,766 2,586,230
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER
Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

Notes 2024 2023
M 2024% 2023%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTL
Net cash flows from operating activities £&EHFERERETFHE 1,918,766 2,586,230
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBFEAERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment mMENE - BERXEEAFMERE 6,333 40,671
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment BENZE  BERXEER (197,756) (277,369)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HERE S REHR 46,205 76,805
Purchase of investment properties BERENNE (26,913) (10,953)
Purchase of intangible assets REEVAE (57,471) (87,612)
Prepayments for capital investments BREARER (185,716) -
Purchase of shareholding in joint ventures and associates BERELEREEATRE (601,113) (12,191)
Advances of loans to joint ventures AHAELEER (124,877) =
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates AEPERBA N TGRS 31,824 34,162
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures and associates MERERERBERRMEHE 8,224 198,815
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEHBAR - HkHAERE 92,577 (22,099)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HERBLRMEHE 1,926 136,483
Receipt from wealth management products KEBHEmR 75,334 72,230
Interest received A 90,460 108,416
Placement of pledged deposits EHEERER (42,575) =
Withdrawal of pledged deposits REBHERER - 45,782
Increase in time deposits with original maturity of
over three months REMREB=EANHTERETEN 25 (15,118) (150,738)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities REEY (F1H)/ F5BLREF (898,656) 152,402
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETHFERERE
Share issue expenses paid BENRHETRY - (10,212)
Disposal of non-controlling interests ESERER 3,070 9,683
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W ES (218,138) (12,022)
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER 33(b) (16,000) =
Interest paid BRFIE 33(b) (155) =
Dividends paid BARE (2,423,999) (284,010)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B HERBRAORE (45,612) (47,453)
Shares repurchased Bl (330,773) (42,558)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERESHFSER (12,257) (8,538)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHENERER (115,351) (121,715)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEFTRRENETE (3,159,215) (516,825)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHEERER
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

Notes 2024 2023
i3 20245 20236
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND RERFSEENH
CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) BmEE (2,139,105) 2,221,807
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ENRESRESEEY 15,572,483 13,345,063
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHNT2TH 1,400 5,613
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR EXRERALEEY 13,434,778 15,572,483

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED IN

THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS REeRERBIINEERESEEY 25 13,434,778 15,572,483

EBMEERPMERBBRMOER AT 2024FFH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Onewo Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on 20 February 2001
as a limited liability company. On 20 March 2018, the
Company was converted into a joint stock company with
limited liability under the Company Law of the PRC.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o Community space living consumption services
o Commercial and urban space integrated services
3 AloT and BPaas$ solution services

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is China Vanke Co., Ltd. (the
“China Vanke"), a public company established in the PRC
with its shares listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

RAREBER

EWETHEMERBERKRDERA A
([ARAF])R200142 5208 EHE
ARZEFME ([HE])FMKZLAE K
BMRAR - R2018F3 8208 » AR
AIRIE (R E AR LFIB A RE) 2
BRNBRAR °

FA AKEREATEZERS

. IR EEE B RS
. 1 F T Z= B4R A IR TS
. AloT M BPaaS# A7 2= AR 7%

EEZRR ARANRAKER AT
REBMEEERONARAR ([BRE
X —RKRPERIH EHAR] A&
BOERIIBZRZANEEBAR
SRBRAB [BRFT] EH)
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries, all of which

are limited liability companies:

Company name

IR

RIHEMDEREER A

REEBMMEREER A

REMERDERBERAA

LBEMDEREERAA]

BEEMNEREERAH

IR IMEERERAR

ERBRRTNEZEEARAR

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business
ML/
BRI

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B,
PRC/Mainland China
hE/ RE R
PRC/Mainland China
RE/ RER
PRC/Mainland China
HE /BN,
PRC/Mainland China
FE /B,
PRC/Mainland China
mE/ BERN
PRC/Mainland China
HE /BN

192 SEVEZFERBERBERNOERIF 202455

1. RAREEEE »

ERMEBLRER

UTREZNBRAABE -

- Pavay
= =
AAX =T

NEZERBRATE

Registered
share capital

&R A

RMB50,000,000
AR¥50,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000
AEK#10,000,0007T
RMB12,000,000
AR#12,000,0007T
RMB12,260,000
AE#12,260,0007C
RMB10,000,000
AEK#10,000,0007T
RMB50,800,000
AR#%50,800,0007T
RMB50,000,000
AR#50,000,0007T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
LNl 1
LB

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

65

65

65

65

Principal
activities

EdE) ]

Property management
MEER
Property management
NEEE
Property management
NEEE
Property management
NEERE
Property management
NEEE
Property management
NEEE
Property management

MEER



1.

STO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Company name

L

ERERNEREARAF

REDRENZRBEERAR

BERTNESN S ERAT

RBEMNEREBRAA

RESHNMEREARAF

THEEEMNERBAERAR

BEMNHERMERBERAR

REMBEHDERBERAR

EFMEMDERGEER A

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
ML,
2o R R B

1. RAREEEE »

Registered

share capital

i fff R A

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
RN EEL
i Syl

EBEMBATER @

Principal
activities

TEER

PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100  Property management
E/HER AR¥50,000,0007T 100 MEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 65  Property management
B/ HER AR#50,000,0007 65 YEER
PRC/Mainland China UsD5,800,000 65  Property management
hE /B 5,800,000 7T 65 YEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB 100,000,000 100  Property management
hERER AR#100,000,0007 100 WEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100  Property management
/R E AL AK#20,000,0007 100 MEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB10,580,000 100  Property management
e/ HER ARH10,580,0007T 100 MEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100  Property management
R REA AR¥5,000,0007T 100 MEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100  Property management
hE R AR#5,000,0007 100 MEER
PRC/Mainland China RMB20,010,000 100  Property management
i/ HE R AR#20,010,0007 100 #9EESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Company name

L

mMERNEREARAF

EREMNEEEERAR

A HEENERBEERAR

ERENEENERBERRA

AHERDEZRERAF

MIXERMEEEREBRAR

BMIERS(EB)ERAA

A HENEEREERAR

AIHENRFERERAF

BHBEERREARAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
ML,
2o R R B

PRC/Mainland China
E /HER
PRC/Mainland China
RE / RER
PRC/Mainland China
hE/ HE A
PRC/Mainland China
R B
PRC/Mainland China
HE/RER
PRC/Mainland China
hE /R ERL
Hong Kong

BB

PRC/Mainland China
mE/HER
PRC/Mainland China
hE /R ERL
PRC/Mainland China
hE/ RER

194 ENEZ=FERBRBRNODERIF 202455

1. RAREEEE »

Registered

share capital

i fff R A

RMB125,000,000
AE125,000,0007T
RMB12,000,000
AE#12,000,0007C
RMB 100,000,000
AE%100,000,0007C
RMB50,000,000
AEK#50,000,0007T
RMB217,293,558
AE#217,293,558 T
RMB20,280,000
AE#20,280,0007C
HK$150,000,000
150,000,000 7T
RMB12,820,500
AR#12,820,5007C
RMBS5,000,000
AK#5,000,0007T
RMB5,000,000
AR¥5,000,0007T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
RN EEL
i Syl

100
100
100
100
100
100

65

65
100
100

54

54
100
100

61

61
100
100
100
100

EBEMBATER @

Principal
activities

TEER

Property management
NEEE
Property management
MEER
Property management
NEEE
Property management
NEEE
Property management
NEEE
Property management
NEERE
Property management
NEEE
Property management
MEER
Property management
NEEE
Property management

NEER



1.

STO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Company name

IR

LBEENEREERRA]

LEEAEBLEREEEERAT

RREENEEBERAF

R ERERERREBRAR

A HEREEMRERAR

RNTEDKEHARBERAT

RNTES I HERBERAR

A mENHRREREERAA)

AT ELERBERRARARD

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
EMRL,
B0 R AT i B

PRC/Mainland China
hE /B,
PRC/Mainland China
RE /B
PRC/Mainland China
HE /BN
PRC/Mainland China
HE /BN,
PRC/Mainland China
FE /B,
PRC/Mainland China
R/ R AL
PRC/Mainland China
hE /BN,
PRC/Mainland China

B E R,
PRC/Mainland China
HE/RERAL

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

1. RAREEEE »

EBEMBATER @

Percentage
of equity
attributable

Registered to the Principal

share capital Company activities
AN REL
1R R 2 EHEDL

RMB1,000,000 100  Property management
AK¥1,000,0007 100 MEEE
RMB212,500,000 100  Property management
AR¥212,500,0007C 100 MEEE
RMB62,100,000 100  Property management
AE#62,100,0007C 100 #XEERE
RMB 10,000,000 100  Enterprise service
A& #10,000,0007T 100 ERS
RMB 100,000,000 100 Intelligent engineering
AE#100,000,0007T 100 FEaIR
RMB10,000,000 100 Investment management
AE#10,000,0007T 100 REER
RMB3,000,000 100  Real estate brokerage
AR #3,000,0007T 100 FELK
RMB3,000,000 100 Home decoration and
renovation
AK#3,000,0007T 100 FEEHREE
RMB1,000,000 45 T service
AE#1,000,0007T 45 ITHR%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ATREEEE @
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB ATER @
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ attributable
registration Registered to the Principal
Company name and business share capital Company activities
KL, AAREL
G 2o R R B R A EREDL FEER
AHENERRBRA PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 100 T service
hEl/RER AE#1,000,000,0007C 100  ITAR%S
KEMENENRERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 IT service
R BN AR#10,000,0007 100 TR
RITENABRREBRLA PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 Industrial investment
HE/ RE A AR#30,000,0007T 100 EERE
AT ENERRRERAH PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 100 Public facility management
HE /R ER ARHS5,000,0007T 100 DHEREER
AmENERERES PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 Public facility management
EBERRA hE/RERNL ARH#50,000,0007C 100 DHREER
(1) The Group considers that it controls this company even (1) REERA - HEEA LR 50% 8%
though it owns less than 50% of the equity interest. This PN EWE%UE NAE] c ERAAK
is because the Group could control over the board of SR AEHZARNES S ARG
directors and the financial and operating policies of this REERE -
company.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company FREINESRBIEFELRFEE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected BB AEEFEERK—FHH
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion RKRARIMB AR - EFRA  JHE
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other B AR 2 FEHERRERABRIT
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result Ko

in particulars of excessive length.
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2.

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, derivative financial instruments and equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

FETBE

2.

1

fm B EL A

ZEM BRI TIRIBCBE R Y
BHEEL) (BHEAAKBEE
SR EAE S HIEMER
28)  FEAREHRAULE
B SR RHERR) 2 35 R TE AR
5L o HJh iR BRIE s2 A AN 18 Bl A
2D RAAEBEFENA
NRABEAEREEHFAE
HESNEREE  UARE
BfEREREHFAEHES
MEemMaE TEEMIAR
BERNMAAEBEAELRE
Bt AR RER
BRI - ZFHHHRRUAR
25 BREBEAN A
FEHNBESEON TR

mERE

EHVBRERBEEAEEES
202412 A31BItFEZE
BHwE - B RARIEHAAR A
BEAEEEHNEE (BIELS
BHEER) BASEHK2HE
BHRNWEBTIESHAEE
BSr Ok BEENABE
HEBHRNEIMEEZS
Bl (BB BN AEEE A
BEENIREEHRNERE
g)) - AR RS HIRE -

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

197




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE @)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority
of voting rights results in control. When the
Company has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

MRBRBRDERATE 202455

REERE ()

R—BREATIFEEZHERE
BEKEHEZETE - BEAR
RHREBREHRMIEZHRR
RN - RNEBEEF
HEERHRAHREHRNE
NEEZEMAMBSEEER
o B

(a) HEREHRMEMERE
FBARILAB O

(b) EMEXLHELNE
s K

(0 AEENREENEER

e

B 8 ) 4% 2 AN B A2 /) ) ¥k
THREVBRER - LHRA—
HHEFBE - MEBAR XS
BAREERFEGEZHES
B XRESHEZZFES
REARLE o

1Bas ME M & mE W aR % AE AEB
DEBRAEEFGAREAA
NOEER s - B LR S
BOFEREm MR AL A o
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FMEEERRRBEERSE
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the
exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

DEIEER @

2.1

mBEXE ()
A ()

MRFEMBERBR LA
EHN=ZHETEF —BAXZ
HEE  AAKEESENTG
HELMAZEMNREHR - W0
R—FXMBRANEAEED
3R & ) 1 I 4 B K K1
B RIBEEHIRAEEDER
2o

MRKEBRETHHME AT
EFE B - RIS AR R
MEE (BEBE) BE -
1 0] SF 22 S0 25 N I 5 O B ok
o LHEIRTARBRENR
REERERSETHILELEZ
EMARIEA - NEEZA
A EL b 2 T W o B B EY 8 K D
DEBEWE DR ABRE
SRR E AN - REEIMRAE
EERLERREEXRAERM
FEMER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 2.2 EFBENEEBRIEE
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs REBNRAEETBERERTE

IRERF DA N IE AT B B FR B 75

for the first time for the current year's financial

statements. HRAEZERD) o

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
(BB S 2R 165k (BFTA) E#MEIFHE R &

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)
(BB gt F15% (BETA) BESEREI B ([2020F &4 ])
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”)

(BEEREER)FE 15 (BFTA) W1 B R FE R B B (& ([2022FFER] A 1)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
(BB EDETRE HIEB B LHE

(B 5 S 2ER) £ 758 (BFTAS)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are BaT 18 B R B 7S 3 &5 22 81 )
described below: WEEMTZENT :

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the
requirements that a seller-lessee uses in
measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to
the right of use it retains. Since the Group
has no sale and leaseback transactions with
variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate occurring from the
date of initial application of IFRS 16, the
amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the
Group.

MRBRBRDERATE 202455

(BB TSR & R ) E
165 (BRI R)BETE
FEBEAESEERAL
REPELAHNTEEARE
RERAMESNR - URRE
FEBATEERERLR
B8 1) {5 FARE AR A A (E () LU
mHEIEeRE c AREH
IR FB B B B 7S R 45 2
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37 n] A E R IE
BURRIEE S F X EE
MER S - ALZEER]
RAREAE BB BAR R
R RIRIER AL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, including what is
meant by a right to defer settlement and
that a right to defer must exist at the end
of the reporting period. Classification of
a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement. The amendments also
clarify that a liability can be settled in its
own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments
further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or
non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and
conditions of its liabilities as at 1 January
2023 and 2024 and concluded that the
classification of its liabilities as current or
non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

2. BFEBEm®
22 B BENEHREE

(&)

(b)

2020 F BRI ARBER &
EDBEARENIERBA
BT BREEEENRE
F J2 3 AT #E A 4 B 1
HHRGEE - BENDE
TREBBITEEELELE
RN REENRE -
ZEBEIAEE - A
AAEARGrER TR
5 HEZUEKREED
ERERERAR ERER
TEARE  8EMIEK
RATEEHLE -
2022 F BRI R —HF
B EERETHEFTE AR
BEZOF  REEBY
AR RS B Bk 2 B8 ST
NEAeLEZAENMN
B IEmB 0L - BEEA
RREEZ 12188 K&
TFARREZEREAT @ 3
EmB B EELEINE

E‘go

2023F % 2024F 1 A1
B R &R - B
@Ewm o RBEXERZEE
AR - HEERN RIS
ERB D BRFIAE -
It - ZFEFTAREAE
B ) B TSRO S R IR AE K
g2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR T

Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BFEBEm®
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 EHENETREE
disclosures (continued) (#8)
() Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify () <(EBeztEBR)E75 Kk
the characteristics of supplier finance (ERERBT IR R &S AR Y FE 7
arrangements and require additional (BTN BIESHERDR
disclosure of such arrangements. The BELZHENES T E
disclosure requirements in the amendments K E LB EH ZBINE
are intended to assist users of financial ' o R E BT AR ER
statements in understanding the effects F S TR SR RE A
of supplier finance arrangements on an E T RAER A TP
entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure EREaE - BRER=ELT
to liquidity risk. As the Group does not HELEMEHRONZE -
have supplier finance arrangements, the A AN & E 3 L R R
amendments did not have any impact on the B Bz E (BT
Group's financial statements. REANEFR ISR FT &

RAERIFE -
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these new and revised IFRSs, if

applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 18
(EIFRM B S ER) 185
IFRS 19

CEIR A TSR S 2E R 581955
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

CEIR 5 S22 R ) 95 &
CEIBR B Rk & BRI D B 7 5% (IBRTA)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(EIRR B T ERE 2R RI) £ 105% &
(BB ER)FE 285k (BETA)

Amendments to IAS 21

(BB gt 2R F215% (BETA)

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards — Volume 11

(BIB A1 3R & B R ) &5t B Rl 2 F /R 2

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

2. BFEBEm®

23 EEMEERERD
(Bl %R & 280D

B R R S
5 7 AT B9 L 5 A 2 A
5757 AR5 3T A0 (B IR 81 75 4R
£RA]) o AEMBRBEEN
B - SRS T RS T M
(EIRRBH 3R ) (SnER) -

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements®

B & 2 5 R 15 5%

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures®

HERNAZTEMANE LA -

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments’

@ TADE R EAER?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture’

REZHABENRA S E PR FNEELERTE!
Lack of Exchangeability’

S Al E AL

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 72

(BB EHREER)F 15  KERMBHRELEANDETHE -

—F115 (BRI BHREERDFEIT  (BERMBREER)D
F105R (BB ERIDF 75 (BRI A)?
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 202541 B 1B %Y 4B

1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2

1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning 3

on or after 1 January 2027

4 No mandatory effective date is determined but 4

available for adoption

FEBBER

202651 A1 HE 2 & RIAH
FEHIR AR

M2027F1 A1 B2 ERBRH
FE /s AR

REERAERAM  ETH
5
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Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024




204

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these revised IFRSs
upon initial application. So far, the Group has
expected that these standards are unlikely to
have significant effect on the Group’s financial

performance and financial position.
Material accounting policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long-term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

ENEEMMBRRBENDERAF 202455

D BUR @)

2.3

2.4

B 78 # {8 i K &
(EIRR A 5 3R &5 2 Al
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EEERTE

BEESHEE

X
Y &)

RBELATARGELEZRE
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

2.

=
=

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. BFEBEm®
2.4 EESHBE %)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

MRBRBRDERATE 202455
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which
is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

2.

=
=

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

MRBRBRDERATE 202455
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value-in-use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent

of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

b) the party is an entity where any of the

following conditions applies:

iii)

Vi)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group; and the
sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESFBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

216

Related parties (continued)

b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings

ZEY

Machinery and motor vehicles
He2s R EDER

Electronic and other equipment
B MEMRE

Leasehold improvements

HEMERELE

\\)?r

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

2.

=
=

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

TR ()

24 EEESFHE®

M BERRBRTE (@)

WEDREME  BEER

TR B b A F B A DA B AR
EMEERAERBREBE
B -RULERNERNEIESF
M

Over 1.37%

1.37% A E

4.80% to 19.20%

4.80% - 19.20%

19.20% to 32.00%

19.20% - 32.00%

Over the shorter of the relevant
lease term and 20.00%

HERATAEAER20.00% BB &

MRBOME -~ BEMRER
BNERFEHTR - W%E
BRRAREEEENRE

Mo - MEF DK BILE *’“Tﬁ
%°ﬂ%E@ £ & 8 R A
ENTAELREMREFEERT
AZEE] - WIEH AR (WER) °

WME - BEAREER (B
MR EMERIS) KEH
ERYERBEAIEETH
Fiﬁﬁﬂwﬂ*’Jmiﬁ
R EEERIEBRAFERE
TR MR 2 H & KRR A
W BB R EMFRIEE
REEMEERAECHANE
B o

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

217




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

218

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including right-of-use assets) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over the estimated useful lives. Where
the carrying amount of an investment property
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,
it is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount. Any gains or losses on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationship
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected useful life of the customer relationship,
which is 10 years. The expected useful life is
primarily related to property service contracts,
and is determined based on management’s best
estimate of the total period from which the benefits
will be derived from the customer relationship and
will reflect the consumption of future economic
benefits from the customer relationship, taking
into account: 1) the typical term of the property
service contracts, 2) the historical track record of
successful contract renewal. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BFBE®
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 2.4 EEEHBE @

Leases (continued) HE (B

Group as a lessee AEBEEREAHBEA

The Group applies a single recognition and ANEFBEAEHEE (CHBEEN

measurement approach for all leases, except for EEBEEEMERIN) FLEE —

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. AR EFE - NEEWED

The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease HEBGBUELEHEENZ M

payments and right-of-use assets representing the FREEERTRABEABEEN

right to use the underlying assets. FER o

(@) Right-of-use assets (a) (EHEZE
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the FREEEREEREA
commencement date of the lease (that is ER (BDAB A& &= o] 1 A
the date the underlying asset is available HE|) MR - FHERE
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured B ARER 25T E &
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation FE R EEEEE - Wit
and any impairment losses, and adjusted HEABNEMEHTE
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. EH AR - FRELEN
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the KABIEEREIANEER
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial E4%E  PEEMYBE
direct costs incurred, and lease payments B RS B Eis 2
made at or before the commencement date B2 YEE B FE &1~ FORE
less any lease incentives received. Right-of- A2 WH B EERE o F
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line AEEEEINTNEENTE
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and SRR R EE —E
the estimated useful lives of the assets as B AS R EARRE N IR B 40F
follows: SHRITE
Buildings 1 to 15 years
e 27 12155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BItBE®
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 BEESTBE®
Leases (continued) HE (&8
Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREABAA (BE)
(a)  Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) (EHEELE §)
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to IRBEEENMARELE
the Group by the end of the lease term or THEHAEREEEE RE
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase = sl Bk AN e Bl B B iR 42 A
option, depreciation is calculated using the WiTE - AfEREESNHG
estimated useful life of the asset. SHERFHTERE -
When a right-of-use asset meets the INRFERAEEEFEERE
definition of investment property, it is HENTEE  BIFTAR
included in investment properties. The BMEYE o HERGE AR
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially BESVIEKXAFE @ BB
measured at cost, and subsequently BIBBEAEERN[EKEE
measured at cost less accumulated M | R - R AR =
depreciation and accumulated impairment R EMR T REER
losses in accordance with the Group’s policy =& o

for “Investment properties”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued 2. BEBERmw
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 BEESTBE®

Leases (continued) HE (&8

Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREABAA (BE)

(b)  Lease liabilities (continued) b) HMHEEEGE)
In calculating the present value of lease NAEHRENTWNIRE
payments, the Group uses its incremental i AR HEER SRR
borrowing rate at the lease commencement HUET @ AIXEBIEK
date because the interest rate implicit in the AEEHSRE B RS
lease is not readily determinable. After the SERFIETE - RFEH
commencement date, the amount of lease HEjf% - HEBEMNEH
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion 38 91 DA [z Bg 1| BB, 38 40 ST 3
of interest and reduced for the lease BEEHMMEE T LA
payments made. In addition, the carrying oo AN IR HIRE
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured =] - FHEREE) HERMK
if there is a modification, a change in the =) (B - &S ek F
lease term, a change in lease payments R B ARBENK
(e.g., a change to future lease payments HAEE)) N EEREE
resulting from a change in an index or rate) ENEERETFELIRE
or a change in assessment of an option to 8 AlEFH=t=HEaE
purchase the underlying asset. HBREE °

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value (c) MHHEEREEEZEH
assets E
The Group applies the short-term lease AEEHESHESE (A
recognition exemption to its short-term HHEEHMRAGB®12E
leases (that is those leases that have a AL TETBEEE
lease term of 12 months or less from the RIBHENTEE) FERE
commencement date and do not contain THERANR - BEBK
a purchase option). It also applies the BEEEHENERRR
recognition exemption for leases of low- e B AR AR EERHE
value assets to leases that are considered to g - MHEEMREESR
be of low value. Lease payments on short- ERENHENKAERE
term leases and leases of low-value assets HANIREREIEREE
are recognised as an expense on a straight- A o

line basis over the lease term.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and
fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade and retention receivables
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
and retention receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. BFHEw®
2.4 EESHBE %)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that
is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (equity
investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Ffinancial
Instruments.: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are
never recycled to the statement of profit or
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BiTHE®
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 2.4 BEESEE @
Investments and other financial assets REGEMEREE (&)

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or URABHEITEBESFH T A
loss EHEENERNEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss LARBHEEBEHZFH T A
are carried in the statement of financial position at EHIEENEREETIUAAR
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised BENRMBERIESE WA
in the statement of profit or loss. NEESIFBAINIERXF
This category includes equity investments which %88 Bl B FE 7N £ B 3 4 S )
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify EHRIEU AR EBEIERH
at fair value through other comprehensive income. et AHM A2 mWE D ER
Dividends on the equity investments are also fERESE - XS RERES. - IR
recognised as other income in the statement of AR B IR B R A RE
profit or loss when the right of payment has been ZEE MU o

established.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

3 the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. BFEBEm®
2.4 EESHBE %)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The
Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade and
retention receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and retention receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. BFEBEm®
24 BEEESTHHE ®

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
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attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial IR - AR INBEEEGR
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depends on their classification as follows: A9 48 -

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
are designated at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except for the gains
or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. B BEw

24 EESHBE®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade and notes payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities
and other payables and accruals are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cost of inventories includes the transfer from equity
of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
in respect of the purchases of raw materials.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a
maturity of generally within three months that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits
as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of
a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to
the provision of smart property solution services
for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-
type warranties granted by the Group are initially
recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis
and revised where appropriate. The warranty-
related cost is revised annually.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEHBE @
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 BEEESTHHE ®

Income tax (continued) RSBt (&)
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at ENEHIIEEERBEUTEBRR
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid HMEHERLODSAEY NS
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and s RERKEHKREHE
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively MBS FE BB =R (R
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking E)EHE - WEFTRAEFEKE
into consideration interpretations and practices FTEBRRIRITHZRERIED -
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, ELERIBE A A B RS RS H
on all temporary differences at the end of the REENBEREEHEMBER
reporting period between the tax bases of assets EHREEZENEERE
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for RECTIR RS o

financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable A ERBRE =5 ERE

temporary differences, except: EFRIEARE - M NVIERER

o when the deferred tax liability arises from o EEFRIEEEIIRE—E
the initial recognition of goodwill or an W IEEKE R F R )
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a FTHERAEENEENAE
business combination and, at the time of the MEYS - BRX ST
transaction, affects neither the accounting mEBaFHIN T e EfE
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does A A EEE - ARD
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible @ ELEBSEHERN LA
temporary differences; and FHURER =R &

° in respect of taxable temporary differences ° MEREB AT - BEEN
associated with investments in subsidiaries, AREEDLENKESR
associates and joint ventures, when the A ER SR =%
timing of the reversal of the temporary = (HE R EZE RO
differences can be controlled and it is Al . B E e gk EsE N
probable that the temporary differences will A] 8 B &Y 78 2K 7] g e 3
not reverse in the foreseeable future. O o

240 SENEZFERRBRNOERIEF 202455




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. DFHBE®
2.4 EESHHEE @)

&% (&)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible FrERHIEER =% - 458
ABATEE R REMKE
FA %5t T8 &5 18 15 A% B BRI AE 7% 18
BE - BREMBEELA B
FERBAE - BAIHRERE
BHAENABATEREZER
RAEABIEEE] AUAENE
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, EERAEABRET A TR
except: R MEATIERERIN -

temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available, against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity is recognised in
other comprehensive income or equity and not in
profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business
combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised
subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances arises. The adjustment is either
treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it
does not exceed goodwill) if it occurred during the
measurement period or if it occurred outside the
measurement period, it is recognised in profit or
loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. BFEBEm®
2.4 EESHBE %)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

The Group provides community space living
consumption services, commercial and urban
space integrated services and AloT and BPaaS
solution services. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when services are rendered
to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange of those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Community space living consumption services

Community space living consumption services
comprise: (i) residential property services; (ii) home-
related asset services; and (iii) other community
value-added services.

Residential property services primarily include
cleaning services, security services, gardening
services and repair and maintenance services to
property owners, property owners’ associations or
residents for residential properties. For property
services, revenue is recognised when services
are rendered to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange of those services.

The Group charged property services fees in respect
of the property services on a lump sum basis and
on a management remuneration basis.

For property services income from properties
managed on a lump sum basis, where the Group
acts as the principal and is primarily responsible
for providing the property services, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from
property developers, property owners and residents
as its revenue and all the costs incurred in providing
the residential property services as its cost of
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Community space living consumption services

(continued)

For property service income of properties managed
on a management remuneration basis, the Group
acts as an agent and recognises the service
income, which is calculated by reference to the
total property management fee receivable from
the property owners, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services provided by service
suppliers to the property owners.

Home-related asset services mainly include home
sale and rental brokerage services and home
redecoration and furnishing services. Revenue
from home sale and rental brokerage services is
recognised at the point in time when the services
are rendered and accepted by the customers.
Revenue from home redecoration and furnishing
service is recognised over time, in the amount the
Group has a right to bill, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Other community value-added services mainly
include commission income from carpark space
sales assistance services, which are recognised on
a net basis at point in time when the control of
properties or the use rights of car park spaces are
transferred to the customer.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Commercial and urban space integrated
services

Commercial and urban space integrated services
mainly include property and facility management
services, value-added services for developers and
urban space integrated services.

The Company offers comprehensive property
and facility management services including (i)
commercial property services which focus on
tasks of the property management of commercial
premises and (ii) integrated facility management
services which focus on addressing the workplace
needs arising from the non-core business processes
of occupiers. The Group bills for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises it as revenue
in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value
of performance completed.

Value-added services for developers mainly include
(i) sales center and model room management; (ii)
and pre-delivery support services; and (iii) building
maintenance services. The Group agrees the price
for each service with the property developers
upfront and issues a monthly bill to the property
developers which varies based on the actual level
of service completed in that month. Revenue from
value-added services is recognised over time in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice,
because the property developers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. =EHEE @

2.4 EESHBE @

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

AloT and BPaa$ solution services

AloT solutions mainly include smart property
solutions.

Smart property solutions mainly include equipment,
design, integration and construction which are
highly interdependent and interrelated. The Group
accounts for these goods and services as a single
performance obligation. Revenue from smart
property solutions is recognised over time, using an
output method to measure progress towards the
complete satisfaction of the service, because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

BPaaS solutions mainly include remote operation
services.

The service fees are charged based on the nature
of services the clients subscribe for as well as the
number of service requests, which are generally
payable on a monthly or quarterly basis. Revenue
from BPaa$S solutions is recognised overtime when
such services are rendered.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received, or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EHHEw
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 2.4 BEESHBE ®)

Contract costs S AR

Other than the costs which are capitalised as BREEBERNATRE U K

inventories, property, plant and equipment and BN R E A R T E E KR

intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract h  BREITREEPASEHMESER

with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of BRARFTEN TN EEENE

the following criteria are met: MTIERNMLB—TBEE -

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to (a) PXAREAZRER]IA B BERETE
an anticipated contract that the entity can & 4k TEER & 4 E B
specifically identify. g o

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources (b)  BXAREE A oR FEE R AR
of the entity that will be used in satisfying BIAETT (SKEBERIT)
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance BATEERNER °

obligations in the future.

(@) The costs are expected to be recovered. (c) Bk ZN 8 ER g Uk [m] o

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and BAREEHKAILZE MR P &
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a HEHEERBEORE @RS E
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer — MW RS B EE T
to the customer of the goods or services to which BiERNRN% o Hihd 4k 24
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed ISR

as incurred.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the
reporting period, but prior to the date of
authorisation for issue, about conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period, it will
assess whether the information affects the amounts
that it recognises in its financial statements. The
Group will adjust the amounts recognised in
its financial statements to reflect any adjusting
events after the reporting period and update the
disclosures that relate to those conditions in light of
the new information. For non-adjusting events after
the reporting period, the Group will not change
the amounts recognised in its financial statements,
but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting
events and an estimate of their financial effects, or
a statement that such an estimate cannot be made,
if applicable.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability when they

are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.

MRBRBRDERATE 202455

BEMRER

MAEBERHREPHERENRE
Tz BpEEsERESHE
REEFEMBREHER - K
EEBTHZENEEVER
REBEHRRTPERNESEE - &
SEBABREGERRTER
MEEE  ARBREBELE
MEMBFAREHE  WRENE
HMENEZSZHREEANR
B W mEHMEELENIER
BEM AEETSFEREY
BHRETEIANSE  BLRE
BRIEAESHOMEREMNK
FEMGE  EEIEL G
RIERR (2@ M) -

Hﬁ /%\

BB RERRS EH AR
ERSRE -



2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss with the exception of monetary
items that are designated as part of the hedge of
the Group's net investment of a foreign operation.
These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at
which time the cumulative amount is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on
those monetary items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.

2.

=
=

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

TR ()

24 EEESFHE®

ShEE

BB MRUARRRNIN GG

ARKZY - AEBEEEEH
TTRESEMNDEER  M&

FRMNPEHRRIEE T AZD
BEEMETE - AEBEEARK
BRINERGFEAEZERR
SBHZERNEEEKEXY]
HARR o« UINESHBECEKE
ENBBEREHARBEAZY
REEMIERRE - EERKRE
EMIEEEANEZEENES
RINHER -

REXBREERBRREENE
MEORERRAER - BETE
EREITAEEBINFEEFR
B —#omE®EIEB R -
EAXIEHE’\\/HJ@EEH& £ P g
RHEFREREERL
ERRFEESEFTHIBRER
mR o REEKHBELEZH
EIERRES R R TTRHE
fib 2 F W ER P RO 8%

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

253




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. E3EE @

2.4 EESHBE %)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to
the extent that the differences are attributable to
non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, the cash flows of certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of certain
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BRIESTHETRMAER

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

The major judgements, key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements and have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade and retention receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade and retention receivables. The provision rates
are based on ageing for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer

type).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade and retention receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’'s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade and retention receivables is disclosed in note 37 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

258

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for ECLs on payments

on behalf of property owners for
properties managed on a management
remuneration basis

Payments on behalf of property owners for properties
managed on a management remuneration basis
represent advances made to or operating costs paid on
behalf of property owners for properties managed on
a management remuneration basis. The ECL on these
receivables is determined by the Group based on (i)
the net present value of expected future cash flows of
respective property management projects, which has
included a number of estimations and inputs, such as
estimated property management fee, estimated collection
rates and estimated operating costs; (ii) past repayment
history; and (iii) where material, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the respective property
management projects and the economic environment.

The Group's estimation on expected future cash flows of
the relevant property management projects and forecast
of economic conditions may not be representative
of the actual cash flows in the future and significant
management estimates are required in the estimates.
When the actual outcome of expectation in future is
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying amount of payments on behalf
of property owners for properties managed on a
management remuneration basis and the amount of
ECLs provided or reversed in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The information about the
ECLs on these receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Classification of car parking spaces
between investment properties and
inventories

The Group holds a certain amount of investment
properties, which primarily consist of carpark spaces,
commercial property and residential properties owned
by the Group, which are mainly purchased from the
controlling shareholder for earning rentals and/or capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management in
determining whether a carpark space, a commercial
property or a residential property is designated as an
investment property or an inventory. The Group considers
its intention of holding the properties at the acquisition
stage of the related carpark spaces, commercial property
and residential properties for financial statement
classification of these car parking spaces.

Carpark spaces, commercial property and residential
properties intended to be held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation are accounted for as investment
properties in non-current assets and measured initially at
cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2024 was RMB3,825,162,000
(2023: RMB3,700,222,000). Further details are given in
note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated on the
straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives and dates that the Group places the items of
property, plant and equipment into productive use reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation allowances to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits would be
available against which the losses and other deductible
temporary differences could be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that could be recognised,
based on the likely timing and extent of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR T

Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. K& 453IEE

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product lines.

During the reporting period, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of community space living
consumption services, commercial and urban space
integrated services and AloT and BPaaS solution services in
the PRC. Management reviews the operating results of the
business as a single operating segment to make decisions
about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the executive
directors regard that there is only one segment which is
used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entities of the Group are domiciled
in the PRC and majority of revenue is derived in the PRC
during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, except for the equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, majority of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

5. REVENUE 5. WA
Revenue mainly comprises proceeds from community WAEE Eﬁ;}zgﬁi@fﬂﬁﬁgﬁjﬁg
space living consumption services, commercial and urban RS - pg AN T 425 RS A K&
space integrated services and AloT and BPaa$S solution A|OT&BPaasﬁﬁp,jgj‘j‘*ﬂﬁjﬁ%ﬁ‘gﬁﬁ%#\
services. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of T8 o AREENRE HHRA U AR R
services by category for the reporting period is as follows: RAIZBERI DT AT -
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHTET -

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT

Types of goods or services 78 n =X AR A% 28 B
Community space living consumption services  #F [ 2= 8 & (£ 8 & IR 75 20,907,512 18,738,439
Commercial and urban space integrated services 1>k i 22 M4z & RS 12,295,550 11,664,410
AloT and BPaaS solutions AloT X BPaaSH#R 7 £ 3,020,766 2,780,609
Total revenue from contracts with customers BEFEAEHWABEE 36,223,828 33,183,458
Timing of revenue recognition WA e 52 B
Goods or services transferred at RE—RERELL

a point in time 723 o SR AR 75 1,237,455 1,247,870
Services transferred over time BiE B [ 82 7% 1Y AR 7% 34,986,373 31,935,588
Total revenue from contracts with customers LY N L 36,223,828 33,183,458
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TERIFHV N RE H}W}ju{-]\/\ﬂgfg 0]
recognised in the current reporting period that were NERIREE DRI AL TR

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was included
in contract liabilities at the beginning RS BVIEt A& R
of the reporting period BEMNEERRA 4,681,194 4,514,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA

Performance obligations

For community space living consumption services (except
for home sale and rental brokerage services, and carpark
space sales assistance services) and commercial and urban
space integrated services, the performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered to customers.
The Group bills the amount for services provided on
monthly basis or pre-charges service fee on annual basis
which will be paid shortly after invoice. The Group has
elected the practical expedient as described in IFRS
15.121(b) for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

For smart property solutions in AloT solution services,
the sale of equipment and installation services are highly
interdependent. Thus, customers cannot benefit from
the equipment or installation services either on their
own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer. A bundle of sale of equipment
and installation services is accounted for as a single
performance obligation. The performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered and payment
is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing.
A certain percentage of payment is retained by customers
until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

ZRMBRBRDERRE 202455

BREME

iR EREEEERE (RFEEH
EREERRLIRG AR EAHE R
4N R M Z= F AR A IR M
5 BHRERRAEPIRHERSRE
R EERETT - AEEE A WIARE
HERBENOFBXEBEFRUREE - &
ERANAAZERRYAN - NEHE
ERC(BEBRMBHRELER)E 155 E
121(b)RATAUE BB BB TE - T
THREBEUBSHNFSRBEOEE -

FLAIOTEER T RIRIF P E S W EME
RITEME - RIBHE R LERBEH
= EKRE - Bt - EPEEKSER
BERBER A ERE H i ERIER
BHRLRRBTEm - NENREH
ERRERBER-HEBNENE
EARR - BROE TR IR IZ H A5 BERS
FEBET  IRBEERHASE A B
30RAEH - RPRE—FEA DL
NREEREHER - THRARHE
ERSANTNENGFREFEA
HREN—BEEABEREEERRT
MBRITAIEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HM AR IWZEFE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Interest income FEWA 90,460 124,479
Government grants* B # Bl * 65,113 158,908
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair IARBEEHEZSAZH
value through profit or loss BRNEREENDABEKS 74,358 72,230
Fair value gains on financial liabilities at fair UNRAREBEGEEEEHTALH
value through profit or loss BareRBENAAEERS - 191,792
Gain on disposal of investment properties** HERE M3 6 leas 7,235 40,948
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BE - REEEH
plant and equipment (B8),/ Wz (2,027) 36,070
(Loss)/gain on disposal of joint ventures and HESEBERBE AR
associates (B#8),/ W= (318) 99,159
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HENRBARMNKE /(EE) 161 (16,499)
Gain on remeasurement of the previously held ~— EFTitEAEHA 2B E QA
interest in an associate EEaiolEn 47,645 -
Foreign exchange differences, net HNE 2= B3 R (2,742) 230
Impairment of an investment in an associate R—REEE R AR ERE (83,592) =
Other non-operating (loss)/income*** HibIFE % (B518) A *** (12,289) 12,606
184,004 719,923
@ There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies @ F1E B 52 55 178 B) AR B A {RT R 2 K 1
relating to these grants. ek G HE -
@O The Group’s investment properties primarily consist of @5 NEBMORE Y X E B ERIERRE
carpark spaces, commercial properties and residential REEBEWHELE=FHNEFEN
properties, which are purchased from the controlling EVMENTEDE -

shareholder and leased to third parties.

***  The Group’'s non-operating (loss)/income mainly ek KEEMEEE (BB IRAEEE
represents the estimated losses from pending litigation RIREFFARY TE(H 1B 2K 2k 1A 2 49 77 I /Y
or compensation income charged to counter parties HEHNHFTETHERENABHEE
associated with the non-compliance or breach of contracts A o

by the counter parties.
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. BIRSE A

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BAFS R AN AT a0 T~ -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT

Interest on bank loans IRITERFIE 155 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 12,257 8,538
12,412 8,538
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. HiRIFIME
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBAFLATFE &R (GTA)
(crediting): T HEIBEEE :
Notes 2024 2023
Bt 2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Cost of services provided TR A AR TG R AR 30,299,428 27,457,653
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 1,227,521 914,038
Depreciation and amortisation* Pree g+ 1,004,655 1,016,165
Research and development costs 35 Ak AN 342,499 376,739
Lease payments not included in the KRt ATHEAGEN
measurement of lease liabilities HERK 16 100,151 94,485
Auditors’ remuneration 28 =1 il 25 B 5,472 5,472
Employee benefit expense (excluding {EE®@FIF> (TEIE
directors’ and chief executive's EERERITHRAE®
remuneration (note 9)): < (47729))
Wages and salaries TERES 9,905,145 9,483,332
Pension costs, housing funds, BARESEBR -  FEAES -
medical insurances and other BB IRb R EAD
social insurances** e fRRg > 1,978,735 1,793,728

11,883,880 11,277,060
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B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 8. BAIFE @
Notes 2024 2023
orza 20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000
AT T ARETT

Impairment of an investment R — B & A R AR & RE

in an associate 18 83,592 -
Impairment losses on financial TRVEEREEIEFEE

assets, net:
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 FE Y 5RIE K FE I

retention receivables, net IRFE S REEEF3 23 523,980 193,937

Impairment losses on financial assets &I ATERFIE « &e &
included in prepayments, deposits H th fE W FRIEHY
and other receivables, net BRVEEREEEFE 24 84,168 77,066

608,148 271,003

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE - BE K&E

property, plant and equipment BEEREE (W) 2,027 (36,070)
HEMHE QR
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Ueak),/ B518 (161) 16,499
* The depreciation and amortisation included in the cost of * AREESHFFAREBRBK AN ITE
services provided aggregated to RMB874,533,000 (2023: R A ARE-874,533,0007T (2023
RMB878,733,000) for the year. F : AKR¥878,733,0007T) °
** There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * ok ANEEEET T AERKIRA ®IKE
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of 2R ER o

contributions.
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Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

9. B EERESTHA
S35

RIBCEMRAD - BECARUEG) 5
383(1)(a) * (b) * (DR AR (3
BESHDEAR) /B B23 - ANF
FEF EFRERITHRAENHMN
BEWT

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)
(@), (b), (©) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

268

2023
2035
Pension
costs,
housing
funds,
medical
Salaries, insurances
Directors'/ allowances and other
supervisors'  and henefits  Discretionary social
fees in kind bonuses HITENES Total
BIASER
EARS
EZ/ g6 A BRRER
Ezhe EngEdl MERAL  HitkeRe At ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Chairman, executive director and EER HEERELE:
general manager:
Mr. Zhu Baoguan ARERE - 1,114 3,990 105 5209 6,963
Executive director: SR
Mr. He Shuhua figEsE - 815 2,020 137 297 4,046
Non-executive directors: FanEs:
M. Yao Jinbo IR 137 - - - 137 135
Mr. Wang Wenjin (b) IXETE(D) - - - - - =
Mr. Zhang Xu (b) FREED) - - - - - =
Mr. Sun Jia (b) FRRED) - - - - - =
Mr. Zhou Qi (b) &7 (D) - - - - - -

ENEEMMBRRBENDERAF 202455
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B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 9. EE -EERBSITHA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION S =

(continued)

2023
W35

Pension

costs,

housing

funds,

medical

Salaries, insurances

Directors'/ allowances and other

supervisors'  and henefits  Discretionary social
fees in kind bonuses insurances Total

BAACER

EEMES

Es/ §% EA BRRBR
S LUET MEEL  HAdeRR At ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR ARMTL ARETL  ARETT BRSO

Independent non-executive directors: (a) BUFEHTES : (a)

Mr. Chen Yuyu REFLE 137 - - - 137 135
Ms. Law Elizabeth BRxx 137 - - - 137 135
Mr. Shen Haipeng bt vk 137 - - - 137 135
Mr. Song Yunfeng REBTE 137 - - - 137 135
Supenvisors: e
Ms. Xiang Yun RERL 137 - - - 137 126
Ms. Han Huihua (b) BZZ014() - - - - - =
Mr. Zou Ming () FHREEQ - 439 1,19 128 1,763 -
Mr. Wu Jianxia (d) REIREE() - 126 38 3 an 2,666
822 2,494 1,534 393 11,243 14,476
There were no other emoluments payable to the directors FAMERESTNEMIE (2023
during the year (2023: Nil). F o) o
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Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 9. EE - EBEERBRESTHA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION E%ﬁ-wﬂ(%)
(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive (a) BYFEHITESE
directors

In 2024, Mr. Chen Yuyu, Ms. Law Elizabeth, Mr. Shen
Haipeng and Mr. Song Yunfeng were appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

Executive, non-executive directors
and supervisors

The emoluments of Mr. Wang Wenjin, Mr. Zhang
Xu, Mr. Sun Jia, Mr. Zhou Qi and Ms. Han Huihua
in relation to their services rendered for the Group
during the year were borne by China Vanke and
not allocated to the Group as management of the
Company considers there is no reasonable basis for
such allocation. There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

Mr. Zou Ming was appointed as a supervisor of the
Company with effect from 22 March 2024.

Mr. Wu Jianxia resigned as a supervisor of the
Company on 22 March 2024.

MRBRBRDERATE 202455

R2024F - REFEAE - BF
ERET - LEBELEE  RER
EEEERE AR QBB LIEH
18% -

(b) %ﬁ CEBITEERE

FRAEXERE  RBTLAE -
BRELE BAFLERBEE
Lt AR B R AR 75 O Fr B
HEREEAE  MASET
AEE - ARARAEEER
REZNTELERSEBKE - FR
WEEENENXF B REEM
R Bk -

(c) ZeA%L4+BE202456E3 /228
EREAARRNRIESE -

(d) RalpkscER2024%3H22H
BIEARARIEESE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

10. EBEREHMNESR
FANREROTHNEEBREMEBES
(2023%F : MBES)  HFMFS
HNEXHFEI - FABT=ZAL
(20234 : =R/ AT) EFE 5 a0

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2023: two directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. The remunerations of the remaining
three individuals (2023: three individuals) for the year are as

follows:

T

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EMER 4,888 4,814

Discretionary bonuses EIFIEAL 3,960 6,367
Pension costs, housing funds, medical BRESER  EEAESD

insurances and other social insurances BE RN EMmE SRR 392 367

Total a5t 9,240 11,548

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

M LA T S5 A H FF T 5= A o B
BEAZWT :

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 78752 3,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7% 3,500,000/5 7T 1 =
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001/& 724,000,000/ 7T - 1
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 7c24,500,000/5 7T 1 1
HKD5,000,001 to HKD5,500,000 5,000,001 7L E 5,500,000 7T - 1
Total = 3 3

During the year, no highest paid employees waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration.

FAMESSHHEERRERIFAER

ZETHEN -
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profit
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for Mainland China income tax was based on
a statutory rate of 25% (2023: 25%) of the taxable profits
during the year as determined in accordance with the PRC
Income Tax Law and the respective regulations.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
and Implementation Regulation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is (i) 25% (2023:
25%), or (i) 15% (2023: 15%) if the subsidiaries are qualified
as high and new technology enterprises or registered in the
western region, Shenzhen Qianhai region and Guangdong
Henggin region of the PRC and fulfil certain requirements.

The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject to Hong
Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on any
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits derived from or earned
in Hong Kong during the year.

The major components of income tax expenses are as follows:

FriEBip

AEBARELEBLREBAKENKE
RE TR MG ERERNRAE R
IR T R EEBAAFN

A B P HE BT A5 R A B O AR IR (R
ARKXMBEMGEE) MEBAREE
RENERTEFEAI25% (2023 F -
25% ) EERMEERE ©

BRIBECREAREMBECERABHRIL)
RAEEREBREERGEG) - FH
MEB AR (I)HER25% (2023 F :
25%) : (NN BARERESS
e EPEAESLE - R
JIRT /G H R & E RS [ i K
VEAFEMHEBHETE  BIBER15%
(20234 : 15%) °

REBFMR OB R RIRFERE
BEBEENEMAGTERBRFE AR
16.5% (20234 : 16.5% ) T R
MEBFEH - BERAEERFAIL
BEERBELENRIVERTFE - &K
WERBBFSHELBME -

FERRXMEBEARBHMT -

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

Current — PRC BVER — 684,808 771,479
Deferred tax (note 21) EEFRIE (Ka221) (244,800) (149,487)
Total tax charge for the year FAFIES H AR 440,008 621,992
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled and/or operate to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable

rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax

rates, are as follows:

11.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

FrE®HmEZ w

BARRRERSZHBMBRRME
X/ RELRERVEEBERADEED
R E M EAR AT A BA IR
B B A BN R At E B IR R A
B URERBR (BDEEMRE) &
ERBMEROERROT

2024 2023
2024 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
ARET T ARETT %
Profit before tax BEIAE 1,696,036 2,657,821
Tax at the statutory tax rate RN XA E A 424,009 25.0 664,455 25.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces %578 {8kt /B
or enacted by local authority B RBRF X (70,661) (4.2) (89,497) (3.4)
Profits and losses attributable to joint A& ERBZ AT
ventures and associates FE(GFE K &1 9,748 0.6 5,912 0.2
Super deduction for research and
development expenses 2R 7 BB A (42,110) (2.5) (44,562) (1.7)
Income not subject to tax irE 0L N (11,911) (0.7) = =
Expenses not deductible for tax* AR B * 54,144 3.2 33,455 13
Tax losses utilised from previous
periods BEREEYRNHEER (30,087) (1.8) (41,095) (1.5)
Tax losses and temporary difference
not recognised AEROHEEERERESR 106,876 6.3 93,324 3.5
BRERARREFEN
Tax charge at the effective rate BEZ M 440,008 25.9 621,992 23.4
@ The nature of “Expenses not deductible for tax” mainly @ [TAHNBF X ] 61 E = 2N S

represented certain impairment losses of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables recognised, the welfare
and entertainment expenses exceeding the tax deduction
limits under EIT law and some miscellaneous non-
deductible expenses incurred during the reporting period.

MHEERENKE  ZE REMER

RIENE TR ERE

Ko (b P

BHUE) HTE BT ORI S IR BB B0 48 A %
R P ST A K P EE A &R 0 HETR R AT H0 7

Fx o
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. FiIEHEX @

The Group has elected to file combined tax return NREBERERESAEMHEZHRE @ HFA

incorporating assessable profit and tax losses attributable
to the Group as well as certain properties which are
managed by the Group on management remuneration
basis. As a result of such arrangement, the Group is able
to temporarily utilise tax losses from managing properties,
resulting in deferral of payment of certain provision. The
utilisation of such tax losses from managing properties and
the deferral of the Group’s payment of EIT provision had
no effect on the consolidated income statement during
the reporting period. For financial accounting purposes,
the Group has made relevant provision by debiting the
income tax expense and crediting tax liabilities based
on assessable profits at the applicable tax rates of their
property management subsidiaries.

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend of RMB0.777 per ordinary share (including
tax) totalling RMB913 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approved in the Company’s Annual
General Meeting on 10 May 2024 and paid during the
year.

The interim dividend of RMB0.562 per ordinary share
(including tax) totalling RMB661 million and the special
dividend of RMB0.460 per ordinary share (including tax)
totalling RMB541 million for the six months ended 30
June 2024 were approved at the extraordinary general
meeting on 27 September 2024 and paid during the year.

ZRMBRBRDERRE 202455

AR ER B FE A5 DA R AN SR B % B TR B <
BIEME TYERNERBAE R
B - ARNUR Y NEEAERE
RERYENRBBE - EMEEX
NETRERE BRZFEEMEROR
HEBREAEEHEEINERMAER
REHRENENEHEERLEY
B-pygestnsg AREERE
MEEEMBARMBERRE » ERN
FERBAE B R F AL ELH
RARE - EELRERE -

g\

AARIR2024F5 8108 BFEARE
BEetERNEZE2023F12 A
BTHIEFERBREEREAEBRAR
¥0.777L (&%) - HFFARK9138
BT WRERIKN -

R2024F9 A27 B BHNBRERES
FEMAENEGRET AR ARKO0.562
T (&) IREEHE2024F6 A308 1
NEAKFEHRE T ARKECTH
BEThkAGREAKRAREO0.4607T
(B8) KRB B HFT ARES41
BEL BEFEERFAIN -



12.

185

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS (continued)

At a meeting held by the Board on 25 March 2025,
the Board recommended a final dividend of RMBO0.481
per ordinary share (including tax) totalling RMB564
million (“2024 Final Dividend”) and a special dividend
of RMB0.394 per ordinary share (including tax) totalling
RMB461 million (“2024 Final Special Dividend”) for the
year ended 31 December 2024. 2024 Final Dividend and
2024 Final Special Dividend is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the rights outstanding during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares

12.

13.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

BRE @)

MR2025F3 A25HBHMNEES S
EL BEESERZRNEZRE2024F
12A3MBEFEE2RBEREAER
TR ARE0481 L (BF) » HEt
AR5648 & 7T ([2024F E RHAMK
B URBERRESRITAEBRAR
#0.3947L (%)  HET AR 4618
EL([2024FERRIRE ) - 2024
FRERHARER2024FEEERIREA
HFARARIREERERFEBAFE i
& FAEE -

RAREERREAER
W 2

BRERBMNEELDENRAARE R
P R e AR F A A B DA R FF BTSN
EEBNEFYREEE - X &R
AR IR RRITRERIRER -

MNEZE20245 K%2023F12A31H 1k

in issue during the years ended 31 December 2024 and FEEHME  AEEVEDRITHERE
2023. MR EAR -
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FRERERBFAETE THER -
2024 F 2023

Earnings B
Earnings attributable to the ordinary

shareholders of the Company, used in ARG EERERRTH

the basic earnings per share calculation RRAEEFERREGRT

(RMB’000) (AR¥TT) 1,149,578 1,954,696
Shares )
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARt EGRERRF K

outstanding during the year used in FRBEITEINE R

the basic earnings per share calculation I35 AR 2K 1,173,847,730  1,178,393,636
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) FREAREERF (ARET) 0.98 1.66
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR T

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE20245F12A31HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - WERRE

Machinery Electronic
and motor and other Leasehold
Buildings vehicles  equipment improvements Total
BEY MERKBDER ETRAMRE HAENERE CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARMTIT  ARBTT  ARETR
31 December 2024 R2024%12A31R
At 1 January 2024: 202451 R18 :
Cost KA 211,776 463,025 571,392 237,858 1,484,051
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (45,389) (202,326) (376,276) (181,435) (805,426)
Net carrying amount RERE 166,387 260,699 195,116 56,423 678,625
At 1 January 2024, net of R202451R18 -
accumulated deprediation BB 2GNE 166,387 260,699 195,116 56,423 678,625
Additions NE 9,933 47,190 84,128 57,617 198,868
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WEMBAE (#/i£32) - 4,304 6,601 - 10,905
Depreciation provided during
the year ERREENE (9,896) (64,701) (149,025) (32,549) (256,171)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - () - ()
Disposals S (5,379) (3,637) (2,880) - (11,896)
At 31 December 2024, net of 20245128318
accumulated depreciation BB EE 161,045 243,855 133,938 81,491 620,329
At 31 December 2024 W2024F12 4318 ¢
Cost KA 215,547 512,723 654,241 295,475 1,677,986
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (54,502) (268,868) (520,303) (213,984)  (1,057,657)
Net carrying amount FHFE 161,045 243,855 133,938 81,491 620,329

EBMEERPMERBBRMOER AT 2024FFH
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B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERERE @

(continued)

Machinery Electronic
and motor and other Leasehold
Buildings vehicles equipment  improvements Total
BEY BERKDEH STREGRE HENFRE ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETL  AREBTR

31 December 2023 R2023%12A31H
At 1 January 2023: R2023F1A18 -
Cost KA 212,005 373,062 431,674 211,051 1,227,792
Accumulated depreciation 23thE (38,362) (104,821) (275,866) (142,592) (561,641)
Net carrying amount REFE 173,643 268,241 155,808 68,459 666,151
At 1 January 2023, net of "2023%F1R18
accumulated depreciation BHRETE 173,643 268,241 155,808 68,459 666,151
Additions RE 7,387 96,22 148,969 26,865 279,443
Depreciation provided during
the year FERERERNTE (10,745) (102,368) (108,879) (38,842) (260,834)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBLR - (1,060) (415) (59) (1,534)
Disposals HE (3,898) (336) (367) - (4,601)
At 31 December 2023, net of "2023%12A318
accumulated depreciation BB ZHTE 166,387 260,699 195,116 56,423 678,625
At 31 December 2023: W2023F12 4318 :
Cost KA 211,776 463,025 571,392 237,858 1,484,051
Accumulated depreciation ZihhE (45,389) (202,326) (376,276) (181,435) (805,426)
Net carrying amount REFE 166,387 260,699 195,116 56,423 678,625
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no property, plant R2024F K 2023%F12H318 @ &
and equipment was pledged. EREADZE - BB KRR -
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Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REMY=E

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

At 1 January: W1A1B :

Cost B AR 630,604 649,120

Accumulated depreciation EEtinE (82,314) (69,208)

Net carrying amount AREHE 548,290 579,912
R1A18 -

At 1 January, net of accumulated depreciation EHREFITE 548,290 579,912
Additions NE 467,716 23,752
Depreciation provided during the year FAFHERENITE (16,768) (19,517)
Disposals HE (38,970) (35,857)

At 31 December, net of accumulated M12H318 -
depreciation EHREFTE 960,268 548,290

At 31 December: M12H31H :

Cost BXAR 1,056,319 630,604
Accumulated depreciation REHITE (96,051) (82,314)
Net carrying amount REFE 960,268 548,290

The Group's investment properties primarily consist of NREBNKEUEMETERIEEE

carpark spaces, commercial properties and residential N BEWENREEDE - KEEA

properties. The Group measures its investment properties B A(BELIEAN)FE2HIEE

at historical cost, including transaction costs. MY o

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were MN2024F 12 831H ' NEBE

approximately RMB995,673,000 as at 31 December 2024 BEMENLANALBEYLY B ARIK

(2023: RMB559,486,000). These fair values are determined 995,673,0007T (20234F : ARM

by the directors of the Company with reference to mainly 559,486,00070) c ZZE AN EBER

the valuation performed, using the discounted cash flow RNAFREETELXLEHBIBR ST

(“DCF") approach and the direct market comparison ([DCF ) =M BEEmSELE ([DMC])

("DMC"). ETHHETAERE -
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The valuation for completed properties was arrived at
by considering the capitalised income derived from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate, by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
same locations and conditions.

The fair value of the investment properties is categorised
into Level 3 valuations, i.e., fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs, as defined in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement.

LEASE
The Group as a lessee
(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use

assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

15.

16.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

BEMWE @

EERYMENGELLEERGHEY
FIRERNEMARDENERES -
K2 ZHERME R GE TRUMER
HERNMSER (WEEE)FE -

BREUMERRBERBER/E=R
e - ERCBRM B RE 2R )F13
S — AN EEFERENERNNAR
R ARIBTEN LD EE -

HE

AEBEREBEA
(a) HAEEE

AR B R REE RN ER
EREBERDT :

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETFT

As at 1 January ®1A1H 353,683 231,058

Additions INE 97,205 239,620
Additions as a result of acquisition of A EREARNRE

subsidiaries (note 32) (Kiat32) 2,305 =

Depreciation provided during the year FERFHRBENTE (128,964) (116,912)

Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR - (83)

As at 31 December »W12A31H 324,229 353,683
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR T

Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

16. LEASE (ontinued) 16. HE =)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEEREBEA @
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the ENEAENEEER S
movements during the year are as follows: BRI -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R1B1BEREREE 351,361 233,544
New leases HHE 97,205 239,620
Additions as a result of acquisition of AN EREARNRE

subsidiaries (note 32) (Kiit32) 2,743 =
Accretion of interest recognised during

the year FNERF S BN 12,257 8,538
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR] - (88)
Payments 5% (127,608) (130,253)
Carrying amount at 31 December MN12 31 BREREE 335,958 351,361
Analysed into: =

Current ik 102,048 99,772

Non-current FRE 233,910 251,589
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed HEaENIESTIRERE
in note 37 to the financial statements. FEIEPEHITEIT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

16. LEASE (continued) 16. HE w)
The Group as a lessee (continued) NEBEAABEA @)
()  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (0 HHEENERPERANTSIEN
to leases are as follows: N

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T AREET T

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets ~ {FAEEERITERS 128,964 116,912
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABNFERAY 12,257 8,538
Expense relating to short-term leases/leases 2 HiME RKEBEELE
of low-value assets HEHRERX 100,151 94,485
241,372 219,935
(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (d) MBERSRBEERE KRS
outflows relating to leases that have not yet BHHEABRRKE ST
commenced are disclosed in notes 33(b) and 37, SR BRI HREM F33(b)
respectively, to the financial statements. %37 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2024

At 1 January 2024:

17. BILEE

Customer
relationship

EFR&
RMB’000
AR T T

2024%12A831H

R2024F1A18 :

Goodwill
[EkS
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB000
ARET T

Others Total
Hit &&t
RMB’000
ARET T

Cost (D% 6,030,427 3,700,222 29,042 9,759,691
Accumulated amortisation 2T (1,769,090) - (9.425) (1,778,515)
Net carrying amount REHE 4,261,337 3,700,222 19,617 7,981,176
At 1 January 2024, net of 20241818 -
accumulated amortisation B HIBR 25T 4,261,337 3,700,222 19,617 7,981,176
Additions NE 37,976 - 37,141 75,117
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 32) I A R (f1532) 154,000 124,940 1,015 279,955
Amortisation provided during
the year RE R EHER R85 (596,310) - (6,442) (602,752)
At 31 December 2024, net of 2024128318 -
accumulated amortisation B0k R 3,857,003 3,825,162 51,331 7,733,496
At 31 December 2024: M2024F12 8318 :
Cost AR 6,222,403 3,825,162 71,480 10,119,045
Accumulated amortisation ERE 5 (2,365,400) - (20,149)  (2,385,549)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,857,003 3,825,162 51,331 7,733,496

EBMEERPMERBBRMOER AT 2024FFH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. BEEE »
Customer
relationship Goodwill Others Total
EFBR BE Hith A&t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR®TR

31 December 2023 202312 A31H
At 1 January 2023: M2023F1 18 :
Cost (DN 5,971,911 3,700,222 12,107 9,684,240
Accumulated amortisation 2T (1,171,223) - (6,030)  (1,177,253)
Net carrying amount BREFHE 4,800,688 3,700,222 6,077 8,506,987
At 1 January 2023, net of M2023F1H18
accumulated amortisation B HIBR 25T 5 4,800,688 3,700,222 6,077 8,506,987
Additions NE 77,913 - 16,935 94,848
Amortisation provided during
the year R A FT IR A B0 B 5 (615,507) - (3,395) (618,902)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR (1,757) = = (1,757)

At 31 December 2023, net of 72023128318 »

accumulated amortisation B HIBR 25T 55 4,261,337 3,700,222 19,617 7,981,176
At 31 December 2023: M2023F 128318 :

Cost DN 6,030,427 3,700,222 29,042 9,759,691

Accumulated amortisation 2T (1,769,090) - (9,425)  (1,778,515)

Net carrying amount AREHE 4,261,337 3,700,222 19,617 7,981,176

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024 283




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwiill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs")
for impairment testing:
o Residential business group CGU
o Commercial and GSI business group CGU

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
CGUs is as follows:

17. BIEEE =)
BEBERR
BBEEAMEENEED HRE
THSELBEN - LUETRES
o EMEBBOELABA

. Bl BRERSXEMERE
ReELEM

SRR E LR NHEEEE
T -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTTT

Residential business group* FEYHERE* 3,418,955 3,418,955
Commercial and GSI business group** E - BN R EEEEER 406,207 281,267

3,825,162 3,700,222
@ Residential business group, focusing on providing service & FTEMEBEZ TR ATRBMANETEE

to residential property owner with various price range,
aim to improve operating efficiency by advancing the
Onewo strategy, which would create interconnection
between residential properties within a certain geographic
space.

o Commercial and GSI business group, focusing on
providing service to enterprise and government-sponsored
institution, including property management service,
facility management service, and customized services to
government-sponsored institution.
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use of the CGUs to which the goodwill
is allocated. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets of the CGUs
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated long-term growth rates below. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the related industry in which the CGUs operate.
The pre-tax discount rates below reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant industry and the CGUs themselves
and macro-environment of the relevant region.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of value-in-
use were as follows:

17.

&P B TSR R PR
Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

BEE @
BEREAE @

fﬁﬁ?’_{ 5 iz B A U Bl & 58 T AR IR &

@Eﬁgﬁg}fﬁﬁﬁi 5 i 1) A EE
Fzﬂ:_ ux—ru {Eﬁﬁgﬁ/\ E@Tﬂ:/&
WhFHRReELESBSMUNBERENT
RIS METRR - HARAFHMNRE
/)|L§'E_T§FHJ//(T1E{|'§H§¢'E T
B oZERERBEFASELEUK
HEFEMHBTENRATHERE -
AT BEATRLER 3= ik T ERARRATT 3 %
IR & B4 B AR 5 HE Y 1 E LB LA
KB R REIRE

EREBEGEMAEIE/RKAOT

2024
2024

2023
20234

Annual growth rates of revenue WA FIE R & 10%~11% 10%~15%
Long-term growth rate RARIE R & 2% 2%
Pre-tax discount rates AT AL IR =& 16%~17% 16%~17%
The Group assessed the impairment of goodwill at the end AEBRBREHREHEEITRET
of the reporting period and the recoverable amounts of TE SHSEABMNAAYE S EETR

each CGUs had exceeded each of their carrying amounts,
and hence the goodwill was not regarded as impaired.

BHEXEMNRAEE  HAEmETE
TT/@@TE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELERBENTN
AND ASSOCIATES
(a) Investments in joint ventures AEBLENERE
2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

A R8T ARETTT

Share of net assets EHEEFRE 1,334,411 678,404
Goodwill on acquisition 1 B B 1) P 196,363 256,834
1,530,774 935,238
Loans to joint ventures mEEREEN 124,877 =
Total a&f 1,655,651 935,238
The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest- MALNEEZ AEIEKE . ¢
free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of = &g\ﬁ;g kEB - BER
the directors, these loans are unlikely to be repaid B ZEEH KGR TE
in the foreseeable future and are considered as iﬂiﬂ(fﬁL BB AKNEER
part of the Group’s net investments in the joint AL LN ESHIR ) — 2R o
ventures. There was no recent history of default ALY ERIEAEME
and past due amounts for loans to joint ventures. 49 N HA NI S04% o 20245
As at 31 December 2024, the loss allowance was 12 8318 » &I E BB ER
assessed to be minimal. 1 o
There is no individually material joint venture of the NEBRFEEREALE L
Group. %o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
(@) Investments in joint ventures

(continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate
financial information of the Group’s joint ventures
that are not individually material:

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

18. REELERKENTN
BE @

(a) REELENKRE @)

TRHGEARNEELIFEREX
VR ELEMNBETBEER

2024 2023
2024 % 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARBTTT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit
for the year FREMLEERENH (43,679) (21,521)
Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income EhEECEEE N L (43,679) (21,521)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group' FEERGERERER
investments in the joint ventures @R A 1,655,651 935,238

The investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred post-
acquisition and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows from
the investment that can be reliably estimated. The
Group assessed that there is no objective evidence
that the investment is impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

RBBEBRAEBREREREHR
BEFENE IR EMAEZ
REGHAMBEERYREE
H#EE - ZHEZRKBERE
£ — 1l E = FERE
MEBER MEBEZMHaY
A S AR E Z At RRIR
TREELETE  USELER
BEER - AKEFE  RRE
HIR YT HFERERENS
Bl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELPENEEENTH
AND ASSOCIATES (continued) ?Qﬁ(,iﬁ‘é)
(b) Investments in associates (b) REEZEATINEKRE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Share of net assets EihEER#E 131,597 312,846
Goodwill on acquisition 1 B B 1) P 159,924 165,592
Total &t 291,521 478,438
There is no individually material associate of the N £ B 4 E Bl & oK /Y B S N
Group. aj o

The following table illustrates the aggregate TERHBPAEE L IEFEREK
financial information of the Group's associates that B 2N B BB RSB}

are not individually material:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT

Share of the associates’ profit for the year F A e B = A | A 4,687 (2,128)
Share of the associates’ total FEAG B = R R &Y

comprehensive income FHEW BT 4,687 (2,128)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’ REEREEE QT

investments in the associates FEMBREE 291,521 478,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

18. REELERKENTN
BE @

(b) REEELQNTHNRE @

(b) Investments in associates (continued)

The investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred post-
acquisition and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows from the
investment that can be reliably estimated.

As Shenzhen Chinese Media Co., Ltd., an associate
of the Group, announced the cessation of
operations on 24 June 2024, the management of
the Group considered it was an objective evidence
of impairment. Accordingly, the Group fully
recognised an impairment loss of RMB83,592,000
at carrying amount.

HUBEAEEREREHR
BEFENE B A KA EZ
REABANBEEBEREREE
HAAE  -EHEEEAWEER
AR — A% EE 4 FERE
WEEZE mEBEEHeY
A SRR E 2 At AR
ﬁmi%f@g’ﬁgﬁiﬁ
BEEE -

MARAEE M E QRFEI™
EEZEEROBRA TBA2024
FoH24BEMEILLEE - K
SEEEEREEARENT
BEE - At AEBEIRER
ERXREERAREBEEBARRE
83,592,0007T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 19. EEEABUAARAEBEEER
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER HEBt AHMEEKE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HIRFERE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ET T AR¥EFTT
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ LARAREBEEH EHRERE

Cushman & Wakefield plc Cushman & Wakefield plc 1,013,591 812,719
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated LRERE TR EUEEEEE RIAR
at fair value through other comprehensive income as REEFEAEEZHTAHEMEZEEK
the Group considers these investments to be strategic in wm AAASERAZSREEGTE

nature. BEIEE o
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. LAREBEFEEREZE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

SFAEHMEZNEREE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTIT
Non-current: RS :
IBEANAAEBEFZ
Equity investments designated at fair value HEBTAZHERD
through profit or loss iR &
— UAREEFTERN
— Unlisted equity investments, at fair value JEETREERE - 976

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has
not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through
other comprehensive income.
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21.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are

as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024

21, IELERIR

Allowance for

BELERIAE EFAN

T

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Accrued  impairment of Lease
Note expenses  receivables  Tax losses liabilities Total
U6
it EitER HERE HEER HESE At
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 20205123318 R
202351718 34,890 44,132 18117 53,163 150,302
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss during
the year A/ (k) s 11 (6,906) 40,940 (.217) 30782 57,509
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAF - (14) (850) - (864)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024~ R2023F12 3318202451718 27,984 85,058 10,050 83,945 207,037
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss during
the year HA/ (k) FRER 1 3,675 100,597 10,481 (2,670) 112,083
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WEENBAR (Hit32) - 646 - - 646
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (8) - - (8)
At 31 December 2024 R2024%12A318 31,659 186,293 20,531 81275 319,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21. EELERIE )

EEBABBENFANEZOT

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year
are as follows:

Fair value
adjustmenton  Right-of-use

Note acquisition assets Others Total

RRBELN
izl i EERE FREEE A it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBTT ARBTT

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R2022612A318R

(restated) 20351418 (8&i) 975,169 52,641 14,969 1,042,779
Charged(credited) to profit or loss during the year 718 / (3t A) FREE 11 (118,872) 31,863 (4,879) (91,888)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 M2023F12A318R2024451 18 856,297 84,504 10,090 950,891
Credited to profit or loss during the year STAERER 11 (121,706) (6,265) (4,746) (132,717)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WERBRR (Hit32) 38,500 - - 38,500
At 31 December 2024 H204%12A31A 773,091 78239 5,344 856,674

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB87,754,000 (2023: RMB112,514,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB650,797,000 (2023: RMB485,073,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

292 ENEZFERRBRNOERIEF 202455

W ARZEBREDELCHREE
ARZEEERAEREE —BREH
BB ARELR - BRAT KA G
BRERBAE A AR EHZ SR IARE

B

rEEBTEREBEEANBEBEARAAR
#87,754,0007T (2023 F : AR
112,514,0007T) - °] #E PR BA b 4K 85 3
ABERRRRKERBRFE o &
EEFEAMEENFEEEASAR
#650,797,0007C (20234 : AR
485,073,0007T) ' ZEAREEHEKRK
ERBAENHESESRN —E2RF
NE|E -



21.

22.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of

the following items:

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

21, EFERIE @)

WARBL TR B HERRLEHIREE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBETIT
Tax losses FRIaEE 656,427 557,387
Deductible temporary differences ATV EY B R 28R 414,834 170,546
Total =1 1,071,261 727,933
A
INVENTORIES 22. ZE&
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBFIT
Contract costs B LKA 81,407 32,582
Other inventories HEmFE 21,033 23,472
Total =X 102,440 56,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. £ 5 FE Uk 518 % FE W15 3%
=

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Trade and notes receivables B Sk srIE & e E %

— Related parties (note 34) — @885 (H1aE34) 2,449,436 2,487,278
— Third parties —%£=7 5,010,407 4,640,346
Retention receivables JEUNIREE & 26,826 73,277
7,486,669 7,200,901

Less: Allowance for impairment of trade and & : 2 5 R FIE & fE Uk
retention receivables REBESRERE (945,135) (419,801)
Net carrying amount R FE 6,541,534 6,781,100

Retention receivables are related to revenue earned

FUERESRREHRESVNEERERE

from the provision of construction of intelligent property
management services for which the right to the receipt
of consideration for work performed remains conditional
on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers
over a certain period as stipulated in the service contracts.
The retention receivables are transferred to the trade
receivables when the right becomes unconditional, which
is typically at the expiry date of the defect liability period.

Trade receivables mainly arise from commercial and urban

space integrated services and AloT and BPaaS solution
services.

ZRMBRBRDERRE 202455
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23:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 FEW=h1E & FE W {F &

(continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit term is normally decided on a case-
by-case basis upon the acceptance of the products or
the completion of service. The credit period is generally
one month, extending up to three months for major
customers. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade and retention receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and retention receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

cAC D

AEBEBRATPNE S GRREZAE
ERER - EEHNBTEEMBRKL
RBETREBRRE - EEHARER
—EBA T2EFEEALEE=
A ZEREXFAARKREEE SR
WHRERERRESERZ TRETP
EENEE  HUBERETNEER
Rk - BB RUFKIAETEE °

ERBZAHLINGEREE N
LHIK - B HEWFIA M ERRE S
RIBRER DATUOT -

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBFIT

Within 1 year 1R 5,498,581 6,163,652
1 to 2 years 1Z224 831,761 376,436
2 to 3 years 2E3F 144,670 227,170
Over 3 years 3FLAE 66,522 13,842
Total &5t 6,541,534 6,781,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 FEUR =18 & FE IR 157 %

(continued) ﬁ (&)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of B EWZRIA N ERRES REERE
trade and retention receivables are as follows: BB EBIS R

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

At the beginning of the year REH] 419,801 225,864
Impairment losses, net VERIEN SEi=VE: ] 523,980 193,937
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WS B A=) (B1:E32) 1,354 =
At the end of the year RER 945,135 419,801
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting NE R O HA S AR EE T RE
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The S A ETEHEEEE - BEX
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings DEREEEUGERERERNZEAZE
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns 45 2R 48 B (Eﬂ%}f'*EEU&HEﬂ‘“*EEl ) By
(i.e. customer type and service type). The calculation B HR R B A #&Bg%m—z—m%
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value 4B i%uﬁgﬁvﬁ&ﬁ\#&i EECE !

of money and reasonable and supportable information AHBASEE - B HKxR&ﬁﬁEXZ‘“
that is available at the reporting date about past events, P TE R A B R A =B K o

current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. & 3 FE 2k 18 1% FE U R 3%

(continued) ﬁ (%)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk ERNEEBEBRREEEENE S
exposure on the Group’s trade and retention receivables FE U ZRIE K FEU IR B 4 1 (= B A B ik
using a provision matrix: O& LS5 T -

Third parties

iy —

Less than Related
1 year parties
DR1E BB A
At 31 December 2024 P2024412 31 H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRX 2.52%  3533%  80.67%  10.59%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEEE(ARETT) 3,809,791 883,220 344,222 2,449,436 7,486,669
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEBR(ARETT) 95926 312,082 277,700 259,427 945,135
At 31 December 2023 720234128318
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRX 450%  2521%  77.01% -
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BERE(ARETT) 3,862,244 791,163 60,216 2,487,278 7,200,901
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE(ARETT) 173,969 199,458 46,374 - 419,801
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

RECEIVABLES

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FA{IFIE - RE R H#upE
WeskE

2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Current: E -
Other receivables H b W Sk IE
— Payments on behalf of property owners (a) — REEEZFHIFKIE () 1,655,862 1,537,831
— Deposits — 7% 502,707 425,833
— Other receivables — E b U IR 81,908 108,273
2,240,477 2,071,937
Less: Allowance for impairment of other R B NG IR A
receivables B (1,076,257) (992,089)
1,164,220 1,079,848
Prepayments to suppliers TR pE P IR 382,590 331,132
Prepayments for tax AN 588,328 501,416
2,135,138 1,912,396
Non-current: R :
Deposits (b) %% (b)
— Amounts due from related parties — PR RAES 5 k1B
(note 34) (H1et34) 1,401,894 1,562,026
— Others — EA 146,908 148,107
1,548,802 1,710,133
Prepayments for capital investments BNEAREER
(note 34) (Htat34) 185,716 =
Others HAith 1,097,943 791,755
2,832,461 2,501,888

EBMEERPMERBBRMOER AT 2024FFH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) The balance represented payments made on behalf of
property owners under certain specific circumstances,
including but not limited to payments of centralised
procurement costs and transitional arrangements for
property management projects with temporary working
capital needs. Under the Group’s policy, such payments
on behalf of property owners must be settled within a set
period of time depending on the nature of the payment.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

(b) Non-current deposits mainly consist of deposits collected
by property developers for carpark space sales assistance
services.

The Group has assessed that the credit risk of amounts
due from related parties has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. At the end of each reporting
period, these receivables were categorised in stage 1
and 12-month expected losses are calculated. During the
reporting period, the Group considered that the expected
loss of other receivables from related parties was minimal.

The Group had assessed the expected loss of other
receivables from third parties and classified them into
stage 1 to stage 3 for measurement of ECL. A provision
matrix was used to measure expected credit losses for
other receivables from third parties based on days past
due, repayment history, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

24, TASFIE - HERHME

U FRIE (o)

(a) FAEBEEETHREBR TRREES
NEFIE - BREETENEERESESR
ERRNMEEER B WEFRERAN
BB R AR o iRIB AN SR B B
B’ ZRERKREZERONHEAREN
RUEEAERERBRASE - NEE L E
Shax SRR B R R S o

(b) BRI EBEYMEREEREN
SHE ISR EIZ S o

REBFERR - BYVIRHERE - &
Y B Bk 77 3R IE B 15 B L B I 8 K 1 18
e RBE|MERR - ZFRUPGRIAR
DRRE—BR  WiE12AE
HEE  NBESHE ~EERAE
Wit R Bt 77 ) HL b FE W SRR B TR B e 48
AN

AR BB RS E A RIS =07 IR M
BHEEIKESBRAFERYESR
BENE-—E2F =K SEREH
RE ERESL - BARRERREE
ARSTRITER - (E R EEREET E it
M EE =TT RRMEMEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR T

Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FA{YEIE - I#& R HMfE

RECEIVABLES (continued) WK IR )
Set out below is the information about the credit risk T E G AN E B E AR REELE
exposure on the Group’s other receivables using a FEWFORAENEERRHOER

provision matrix:

Third parties

iy —

Related

Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 parties
FEB E_EER BB ki

At 31 December 2024 P2024412 A31H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBREX 3.30%  41.90%  92.27% -
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEAaE(ARETT) 1,026,462 154,508 1,059,507 1,401,894 3,642,371
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEBR(ARETT) 33,910 64,732 977,615 - 1,076,257
At 31 December 2023 7R2023F12 A318
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRX 3.38%  4350%  90.27% =
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEmE(ARETT) 945,794 120,712 1,005,431 1,562,026 3,633,963
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE(ARETT) 31,931 52,508 907,650 - 992,089
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of Hib IR ESERENE SIS
other receivables are as follows: (N
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
At the beginning of the year REA] 992,089 915,050
Impairment losses, net BB 1R F R 84,168 77,066
Disposal of subsidiaries LS B A A - (27)
At the end of the year RER 1,076,257 992,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERBESEEY

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRELEEY
Cash in hand BEEFRE 5,014 26,151
Cash at bank RITHD 14,072,795 16,109,346
14,077,809 16,135,497
Less: Restricted bank deposits B XBRHERITIFE K (455,345) (390,446)
Time deposits with original maturity of RESEBE=EAN
over three months JEHIF R (187,686) (172,568)
13,434,778 15,572,483
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
— Dominated in RMB —UARKHE 13,367,379 15,180,051
- Dominated in HKD — BTTEHE 61,325 386,716
— Dominated in USD — LAXTTEHE 6,074 5,716
13,434,778 15,572,483
At the end of the year, the cash and cash equivalents RER K& KAR®:E
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to WEEERRESEEMWARARE
RMB13,367,379,000 (2023: RMB15,180,051,000). The 13,367,379,0007T (20234 : AR
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, 15,180,051,0007T) - A R¥TEEH
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange RAEBMAEMER - EREBEPEAM
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and CONEEREH ) R(EE - EE RN
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the EEERE)  ANEEABAKERAE
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies ITHONEXBRITHAREBR AR
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange HmE% -
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (ontnuesy  25. S RIBEZEY )

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on WITIRESBIETRBRITEANRILE
B EBEIMAE - RITERTFARE
MEPE MRS ERRSMIRIT - B

é&iﬁA“ﬁ%E’JﬁEﬁﬁéﬁiﬁi VPRI
approximated to their fair values. BiRE

daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents

The restricted bank deposits mainly included cash

ZRHEITERE BB IE MR WE
MERAREZRYENRE - 12024
F12H318BABARM375,274,0007T
(20234 : AR#¥352,950,0007T) °

26, ESENRERENSERE

received from property owners that is restricted to use in
construction of properties amounting to RMB375,274,000
(2023: RMB352,950,000) as at 31 December 2024.

26. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

302

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Trade and notes payables B N RIE R EN R
— Related parties (note 34) — B85t (H1aE34) 14,741 305,911
— Third parties —FEH= 6,643,204 5,458,580
Total a&t 6,657,945 5,764,491
An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as EREZAH  RWmEHKR BIE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice NHREBERENEBEORRITAT -
date, is as follows:
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
Within 1 year 1R 6,212,614 5,312,726
1 to 2 years 24 311,740 287,177
2 to 3 years 2&E3F 88,989 106,915
Over 3 years 3FLAE 44,602 57,673
Total a&f 6,657,945 5,764,491
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES (continued)

The trade and notes payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on the terms of 30 to 180 days.

The fair values of trade and notes payables as at the
end of the reporting period approximated to their
corresponding carrying amounts due to their relatively
short maturity terms.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27.
The Group recognised the following revenue-related
contract liabilities:

Short-term advances for services 52 BA AR 75 TR A RRI8

26.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

BEZENREREANRE

(#8)

BoRMNRELRENERATER
— R AR30B 2180 B HIRAHE -

HRE S RNFIRERENRRN D

HIRAAEEE - ERBEHROAR
EEEEARMNEKREERS

ER&RE

AEBEBERATNEBAEBNERE

& :

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEFIT
4,908,248 4,681,194

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advance payments received from customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. Such liabilities
increased as a result of the growth of the Group's
business.

AEEERABEEIEZRANET S K
FTRFTFRIR - AR A AR5 R R R4 -
“ERERASERESERMEM -
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HihERRIEREFIEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTIT
Current: WE
Other payables H A {500
Amounts due to related parties (note 34) JE S Ra R 7 5R3E (f 52 34) 567,130 564,068
Cash collected on behalf of property owners REREZWEHRE 1,966,600 2,286,966
Deposits payable RS 1,054,167 1,084,206
Dividends e 66,620 423,647
Accruals and other payables FESTIE B K E A 3R 938,118 773,328
4,592,635 5,132,215
Payroll payables ERTE 1,587,410 1,749,995
Long-term payables within one year —F AR EAE R FRIE 3,520 3,520
Other taxes payables Hofth FE TR IR 243,097 262,813
6,426,662 7,148,543
Non-current: FNE :
Amounts held on behalf of property owners REEFFHENEHE 1,156,385 1,121,356
Long-term payables RHEAE R 3,653 9,571
1,160,038 1,130,927

Other payables and accruals with third parties and related
parties are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The fair
values of other payables at the end of the reporting period
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

29. PROVISION 29. B

Provision for
warranties Others Total

RERE Hity CHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T

At 1 January 2023 12023F1A1H 69,570 47,713 117,283
Additional provision REIME 58,581 25,759 84,340
Amounts utilised during the year ~ EREHFA L (319) = (319)
Reversal of unutilised amounts REARBHAEE (35,447) (18,947) (54,394)

At 31 December 2023 and 2023512 A31B K
1 January 2024 202441818 92,385 54,525 146,910
Additional provision REINEE 27,854 60,150 88,004
Amounts utilised during the year ~ FREHF L (704) = (704)
Reversal of unutilised amounts BEREAEE (73,060) (56,419) (129,479)

At 31 December 2024 1202412 A318 46,475 58,256 104,731
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Issued and fully paid: BT RBHBHTE
Ordinary shares of RMB1 each SREAEARE 1 THZ R 1,171,565 1,178,469

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital

ADFNBARB LT -

is as follows:
Number of

shares in issue Share capital
ERITRAHE (V&N
RMB‘000
ARET T
At 1 January 2023 M2023F181H 1,178,468,700 1,178,469
Shares repurchased o] §& A% 15 (2,185,600) =

At 31 December 2023 and R2023%612A318 K%
1 January 2024 20241 A1H 1,176,283,100 1,178,469
Shares repurchased o] B A% 15 (18,308,900) =
Issue of shares BT 2,768,729 2,768
Cancellation of shares R - (9,672)
At 31 December 2024 72024412 A318 1,160,742,929 1,171,565

During the year, the Company had repurchased
18,308,900 ordinary shares, of which 3,512,200
repurchased shares have not been cancelled, 7,310,200
repurchased shares have been held by the Company as
treasury shares and 9,672,100 repurchased shares have
been cancelled during the period.

306 BYUEEMMBRRBENHERAE 202455

FR - ARaEHETEE18,308,900 %
L@ - EAP3,512,200 2 B
DA - 7,310,200% 2 [@ A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
186 to 187 of the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents 1) the
difference between the par value of the shares
issued and the consideration received; 2) the excess
of the consideration over the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests acquired/disposed;
and 3) the fair value of the share-base payment
granted.

Fair value reserve of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

The fair value reserve of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
comprises all revaluation changes arising from the
equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from the
Group's presentation currency.

31. f##E

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

REMMBEFE  AEENRRER
HEHSHEINYBERRFE186E

S op=n

187TEMAE HEREFHE -

(i)

(iii)

B

AEBNEAREEBERE  )E
Bk mERKD W EHE
ZHEMEZR  2)HEBBE W
BB e RERNRE
BED  &3) BREAARN
RERONTOREE -

RARBEFELEEZEHAA
HitzmRaEWEMEENR
REERFE

NARBEFEEEZHAA
HitzmKRENEMEEN D
REERFRBEEREERARR
EBEAELEZEH T AHEMLE
HEWRENERTAELNMA

bE XX B H

EXEBERLIEY TR A
REBNHKREE RN EINE

BB MR ERELNE
REH-

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2024

307




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

31. RESERVES (continued) 31. B

(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the respective articles of association of the
group companies, each of the companies that is
domiciled in the PRC is required to allocate 10%
of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserve is non-distributable except
that in the event of liquidation and, subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations, can
be used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised as
paid-up capital.

STEP ACQUISITION OF A FORMER
ASSOCIATE

On 31 January 2024, the Group acquired control of
Shenzhen Qianhai Wenyi Investment Consulting Center
(Limited Partnership) CRINFTE BERIE &G AR O (B R
A%)) (“Qianhai Wenyi”) and Zhuhai Dantian Property
Management Co., Ltd.(JREMTHEMEETERHBERA
Al) (“Dantian Property”) held by Qianhai Wenyi. Dantian
Property is mainly engaged in property management
services, and the acquisition aims to increase the Group's
market share.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquired company at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired company’s
identifiable net assets.

ZRMBRBRDERRE 202455

(iv) EEBBATE

RIBRECABNE) MEERQF]
ZEENRAIER  EH R
W& AR MNABEB R B
10% (REBEFRAREETER
BE) PRELETHEHBATE
HEEZ AR EIZMELAN
50% ° MZAEEHERNAE
TEMAR R 2 IRIR S 2 BIETT ©

EEBBABRTADES - BHR
ETEE  ETBEARERRAENSE
TREMRRT - A AREIHEREE
BRENEREHER -

D REBRWKE—EREE QT

R2024%F1 8318 - AEEBE TR
JATBERIRESZ AP L (BREE)
([AEE3R]) RERFBERIKEM M H
MEERRHERAT ([FTEYZE])
THIRE c FHMEFEREMEEE
AR7S - RRWEE EEMASB AT

SN EE o
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STEP ACQUISITION OF A FORMER 32:

ASSOCIATE (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the acquired company as at the date of acquisition were

as follows:

(&)

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

DHREBRWKE—EREE QT

RKEER - WRBE R BRI R EE
HEENAREBENT

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
WA
AREE
Notes RMB‘000
BtaE ARMEET T
Property, plant and equipment Y - B R 14 10,905
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16(a) 2,305
Intangible assets B AE 17 155,015
Deferred tax assets BEHIEE E 21 646
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FIB - &% N E Ath fE U718 47,437
Trade and retention receivables B 5 FEWGRIA K EURTE € 107,777
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESFEY 94,776
Trade and notes payables B 5N FE K EA E iR (36,839)
Contract liabilities &RAME (3.255)
Other payables and accruals H fth B~ 508 R FEETIE B (81,248)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FrERITER (16,000)
Tax payable FEARTR TR (6,567)
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) (2,743)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 21 (38,500)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value NAREEFENR HRFEELE 233,709
Non-controlling interests IR (141,655)
Goodwill arising on acquisition R E AR 124,940
216,994
Satisfied by: IATRFIIER &5 -

Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEED 2,200

Fair value of previously held equity interest R UZEE B HiE #ist 2 MUt Al
remeasured at the date of acquisition FrFsixiEe) A (B A 214,794
216,994
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

310

32. STEP ACQUISITION OF A FORMER 32. PREERWEE—FEAEE QT
ASSOCIATE (continued) (%)
Intangible assets of RMB155,015,000 in relation to the AEEERMERREEERBET
acquisition of subsidiaries under property and facility KWERBARERBEEEEARK
management services have been recognised by the Group. 155,015,0007T °
Included in the goodwill of RMB124,940,000 recognised HERPREESLSS NHE
above is potential contract with new customers and HMEEELIBERNBEEAR %
assembled workforce, which is not recognised separately 124,940,000t + ZEIHEB W ARE
as it is not separable and it does not meet the criteria for BTYUER REZRETATSBAT
recognition as an intangible asset under IAS 38 /Intangible HECER G ER) E38RABELE
Assets. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be HTWERLEERRIZE - HiTFiE
deductible for income tax purposes. R AR HB TSR -
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition FARE—HNBRARNEASRESD
of a subsidiary is as follows: e :
AR¥T T

Cash consideration ReHE (2,200)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ELENRERIBCEED 94,776
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREB RS

included in cash flows from investing ReERENHEES MRS

activities FEMRANFE 92,576

Since the acquisition, the acquired company contributed
RMB642,456,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB19,918,000
to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2024.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 would have been
RMB36,277,225,000 and RMB1,682,886,000, respectively.

ENEEMMBRRBENDERAF 202455

BUEELAZK - H1E2024F12A31H
HFE  WKEARAAEETR T
AR#642,456,000 TR RARAR
#19,918,000 TAY 4R & KA ©
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B ANRY36,277,225,0007T B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

Non-cash investing and financing activities
are disclosed in note 16.

During the year, the Group had non-
cash additions to investment properties,
other non-current assets and property,
plant and equipment of RMB381,750,000,
RMB103,893,000 and RMB4,520,000,
respectively, in respect of debt settlement
transaction arrangements for carpark spaces,
commercial properties and residential
properties. The details of the debt settlement
transaction are as follows:

During the year, the Group entered into a
series of debt settlement agreements with
each of the debtors, pursuant to which
each of the debtors agreed to settle certain
payables owed by each of the debtors
to certain subsidiaries of the Group, by
transferring properties or car parking
spaces to certain subsidiaries of the Group.
The debt-repaid assets are recognised as
investment properties, other non-current
assets or property, plant and equipment.
The initial cost of investment properties,
other non-current assets and property,
plant and equipment are measured at fair
value, amounting to RMB265,093,000,
RMB103,893,000 and RMB4,520,000,
respectively, which is equal to the fair value
of the receivables given up.

33. AHtRE

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

B RME

(a) EEFREXRH

(i)

(i)

FENK 16 B IER
SRENBETE -

KEEAN  AEERKE
MY - HMIERESEE
MY - i R ERIE
BeEMH R AEARE
381,750,000 * ARKE
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4,520,000 ' HMIFE
7 - EEMERTEDSFE
MEREERHTH - &
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33. EHtHEEREBERME
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEHFBREXRH @)
(continued)
(i) (continued) (i (&)
In December 2024, the Group entered into a 2024128 - ZKE .Eﬁi
series of debt settlement agreement with the REER&KEER
Group's ultimate holding company and its N HKIEB A A (F?%‘ﬂ;‘%
subsidiaries (the “China Vanke Group”) and BDUEPHERSEEH
associates and joint ventures of China Vanke VEEE N RS E T ER
Group. Pursuant to the debt settlement 3 T —RINEBEE W
agreement, the Group and the debtors &= o BEBEBEERE
has settled part of the other receivables Z]—:E.&TE%}\ELZ&FE
through the investment properties of car $f4?x§|$%¥/ﬁ =58
parking spaces. The initial cost of investment H th fE I FRIE © 1% ﬁ |E
properties is measured at fair value, W%m?ﬂﬁﬁﬁ}z$%ﬂﬁ)
amounting to RMB116,657,000, which is BETE  28AAR
equal to the fair value of the receivables #116,657,0007T * &R
given up. T EE ) R R IR A Fo (B
B e

S
H\r}
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B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33. EHtEERERMT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) HBMEIHSIENEES
financing activities )

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
TERTER HEARE &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET R ARE TR
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1H1H = 233,544 233,544
Changes from financing cash flows FEREREEH) - (130,253) (130,253)
New leases HHE - 239,620 239,620
Interest expense FEHZ = 8,538 8,538
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = (88) (88)
At 31 December 2023 and 12023512 4318 2024
1 January 2024 1018 - 351,361 351,361
Changes from financing cash flows REHEHEL (16,155) (127,608) (143,763)
New leases HMHE - 97,205 97,205
Interest expense FEHZ 155 12,257 12,412
Increase arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries S GL )= yNip il 16,000 2,743 18,743
At 31 December 2024 R2024%12 A318 - 335,958 335,958
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BBARS
(a) Name and relationship with a (a) S BBRERE B/
related party REA
The ultimate holding company is China Vanke. BRI BRI AT] ©
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34, BBARS
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEEE AR S
The Group had the following transactions with AEBRFNEBE TS
related parties during the year: W

Notes 2024 2023
iz 20245 20235
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Purchases of investment properties REREMNE (1)
The ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries REERA R RENBAR

(the “China Vanke Group") ((BHERE]) 324,393 21,653
Associates and joint ventures of China ENEERE TR

Vanke Group RERE 30,319 -
Total L 354,712 21,653
Receipts of services EBR%
China Vanke Group EREE (i) 25,033 47,395
Assodiates and joint ventures of China EREERERAR

Vanke Group REfE (i) 6,078,905 5,275,522
Total CE 6,103,938 5,322,917
Lease of office space HERAZH (iv)
China Vanke Group EREHE 12,774 30,292
Associates and joint ventures of China EREEREARR

Vanke Group RELE 53,878 -
Total Gl 66,652 30,292
Acquisition of joint ventures KEaEtE (v)
China Vanke Group EREE 737,167 -
Rendering of services RALERYE i)
China Vanke Group ENEHE 2,859,896 3,865,129
Assodiates and joint ventures of China Vanke Group ENEERERRREELE 841,592 853,885
Total At 3,701,488 4,719,014
Loans to joint ventures RERKER 124,877 -
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Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. MBI RZ )

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHEHAMNRE @)

(continued)

Notes: Hiat -

(i) The purchase of investment properties refers to (i) Tﬁé}%%%ﬁ‘]%% ;&?EE%E
the purchase of parking spaces and other assets. BN SEE - ﬁi%flﬁ%%
The fees to be charged for the purchase of JJS(EE(E’\JEEH ' /’Tfﬁfgﬁﬁ??
investment properties shall be determined with iX%%ﬁfﬂﬁi%:EHﬁa
reference to the historical transaction amounts ﬁgmmiﬁﬁ%ﬁ'iﬁfﬁiﬂ(
during the reporting period and the prevailing irg”&%%ﬁ%mﬁﬁ%mﬁxg‘
market purchase of similar assets offered by B - FRME33() -

the independent third parties. The acquisition
during the year is related to the debt settlement
transaction and the details are set out in note
33(a) above.

(ii) Receipts of services from China Vanke Group refer (ii) = §$#%@3§?%Wﬁﬁf§%?5ﬂ%
to the purchase of accounting auxiliary services, BEETHBRYE - R RGERN
technology system usage and maintenance 1%}%&%&%%3&%%:%2%3&%}1%
services. The fees to be charged for these FTRBRNER K2 ERITHE
services shall be determined with reference to KB = T7 iR R LR 5 1k
the prevailing market prices and prices for similar R EREE °

services offered by the independent third parties.

(iii) Receipts of services from associates and joint (iif) BEMREBRS AR RSER
ventures of China Vanke Group refer to the KM o BR 7% 2 45 8 B K A
purchase of security service, cleaning service &R - BRIRS RME U
and electromechanical maintenance service. The AR 75 o %%F?%ﬁ%%ﬂ&ﬁ%&#%?&k{iﬁ
fees to be charged for the security service and %HE?%H%%H&HXE‘JEFHH%E%@
electromechanical maintenance service will be Ell%ﬁ—lt%%(1)ﬁmﬁw%iﬁ?—f
determined with reference to, where applicable, Ml ()BEERA (BE
(1) the prevailing market prices of similar services; 152:{‘&%%%%%%%%%
(2) the anticipated operation costs (including RIR%E - BPAAR BEER
but not limited to the scope and standards of MHEBR)  RG)BYFE=TE
particular services to be offered, labour costs, AV SR AR S (B 1% -
administration costs and costs of materials); and
(3) the prices for similar services offered by the
independent third parties.

(iv) The fees to be charged for the property lease shall (iv) %%EE%%WE&E@ BAK2
be determined with reference to the historical %mi&%ﬁ,ﬁﬁaﬁﬂ\’\]ﬁi?&%/ﬁ%ﬁ
transaction amounts during the reporting W&ﬁﬁ%\ifﬁﬁwiﬁﬁﬁ%
period and the prevailing market rent of similar HOBRUMRDERSEE

properties located in similar areas offered by the
independent third parties.
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(continued)

(v)

On 1 November 2024, the Group entered
into a share transfer agreement with a related
party, Zhuhai Mao-De Chengtou Commercial
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of China
Vanke, to purchase its 50% stake in Wuhan
Xintang Gongxiang Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Wuhan Xintang”) for a cash consideration
of RMB25,123,000. Upon completion of the
equity transfer on 6 December 2024, Wuhan
Xintang became a joint venture of the Group. The
agreement stipulates that the full amount of the
acquisition funds will be used to pay the Group
to repay the existing debts of Vanke and its
direct and indirect shareholding entities or related
parties to the Company.

On 29 November 2024, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement with a related
party, Shanghai Vanke Investment Management
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of China Vanke, to
purchase its 45% equity interest in Shanghai
Xiangda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Xiangda”) for a cash consideration
of RMB712,044,000. Upon completion of the
equity transfer on 26 December 2024, Shanghai
Xiangda became a joint venture of the Group.
The agreement stipulates that RMB590,000,000
of the acquisition funds will be used exclusively
to pay back the existing debts of Vanke and its
direct and indirect shareholding entities or related
parties to the Company.

Rendering of services refers to the space
management service and value-added commercial
services. The fees to be charged for the space
management services will be determined with
reference to, where applicable, (1) the guidance
rate published by the relevant government
authorities; (2) the prevailing market rate (taking
into consideration the location and condition
of the properties); (3) the anticipated operation
costs (including but not limited to the scope and
standards of particular services to be offered,
labour costs, administration costs and costs of
materials); and (4) the prices charged by the
Group for providing comparable services to the
independent third parties.

ENEEMMBRRBENDERAF 202455

34. BBERS @

(b) EHEBAINXRSZ @

(v) MR2024F1181H » REFEER
B ER S ENNE QK
BMAREHEAERRERA
AT RMNEREGZE - AAR
#525,123,000 IR & HE UK
BEBEONRETE LFmE

EEEROA ([BEHE])

50% HIAX#E © 1R2024F 12 A6
HSEp R st Ee  REHE
REAEENEEDLE - B
BE  KBEES2BEBERAR
YTHEEEEEREREEEM
MR A E RB sk RE B T A A

AR B AT -

MR2024%11829H » A& E
EEM BRI ENHEAQ A
LEEREEERERAA
IR EEZRGSE  UAR
#712,044,000 TR £ H (B
WEEEAEN EEEABHE

MEARAF ([ LBFX])

45% KRR HE - 1A2024F 12 A
26 AR IRt sE 1% - LIgHE
AKABEAEBNEEDE -
BT WBESHRHARE
590,000,000 Ci& & EB AN EE
ERMEEENBESKREE

Sk RARE T B ARV IR B ETS -

(viy RERY  RHEE=EEERS
MIBERERY - EREER
BHREREERBRT2E
(MBEBTEEA MO IEEE
RHEE ¢ ()RTMHME(F
BEMENLENGRMS) : (3)F&
HEEKA (BEE RN R
FERBOBEMZRE - AT

BRA -~ BIRR AR R

AR (A EERABLE=T

S AT LL AR TS T U R O (B A5



34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

(c)

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

34. BBERS @

Balances with related parties (c) EHEBEE A SRR
Notes 2024 2023
it 2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Trade and retention receivables B RETEREHRES (i)
China Vanke Group BREHE 1,854,471 1,894,570
Associates and joint ventures of EREERERAK
China Vanke Group REDE 594,965 592,708
Total G5l 2,449,436 2,487,278
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BFHIE REeRHMEKZE ()
China Vanke Group BREHE 1,456,988 1,405,256
Associates and joint ventures of BREERERNAR
China Vanke Group AELE 130,622 156,770
Total Xl 1,587,610 1,562,026
Investments in joint ventures and associates ¥&EREMBE N THRE
Loans to joint ventures REREER 124,877 =
Trade and notes payables ESRANEREARE (1)
Associates and joint ventures of EREERE AR
China Vanke Group RELE 14,741 305,911
Other payables and accruals HitE A RARETHER (i)
Other payables Hih NI
China Vanke Group EREE 486,347 477,949
Associates and joint ventures of BREERERER
China Vanke Group BEGE 80,783 86,119
567,130 564,068
Long-term payables within one year —FRE AR EERNFE
China Vanke Group BREE 3,520 3,520
Associates and joint ventures of China EREEBERAK
Vanke Group RELE - =
3,520 3,520
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties

(continued)

34.

()

EEARZ @

BB A AR @)

Notes 2024 2023
it 20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Long-term payables REENTE

China Vanke Group ERER 2,033 8,213

Associates and joint ventures of China EREERERER
Vanke Group AELE - =
2,033 8,213

Total &gt 572,683 575,801

Contract liabilities ERAE (i)

China Vanke Group BR&E 80,999 150,218

Lease liabilities HEEE (i)

China Vanke Group BR&HE 15,665 32,649

Associates and joint ventures of China EMEERERAR

Vanke Group AELE 201,847 179,627

Total At 217,512 212,276

Notes: Hiat -

(i) Except for the other payables of RMB143,544,000 0) B  FREEDERE
for the acquisition and new establishment of BANAMNEMENRARE
joint ventures and associates which are non- 143,544,000t A3EE S5 HE
trade in nature, trade and retention receivables N - FEUR B T ) B 5 R U R
from related parties, trade and notes payables BERERRES - FENBEE S
to related parties, contract liabilities to related NESENRBRENEZE -
parties, other payables and accruals to related HEBANARBE - e
parties and lease liabilities to related parties are FREMEMNKIBEREESIER
trade in nature. UREEBTHHEEEES R

BEHIHE o
(i) Except for the prepayments for capital (ii) BRIEMEREBEERARK

investments of RMB185,716,000 which are non-
trade in nature, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables from related parties mainly consist
of deposits charged by property developers for
carpark space sales assistance services, which are
trade in nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34, BBARS

(continued)

(d) Compensation of key management (d) XEEXEEBEAEH
personnel of the Group: B
Details of directors’ and the chief executive’s BEREZEZRESTHAEHN
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial BEEIE - SRR RMIEE -
statements. The emoluments of key management FEEBAE (RESEERT
personnel (other than directors and the chief BWABIN) HEmT -

executive) are as follows:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #4& « JEALE YR A 1,735 1,878
Discretionary bonuses IS TEAL 4,535 7,476
Pension costs, housing funds, medical BRREER FEAES -

insurances and other social insurances BERkR A2 R 325 358
Total &5t 6,595 9,712
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. RERETHERTIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RMEHR ST AENKEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period wn

are as follows:
31 December 2024 202412 A31H
Financial assets eHMEE

Financial assets

designated

Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other Financial
through profit  comprehensive assets at
or loss income amortised cost

EEANLARE
WAAEBETERE  HEEREHIA
HRBIAES  Rt2EUEN RE#EAA
BRneREE tHEE  HBMEHEE aF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARRT T ARRT T ARBT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEN - - 13,434,778 13,434,778
Time deposits with original maturity RHHRRA=HAN

of over three months TR - - 187,686 187,686
Restricted bank deposits XBHEIER - - 455,345 455,345
Financial assets at fair value through NWAREEHERERHHA

profit or loss EHERNCREE - - - .
Trade and retention receivables BARMGUERERRE S - - 6,541,534 6,541,534
Financial assets included in prepayments,  FTATEFZUE « e REMENFES

deposits and other receivables SREE - - 2,713,022 2,713,022
Loans to joint ventures EFTRERE - - 124,877 124,877
Equity investments designated at fair REANARERTEE

value through other comprehensive HEF AL H2EAEN

income RERE - 1,013,591 - 1,013,591
Total it - 1,013,591 23,457,202 23470833
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Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. BERETHNERMTE
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
Financial liabilities tRBEE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BB AT E

HEBmE S

RMB’000

AR#ET T

Trade and notes payables E 5 HIE R EN IR 6,657,945
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE A E SRIE M ERFTIEE /Y

payables and accruals SEAE 5,739,111

Lease liabilities HERE 335,958

Total G 12,733,014
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. BRERETHERTI AW
CAT E G 0 RY (continued)
31 December 2023 2023412 A31H
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets
designated
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other Financial
through profit comprehensive assets at
or loss income amortised cost Total
BEANALER
WALEEMER  HEEEEHHA
HEFHALSE  Ep2EhEN IR SR
ERfeREE SHEAE  HENSHAE =H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AEETT AE%TR ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents RERBLEEN - = 15,572,483 15,572,483
Time deposits with original maturity REMABR=HAH

of over three months THER - - 172,568 172,568
Restricted bank deposits RBHE TR - - 390,446 390,446
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBHEAREDHA

profit or loss EHERNeREE 976 - - 976
Trade and retention receivables BHRUTERENFES - - 6,781,100 6,781,100
Financial assets included in prepayments, FABNRE - e RAMEIGEN

deposits and other receivables SREE - = 2,789,981 2,789,981
Equity investments designated at fair value BEBNANBEGFEAZEHHA

through other comprehensive income A2 ARERRERE - 812,719 - 812,719
Total it 976 812,719 25,706,578 26,520,273
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. RERETWERMTE =
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities tRBEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

BB KA ERN
eHEE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Trade and notes payables B o RN HERENSRR 5,764,491
Financial liabilities included in other T AEME IR ERTIER /Y
payables and accruals SREaE 6,240,182
Lease liabilities HEAE 351,361
Total e~ 12,356,034
36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. TRMIENAARBERAR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BERB&R
INSTRUMENTS
As at 31 December 2024, the fair values of the Group's R2024F 128318 "B E
financial assets or financial liabilities approximated to their EdemBENAnBEREZER
respective carrying amounts. EEES °
Management has assessed that the fair value of trade EBERTLERE B EWKE
and retention receivables, financial assets included in FEKRFES  FTATBNFIE - e
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash and REMEKRBENESRBHEE B2k
cash equivalents, trade and notes payables, financial ReEEY  BIENFKBERENE
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease B s AHREMENRIBERETIEE D
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely cHmAaE HEaENAAEEEE
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. RAERSE  TEEARZEILAY

BRHME -
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324

36.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to
the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, the non-current portion of other payables
and accruals and lease liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
values as at 31 December 2024 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on
quoted market prices.

The Group invests in debt investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair values of these
unlisted investments by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the expected future interest
return on maturity of the wealth management product
instruments.
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™
I

36. ERMTEAMNAABEK

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE J
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEEH&K @
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy NAEBEER

TERHPAEELRIANAABEE
HEEM

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

As at 31 December 2024 72024512 H31H

Fair value measurement using

RANTEEGBAAEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EAUBE EAFIBR
EEMSRE BAYE BAYE
(F—4) (E=8) (E=H) &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair NAREETER
value through other HEFT AL D
comprehensive income ZEYENRERE
Listed equity investments FikERE 1,013,591 - - 1,013,591
Financial assets at fair WAREEFEAEZS
value through profit or loss TAEHERNEREE - - - -
1,013,591 - - 1,013,591
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. TRIEMARBERAR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEER @
|NSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREBEEH »

As at 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H

Fair value measurement using
FRAATREERAEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTHE SEATIER
ERTISRE BAZE BAZE
(1) (B=8) (=) G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair WAREETER
value through other HEB AL M2E
comprehensive income ihentolier Svecy
Listed equity investments LikERE 812,719 = = 812,719
Financial assets at fair NARBEFEAEZHA
value through profit or loss EHERNEREE - - 976 976
812,719 - 976 813,695
For the equity investments designated at fair value HREEAAAABEAEAHLES)

HARBEROBERE - AoEE
ToARA8 3 T R R AR
BT -

through profit or loss, fair value was determined by the
changes in the net assets of the unlisted equity entity.

FAN pemEERSRAEENES
E—HBEF_HrABAAREBES
ENER  F=ZHNTESBEANEL
(20234 : ) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2023 Nil).
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, time deposits with original
maturity of over three months, lease liabilities, amounts
due to related parties and amounts due from related
parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of loss resulting from
changes in foreign exchange rates. Fluctuations in
exchange rates between RMB and other currencies
in which the Group conducts business may affect the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. As at
the end of the reporting period, since the Group did not
hold any financial instruments denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the respective
operating units, the Group did not have any significant
exposure to the foreign currency risk.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

37. RIEMREEBEREREE

AEENT2EMTATEBRIR
HIRTTER - HekReFEY B
7 R EMEWRIE - B 5 R EMEN
FIE - HERREELEER - A&
BHEAHEMEREERAE  WAR
REEFEREEH T AZTHERN
THEE  RIBEBEE=EANE
Hi7FR - HERE - BRI 50R
KEWRAR TR - ZF M T AR
IZAMERAKENSESREST -

rEEeRTAEENEERR A
EREk  EERRRTEERRE - #E
EERMERETEE  UWEEZEE
g B o

S BE = B

S| BEE R B A2 i R SN T o S B i S K
BROER ARBEASELEX
15 P PR 5 6 2 i) ) T SO 8 7]
SREAKBNPBHRAREE X
B NBEMR > BRAKEILAREF
BEANASEEEMEEE AN
SR ENSRIA  WAKEL R
T i (E A B R SNE L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. eRiEREEAERBE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
and retention receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits with original maturity of over
three months and restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be
any significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group expects the credit risk associated with trade
and retention receivables and other receivables due from
related parties to be low, since the related parties have
strong capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by analysis by customer/counterparty. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group's trade and retention
receivables and other receivables are widely dispersed. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

ZRMBRBRDERRE 202455
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‘NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31BLEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

LREAMREEEEREE @

Credit risk (continued) EERKE @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BARREBREREER

TRINTERAEEEFEEHREK (AT
FEERBERAER - BRIFEEMEL D
BIEBTNERARE NN ER)
WEEEZREAEERR - UERR
12A3TBHNERBEERDE - TE3H
CHASHEENREAR -

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

12-month
31 December 2024 20245128318 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12EARM
FER# FENRBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
5-E8 1 2=R& oA &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT
Loans to joint ventures ENTRERE 124877 - - - 124877
Trade and retention receivables* BORWERERRES - - - 7,486,669 7,486,669
Financial assets included in prepayments, SABRTE  EER
deposits and other recelvables HfEWENERER
- Normal** =™ 2,428,356 154,508 - - 2,582,864
- Doubtful** ~ T - - 1,059,507 - 1,059,507
Restricted bank deposits RBHE TR
~ Not yet past due - HRBE 455,345 - - - 455,345
Time deposits with original maturity RISABB=EAN
of over three months TR
~ Not yet past due - WRBE 187,686 - - - 187,686
Cash and cash equivalents RERARLEEN
— Not yet past due - WRDH 13,434,778 - - - 13,434,778
16,631,042 154,508 1,059,507 7,486,669 25,331,726
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& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. eRiEREEAERBE @
OBJECT|VES AND POLlClES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERKE @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BARBRERMBE (&)
12-month
31 December 2023 03%128318 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12EAES
FEER FESRHCERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-R& il F=h& Blhiz At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Trade and retention receivables* BoENFAR RS - - - 7,200,901 7,200,901
Financial assets included in prepayments, SABRTE  BER

deposits and other receivables HfEWENERER

- Normal** = I 2,507,820 120,712 = - 2,628,532

- Doubtful** — TR+ - - 1,005,431 - 1,005,431
Restricted bank deposits BB TR

~ Not yet past due - HRBE 390,446 - - - 390,446
Time deposits with original maturity RESRBE=EAN

of over three months EEBEH

~ Not yet past due - WA 172,568 - - - 172,568
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEN

- Not yet past due - HARS 15,572,483 - - - 15,572,483

18,643,317 120,712 1,005,431 7,200,901 26,970,361

@ For trade and retention receivables to which the i RAEBEAB T AETRENES
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, EYCGKRIERERRZ M S @ EXNEE
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in B P B R B TS SRR M R 23 B BR o
note 23 to the financial statements.

TS The credit quality of financial assets included in G ARG A TR FRIA B E At e MR IE DA Jo
prepayments and other receivables and other assets is EMEEMSRMEE WAL BHMESE
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due HETEHCREEQVREREREE
and there is no information indicating that the financial E BB ARG - A EEEERERA
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial [E%] BRIeRMEENEEEZWR
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial BITFsE] -

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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37.

~NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
funds to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by management and directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2024 7A2024F12H31H

37:

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

LREREEEERBE®

D L B

AEEANZEKETREREASRS
B BRASASKNENRENRS

mEBERReRERERES  BER
FEBLE TRTRRARE - AEE

BERESIE -

TRIIINERERR - ERALKR
MRRERE (BREMSOM RN
(WSFBME) ERHERAETT
MG E M B AREEIEDT
EERABENS T ORI MR KA
SEAEEIXNNZEEH -

Less than
Total
Gl
RMB’000
ARHEET T

12 months 1 to 5 years
—ZHF
RMB’000

NG

LR12{8 A
RMB’000
A KRBT T

Trade and notes payables B SN FIARENEE 6,657,945 - 6,657,945
Financial liabilities included in ST AEL A JE A~ 3RIE &

other payables and accruals EEtEENSmEE 4,579,073 1,160,038 5,739,111
Lease liabilities HEBE 112,634 247,331 359,965
Total BE 11,349,652 1,407,369 12,757,021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

LREAMREEEEREE @

TREN R ()

Less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
L1218 A —ZhF CEl

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBETIT ARETT ARBTET

As at 31 December 2023 7A2023F12H31H
Trade and notes payables B 5 S FOE RN 2R 5,764,491 - 5,764,491
Financial liabilities included in ST AE A FRIE &

other payables and accruals EErEEMNESRARE 5,109,255 1,130,927 6,240,182
Lease liabilities HEAE 110,892 271,440 382,332
Total a&t 10,984,638 1,402,367 12,387,005

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
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37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents divided by
total equity as of the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group maintained
at net cash position.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the

directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 12.

37.

38.

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

LREREEEERBE®

EXEE @)

AEBAFABERESEREANE
o FRER IR BEFRRER S
AehBRSEEVMRUNEEREHR
MR ARREE o

R2024F N 2023%F12A31H » K&
BRIZFFEESAMR -

BEMRER

%

N EARE  BEEEZFBIRE KRR
B BEHBRME12IE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

39. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. A RMBERRE
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position ARABRBEHRNTEARARER
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as wn
follows:

EARDIILTII@ 31 December
2024 2023

20245 2023%F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LEN =Y & 44,580 10,794
Right-of-use assets EREEE 143,825 176,547
Investments in subsidiaries RETB R RRIEE 7,327,469 7,327,469
Investments in joint ventures and associates A & E ML N B HIRE 84,442 86,242
Deferred tax assets RIETHIAE B 39,530 44,164
Prepayments, deposits and TEFRIE - ZE R

other receivables H Ath B Y5k IE 234 630
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 7,640,080 7,645,846
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and retention receivables B S rE I & EWRE S 1,214 2,292
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - Ze Rk

other receivables Hh fE Y 5K IR 17,462,001 14,066,520
Restricted bank deposits 2RI ERITER - =
Time deposits with original maturity of REIBFHBBE =R

over three months TE BRTF R 100,000 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEY 11,533,449 13,733,552
Total current assets BB ERE 29,096,664 27,902,364
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI IR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F12A831HIEFE

39. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. ARATB#EARREK @
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

31 December 31 December
2024 2023

20245 20234
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE

Contract liabilities EREE 1,428 1,198
Other payables and accruals E b FRIE R EETIE B 20,669,374 18,875,638
Lease liabilities HEAE 28,260 16,815
Tax payable FEARTR TR 37,853 26,077
Total current liabilities mENAEREE 20,736,915 18,919,728
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 8,359,749 8,982,636

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EELERABERE 15,999,829 16,628,482

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE

Other payables and accruals E e 5 R EETIE B 7 7
Provision B 23 =
Lease liabilities HERE 129,860 159,840
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 35,956 44,137
Total non-current liabilities EmB B ERE 165,846 203,984
Net assets BEFE 15,833,983 16,424,498
EQUITY fExm

Share capital [N 1,171,565 1,178,469
Other reserves (note) H b (AaE) 14,662,418 15,246,029
Total equity T B 15,833,983 16,424,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF B SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12831HIEFE

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. AR BEAMRRRE @)

Note: Htat -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AR B EEERAT -
Statutory
Capital surplus Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
BARGFE FAERBOE  KHOEME A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTTT ARBFTT ARETT AR%Tr
At 31 December 2022 and M2022F12 A31B &
1 January 2023 (restated) 20231 A1H (&=at) 12,788,597 596,177 654,247 14,039,021
Total comprehensive income for FAZMAE
the year W 4% = = 1,910,938 1,910,938
Dividends declared BEEIRRS - - (655,228) (655,228)
Shares repurchased B985 - = (48,702) (48,702)
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 12,788,597 596,177 1,861,255 15,246,029
Total comprehensive income for FREHE
the year etk - — 1,824,454 1,824,454
Dividends declared B SRS - - (2,106,613)  (2,106,613)
Issue of shares BTG 54,154 - - 54,154
Shares repurchased Bl FE AR 17 (355,606) - - (355,606)
At 31 December 2024 7K2024F12A31H 12,487,145 596,177 1,579,096 14,662,418

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2025.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

E=ERBERBBROBER AT 2024FFH

40. BFEEERRAVEHL

B RARMN2025F3 A25HEEES
b 7 IR T2 o
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